SCV

%‘ WATER

SCV Water Agency
Regular Board Meeting

Tuesday, December 5, 2023
Regular Board Meeting Begins at 6:00 PM

Members of the public may attend by the following options:

IN PERSON BY PHONE VIRTUALLY
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Toll Free: 1-(833)-568-8864 Please join the meeting from your computer,
Rio Vista Water Treatment Plant Webinar ID: 160 063 2604 tablet or smartphone:
Boardroom https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1600632604

27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, CA 91350

Have a Public Comment?

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to ajacobs@scvwa.org or
by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita,
CA 91350. All written comments received before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board
members and posted on the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be made available at the meeting, if practicable, and posted on the
SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in
their entirety. (Public comments take place during Item 3 of the Agenda and before each Item is considered. Please see
the Agenda for details.)

This meeting will be recorded and the audio recording for all Board meetings will be posted to yourSCVwater.com
within 3 business days from the date of the Board meeting.

Disclaimer: Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and guidelines

regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a Board meeting. Attendees should
therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting themselves from exposure to COVID-19.

SCV Water - 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350-2173 - 661-297-1600 - yourSCVwater.com


mailto:ajacobs@scvwa.org
https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1600632604

[This page intentionally left blank.]



SCV

WATER

SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
REGULAR BOARD MEETING AGENDA

RIO VISTA WATER TREATMENT PLANT
BOARDROOM
27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD
SANTA CLARITA, CA 91350

TUESDAY, DECEMBER 5, 2023 AT 6:00 PM
IMPORTANT NOTICES

5:15 PM DISCOVERY ROOM OPEN TO THE PUBLIC
Dinner for Directors and staff in the Discovery Room.
There will be no discussion of Agency business taking place prior to the
Call to Order at 6:00 PM.

This meeting will be conducted in person at the address listed above. As a convenience to the
public, members of the public may also participate virtually by using the Agency’s Call-In
Number 1-(833)-568-8864, Webinar ID: 160 063 2604 or Zoom Webinar by clicking on the
link https://scvwa.zoomgov.com/j/1600632604. Any member of the public may listen to the
meeting or make comments to the Board using the call-in number or Zoom Webinar link above.
However, in the event there is a disruption of service which prevents the Agency from
broadcasting the meeting to members of the public using either the call-in option or internet-
based service, this meeting will not be postponed or rescheduled but will continue without
remote participation. The remote participation option is being provided as a convenience to the
public and is not required. Members of the public are welcome to attend the meeting in person.

Attendees should be aware that while the Agency is following all applicable requirements and

guidelines regarding COVID-19, the Agency cannot ensure the health of anyone attending a

Board meeting. Attendees should therefore use their own judgment with respect to protecting
themselves from exposure to COVID-19.

Members of the public unable to attend this meeting may submit comments either in writing to
ajacobs@scvwa.org or by mail to April Jacobs, Board Secretary, Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. All written comments received
before 4:00 PM the day of the meeting will be distributed to the Board members and posted on
the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency website prior to the start of the meeting. Anything
received after 4:00 PM the day of the meeting, will be made available at the meeting, if
practicable, and will be posted on the SCV Water website the following day. All correspondence
with comments, including letters or emails, will be posted in their entirety.

1. CALL TO ORDER

2. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

27234 BOUQUET CANYON ROAD « SANTA CLARITA, CALIFORNIA 91350-2173 - 661 2971600 « FAX 661 297+1611

website address: www.yourscvwater.com


tel:+18668994679,,963232301
tel:+18668994679,,660724405

December 5, 2023
Page 2 of 4

3.

PUBLIC COMMENTS — Members of the public may comment as to items within the
subject matter jurisdiction of the Agency that are not on the Agenda at this time.
Members of the public wishing to comment on items covered in this Agenda may do so
at the time each item is considered. (Comments may, at the discretion of the Board’s
presiding officer, be limited to three minutes for each speaker.) To participate in public
comment from your computer, tablet, or smartphone, click the “raise hand” feature in
Zoom. You will be notified when it is your turn to speak, please unmute when requested.
To participate in public comment via phone, dial *9 to raise your hand. When it is your
turn to speak, dial *6 to unmute.

APPROVAL OF THE AGENDA
CONSENT CALENDAR PAGE
51 ~* Approve Adoption of the 2024 Legislative Platform and
Advocacy Process 7
52 * Approve a Revised Employee Manual No. 10.0 — Overtime
Policy 17
53 * Approve a Revised Driving and Vehicle Policy 27
54 * Approve Receiving and Filing of August 2023 Monthly
Financial Report — August 2023 Check Register 37
ACTION ITEMS FOR APPROVAL PAGE

6.1 * Approve Minutes of the November 21, 2023 Santa Clarita
Valley Water Agency Regular Board of Directors Meeting 71
6.2 * Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving the SB 221 Water
Supply Verification for the Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

Development 75
6.3 * Approve a Purchase Order to Salinas Valley Ford for Fleet

Replacement Vehicles 249
64 * Approve a Contract Renewal with Systems & Software, Inc. for

enQuesta Customer Service System Maintenance and Support 265

6.5 * Approve Receiving and Filing of September 2023 Monthly and
FY 2023/24 First Quarter Financial Report (July — September

2023) — September 2023 Check Resister 289
6.6 * Consider and Approve Issuing a Request For Proposals to
Remodel the Existing SCV Water Agency Boardroom 397

ANNUAL CONSIDERATION OF GENERAL MANAGER’S AGREEMENT PAGE

7.1 *  Consider Salary Determination and Update to General
Manager’s Agreement Following Annual Performance
Evaluation 413

GENERAL MANAGER’S REPORT ON ACTIVITIES, PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS



https://yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check-Register-August-2023.pdf
https://yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/SCVWA/departments/finance/check-registers/Check-Register-September-2023.pdf

December 5, 2023

Page 3 of 4
9. COMMITTEE MEETING RECAP REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL
PURPOSES ONLY PAGE
91 * November 8, 2023 Water Resources and Watershed
Committee Meeting Recap Report 419
9.2 * November 16, 2023 Public Outreach and Legislation
Committee Meeting Recap Report 425
93 * November 20, 2023 Finance and Administration Committee
Meeting Recap Report 431
10. WRITTEN REPORTS FOR INFORMATIONAL PURPOSES ONLY PAGE
10.1 * | Engineering Services Section Report 437
10.2 * | Finance, Administration and Information Technology Services
Section Report 449
10.3 * | Treatment, Distribution, Operations and Maintenance Section
Report 457
10.4 * | Water Resources and Outreach Section Report 469
10.5 * | Committee Planning Calendars 479

11. PRESIDENT’S REPORT

12. AB 1234 WRITTEN AND VERBAL REPORTS PAGE

[12.1 [ AB 1234 Reports | |

13. DIRECTOR REPORTS

14. DIRECTOR REQUESTS FOR APPROVAL FOR EVENT ATTENDANCE

15. ADJOURNMENT
* Indicates Attachment
é Indicates Handout

Note: The Board reserves the right to discuss or take action or both on all of the above
Agenda items.

NOTICES

Any person may make a request for a disability-related modification or accommodation needed
for that person to be able to participate in the public meeting by telephoning April Jacobs,
Secretary to the Board of Directors, at (661) 297-1600, or in writing to Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350. Requests must
specify the nature of the disability and the type of accommodation requested. A telephone
number or other contact information should be included so that Agency staff may discuss
appropriate arrangements. Persons requesting a disability-related accommodation should make
the request with adequate time before the meeting for the Agency to provide the requested
accommodation.



December 5, 2023
Page 4 of 4

Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957.5, non-exempt public records that relate to open
session agenda items and are distributed to a majority of the Board less than seventy-two (72)
hours prior to the meeting will be available for public inspection at the Santa Clarita Valley
Water Agency, located at 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350, during
regular business hours. When practical, these public records will also be made available on the
Agency’s Internet Website, accessible at http://www.yourscvwater.com.

Posted on November 29, 2023.



http://www.yourscvwater.com/

ITEM NO.

‘ 5.1
b WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 5, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Steve Cole ;///L

Assistant General Manager

SUBJECT: Approve Adoption of the 2024 Legislative Platform and Advocacy Process

SUMMARY

Each year, the Board of Directors adopts a Legislative Platform to direct staff and advocacy
consultants when evaluating proposed legislation that may impact SCV Water. The Platform
provides direction to staff, who in turn can direct Agency legislative advocates. This allows
timely response to requests, for example, for letters of support or opposition to fast-moving
legislation or other regulatory action. The Platform is intended to provide a clear understanding
of our objectives in general, a solid foundation for our work going forward, and allow the Agency
to engage in legislative actions in a timely manner in order to carry out the mission of the
Agency.

DISCUSSION

The 2024 Draft Legislative Platform is attached. Redline edits are included following discussion
and input at the November 16, 2023, Public Outreach and Legislation Committee meeting.
Typically, few circumstances arise during the year which are not covered by the Platform. Staff
and advocates have not identified any additional topics for the coming year.

Advocacy Process

The Legislative Platform is the foundation for a nimble and responsive advocacy program. As an
example of the Platform in action, the following outline describes the process. Keep in mind that
this refers only to legislation with potential impact on SCV Water, which could be as a water
provider, employer or an entity otherwise subject to the provisions of the proposed bill. Typically,
this process only occurs at the state level, and not at a federal level.

1. Anbill is introduced in the State Assembly/House or the State Senate/Senate.

2. The bill is identified by any of several entities which bring it to staff's attention. This could
be California Advocates (SCV Water’s state lobbyist), the legislative affairs staff of the
Association of California Water Agencies (ACWA), California Special Districts
Association (CSDA), Southern California Water Coalition, State Water Contractors
Association or through other contacts and relationships through Agency staff and/or
directors.

3. A decision is made whether to take action.

a. Does the bill address any of the issues in our Legislative Platform?


ajacobs
Item 5.1


b. If so, do we want to take action in support or opposition to the bill, in accordance
to the Platform?

Do we want to request amendments? (i.e., “oppose unless”)

d. Are any industry organizations or coalitions taking action through a joint letter
that we wish to add our logo to?

4. Only after this evaluation, and with the adopted Platform as authorization and guidance,
will staff take action or direct California Advocates to take action.

5. The action is then reported at the next Public Outreach and Legislation Committee
meeting, with any letters attached to the agenda packet.

It's important to note that while sometimes the Agency may directly issue a letter of support or
opposition, most often we participate as part of a coalition. This is an accepted best practice in
legislative advocacy, as those coalitions or industry organizations often have a higher profile
and greater impact in the process.

On November 16, 2023, the Public Outreach and Legislation Committee consider staffs
recommendation to Adopt the 2024 Legislative Platform and Advocacy Process.

STRATEGIC NEXUS

The Legislative Platform supports Goal A of the Strategic Plan to "Implement policies supporting
the social, quality of life, and environmental values of the community," specifically Strategy A.4 -
Engage in statewide and federal water legislative and policy issues.

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None

RECOMMENDATION

The Public Outreach and Legislation Committee recommends that the Board of Directors adopt
the 2024 Legislative Platform at the December 5, 2023, regular Board Meeting.

Attachment



2024 LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM
Approved December 5, 2023

SERVICE « COMMUNITY + VALUE

Table of Contents

1.0 PURPOSE ...t
2.0 IMPORTED WATER SUPPLY ..o
3.0 LOCAL WATER RESOURCES

4.0 ENERGY ot
5.0 WATERUSE EFFICIENCY ..ot
3

7.0 SUSTAINABLE WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PRACTICES
8.0 WATER TRANSFERS
4

10.0 ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY ..o
11.0 WATER RATE ASSISTANCE ... e
12.0 LAND USE AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT
13.0 INITIATION OF LEGISLATION



[This page intentionally left blank.]



1.0

2.0

S CV SCV WATER 2024 LEGISLATIVE PLATFORM

WATER APPROVED: DECENMEERISIZ028

PURPOSE

The SCV Water Legislative Platform provides statements and positions which have been
adopted by the Board of Directors and/or are included in other adopted policies or plans.
The Platform provides direction SCV Water staff and SCV Water’s legislative advocates
when evaluating proposed legislation that may directly or indirectly impact SCV Water or
its customers. Legislation that meets or fails to meet the principles set forth in the Platform
may be supported or opposed accordingly. This allows timely response in support or
opposition to fast-moving legislation or other regulatory action.

Legislation that does not meet the principles set forth in the Platform, or that has potentially
complicated or varied implications, will not be acted upon by staff or the legislative
advocates and will instead be presented to the Board directly for guidance in advance of
any position being taken. Additionally, legislation is presented to the Board for action when
a Board vote is necessary to strengthen SCV Water’s position on a bill. Following these
guidelines allows staff to respond to legislation in a timely manner.

IMPORTED WATER SUPPLY

It is SCV Water's policy to support:

1) Development of a long-term state water plan that balances California's competing
water needs amongst environmental, agriculture, and urban water management, and
results in a reliable supply of high-quality water for the Santa Clarita Valley.

2) Implementation of a long-term, comprehensive solution for the Sacramento-San
Joaquin River Delta (the Delta) that:

a) Provides reliable water supplies to meet California's short- and long-term needs.

b) Improves the ability to transport water across the Delta either for, or in
supplement to, State Water Project deliveries, and addresses Delta levee
stability cost effectively and efficiently.

c) Improves the quality of water delivered from the Delta.

d) Addresses the Bay-Delta's ecological health in a balanced manner that takes into
account all factors that have contributed and are contributing to the Delta’s

degradation.

e) Encourages cost-effective water-use efficiency measures.



3.0

4.0

f) Increases storage in a manner that does not detrimentally impact the water
supply availability and reliability of the State Water Project.

3) Implementation of measures that enhance the cost-effective and efficient operation
of State Water Project facilities, including opportunities to facilitate the collection and
reporting of data to better inform decision making.

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose:

1) Legislation that would make urban water supplies less reliable, or would substantially
increase the cost of imported water without also improving the reliability and/or
quality of such water.

2) Revisions to the federal Central Valley Project (CVP) Improvement Act that would
jeopardize the Delta's environmental integrity, compromise State Water Project supply
availability and/or reliability and/or limit the ability of urban agencies to transfer and/or
bank CVP water.

LOCAL WATER RESOURCES

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:

1) Provides federal and state funding for water conservation efforts, improvements in
technology, water recycling, groundwater recovery and recharge, desalination,
climate change studies and surface water development projects.

2) Authorizes and/or facilitates expanded use of local water resources including water
recycling and stormwater capture.

3) Authorizes local governmental agencies to regulate the discharge of contaminants to
the sewer collection system that may adversely affect water recycling and reuse.

4) Facilitates public understanding of and support for programs and projects that
enhance the quality, reliability and supply of local water resources.

5) Encourage and/or funds watershed-based integrated water resources management
and planning projects.

6) Removes barriers that restrict ability of local government to develop recycled water.
7) Facilitates the sustainable management of groundwater resources.
It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:

1) Restricts the ability of local governmental agencies to develop their local resources in
a cost-effective, efficient and environmentally sensitive manner.

ENERGY



5.0

6.0

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:

1) Assists water agencies in obtaining reliable energy at reasonable costs.

2) Aids utilities in achieving energy efficiency improvements.

3) Provides for consistency in renewable energy pricing.

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:

1) Imposes additional regulatory burdens on the State Water Project, water agencies
and their power providers that reduces energy availability and/or reliability or

increases energy costs.

WATER USE EFFICIENCY

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:

1) Ensures accurate reporting of the implementation of water efficiency measures such
as the urban Best Management Practices.

2) Sets cost-effective efficiency standards for water use.

3) Provides loans and grants to fund incentives for water conserving devices or
practices.

4) Provides federal and state funding to improve water use efficiency technologies.

5) Provides flexibility in available methods for water agencies to meet state water
conservation goals.

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:

1) Fails to ensure balance in the implementation of water efficiency practices and
requirements for both urban and agricultural use.

2) Results in measures that would not be cost-effective for the Santa Clarita Valley.

WATER QUALITY

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:
1) Protects and/or improves the quality of surface water and groundwater.
2) Provides funding to help agencies meet state and federal water quality standards.

3) Establishes and/or implements standards for water-borne contaminants based on
sound science and with consideration of cost-effectiveness.



7.0

8.0

9.0

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:
1) Could compromise the quality of surface water and groundwater supplies.

2) Establishes and/or implements standards for water-borne contaminants without
regard for technical feasibility, sound science or consideration of cost-effectiveness.

SUSTAINABLE WATER RESOURCES MANAGEMENT PRACTICES

It is SCV Water’s policy to support legislation that:

1) Advances science relating to impacts of climate change on precipitation patterns and
the manner in which operation of water resources infrastructure may be optimized.

2) Expands opportunities to increase and make cost effective use of renewable energy.

WATER TRANSFERS

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:

1) Encourages and facilitates voluntary water transfers.

2) Streamlines the permitting and approval process for implementing transfers.

3) Provides appropriate protection or mitigation for impacts on the environment,
aquifers, water-rights holders and third parties to the transfer, including those with
interests in the facilities being used.

4) Encourages transfers that augment existing water supplies, especially in dry years.

5) Encourages use of available capacity in existing facilities to advance voluntary
transfers of water.

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:
1) Detrimentally impacts the operations and maintenance of conveyance systems.
2) Interferes with the financial integrity of sound water management practices.

ADMINISTRATIVE AND FISCAL POLICY

It is SCV Water's policy to support legislation that:

1) Requires the federal and state governments to provide a subvention to reimburse
local governments for all mandated costs or regulatory actions.

2) Maintains the multi-county ERAF (Education Revenue Augmentation Fund)
exemption.



10.0

11.0

12.0

3) Fosters public understanding of government activities and decision-making
processes while not imposing unreasonable administrative or financial burdens.

It is SCV Water's policy to oppose legislation that:
1) Is inconsistent with SCV Water’s current investment policies and practices.

2) Pre-empts SCV Water’s ability to impose or change water rates, fees, or
assessments.

3) Impairs SCV Water’s ability to maintain reasonable reserve funds.

4) Impairs SCV Water’s ability to provide service at reasonable costs to its retail
purveyors.

5) Makes any unilateral reallocation of SCV Water revenues, or those of its retail
purveyors.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICY

It is SCV Water’s policy to support legislation that:

1) Enhances the environment of the state of California in a balanced, cost-effective
manner.

2) Enhances the environment of the Santa Clarita Valley in a balanced, cost-effective
manner.

3) Protects the quality and quantity of California and the Santa Clarita Valley water
supplies.
It is SCV Water’s policy to oppose legislation that:

1) Imposes unreasonable additional costs, bureaucracy or legal obligations on water
suppliers to meet environmental regulations.

WATER RATE ASSISTANCE

It is SCV Water’s policy to support legislation that:
1) Is relevant to developing a Statewide approach to water ratepayers’ assistance

programs. Preference is for state-administered programs with an identified funding
source.

LAND USE AND GROWTH MANAGEMENT

Refer specific legislation, whether of local or statewide interest, to the Board of
Directors.



13.0

INITIATION OF LEGISLATION

Legislation relevant to the interests of SCV Water shall be initiated at the direction of the
Board of Directors in coordination with the appropriate legislative advocate.



ITEM NO.

‘ 52
b WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 21, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Rochelle Patterson  * ;

Chief Financial and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: Approve a Revised Employee Manual Section No. 10.0 — Overtime Policy

SUMMARY

Management recommends the revision of Employee Manual No. 10 — Overtime Policy, by
adding a section for Compensatory Time Off (CTO), as well as a few other minor clarifying edits.

DISCUSSION

Due to the nature of their roles, several SCV Water employees frequently work extended hours
beyond their normal (average) work week. Many have expressed a desire for the option to earn
compensatory time off (comp time/CTO), rather than overtime (OT) or double-time (DT) pay.
The Agency’s current overtime policy does not address comp time, so staff conducted a survey
of SCV Water’'s benchmark agencies, as well as those entities that responded to a CSMFO
(California Society of Municipal Finance Officers) association survey to evaluate their offerings.
The results are shown in Attachment 1.

Currently, SCV Water offers overtime pay to non-exempt employees at one-and-a-half times
that of regular pay once an employee has worked over 40 hours in one week, and two times
regular pay for double-time if an employee has worked more than 12 hours in one day, oron a
holiday. As shown in the survey results, many benchmark agencies offer non-exempt
employees the option for comp time/CTO. Each benchmark policy varies with different earnings
caps, payout and carryover options, as reflected in Attachment 1.

After reviewing the CTO survey, it was determined that the Agency could benefit from
enhancing its leave policy by offering similar comp time options. Therefore, staff has developed
the following language to add to its OT policy.

Compensatory Time Off In lieu of Overtime/Double-Time Pay for Non-exempt employees:

¢ If an employee is authorized to work overtime/double-time, the employee may choose to
be compensated by pay or compensatory time off (CTO). If an employee chooses CTO,
it shall be for the amount of time equivalent to the extra hours worked in excess of their
regular schedule.

e Accumulated CTO may not exceed a bank of 40 hours. If an employee reduces the CTO
bank below 40 hours, then the employee may opt for CTO for future overtime/double
time worked until the employee again reaches the 40-hour cap.

e CTO may be used with pre-approval of the employee’s supervisor.


ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 5.2


¢ A maximum of 20 CTO hours may be carried over to the next calendar year. Employees
should make a good faith effort to use CTO hours prior to the end of the calendar year.
As of December of any year, any hours in excess of 20 remaining CTO hours will be
paid out.

¢ Additions to CTO will not be allowed for hours that are considered “billable” to outside
sources, i.e., developer-funded projects.

o Upon termination of employment, employees shall be entitled to cash payment for
unused CTO accumulated prior to their separation date.

Attachment 2 reflects these changes in redline copy, and for ease of reading, Attachment 3
reflects these revisions in a clean copy.

On November 20, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve a revised Employee Manual Section No. 10.0 — Overtime Policy.
Comp time options for exempt employees were also presented and discussed, but the
Committee opted not to move forward with those options at this time.

STRATEGIC NEXUS

The revision of this policy helps support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Goal F — High Performance
Team — “Grow a culture of continuous improvement that fosters SCV Water’s values,”
specifically Strategy F.2 — “Attract, train and retain quality staff” and Objective F.2.5 — “Update
the SCV Water's Employee Handbook.”

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

There are no increases to the Agency budget by offering CTO. There is a potential for a
reduction in overtime compensation if employees choose to use this CTO benefit.

RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the revised Employee Manual No. 10 — Overtime Policy.

RP

Attachments


ajacobs
Matt Stone


“IN0 paysed Jo Jeak [edsl) Juanbasqns e 0] pJemio) pallied
a(] J0UURD 3AR| 8y "Jeak [eosl 1ad aAes| aAnesSIuIWpE o SAep 8

A\
0] £ an1923J saakojdws 1dwax3 "sinoy Q8 JO wnwixew e 0] panidoe w>_HMHM_m_._EU<
8g ued pue awn Aloyesuadwod anlddal ued saakojdwa 1dwaxa-uoN | joshkepg-—¢ 08 'S9A layepn [edioluniy aouello]
"00%$ JOo wniwaid Ajrep e aAiedal |leys ‘a|npayds
Miom Jejnbal ayj Jo apisino Aep e uo alow Jo sinoy (8) ybia sylom
aakojdwa ays 1eyl Juawubisse ay) Jo Aep yoea o4 "00g$ SI wniwaid
Alrep ay1 ‘ajnpayas xlom rejnbal ayj Jo apiIsino Aep e uo sinoy
(8) wyb1a ueyr ssa| Ing ‘sinoy (i) 1noy 1sea| 1e sylom aakojdwa ay)
Aep yoea 10} Aed wniwaid 01 pajpnua ase saakojdws 1dwax3 ‘sinoy
o 01 dn ‘Aed 1O jo nai| ul 01D 8sooyd Aew seakojdwa 1dwaxa-uoN | Aedq wniwaid O ‘S9A [eD0S 40 10141S1Q Ja1eM uelijodolIaN
‘ysea ui
pred aq [jeys sinoy panioade Qi JO SS9IXa Ul paylom pue paroidde
BWINBAO ||V "SWILIBAO JO SINoY Qg UBYl 810W OU anJdde 0] pajiiua | Jeak Jad sinoy
9 [[eysS sWILBA0 pale|nwindde anJode oym Jun siyl ul seakoldw3 | gt 196 1ng ‘oN ovZ ‘SeA lamod 7 1a1ep 4o Juswnedsq saebuy so
"1SJl} pasn uoneoeA Jo Sinoy 08 se buo| se 1no
pred aq Aew sinoy oG 01 dn Mueg aAea alydoaiseie)d 0] pajeuop
10 paapo} aq [|IM A JO pua Ag SINoY Q9 JO SS2IXa Ul 8AR3| pasnun
‘uonisod uo Buipuadap ‘usAIb sy 8g8-g/ :aAeaT Juswabeuel
Xew 09 @M e Ul Sy Of Jo Ssaaxa 1o} awn dwod ybrens :1dwax3
Xew (g ‘dwi dwod Jo yseo :8910yd s,88ho|dws :1dwaxa-uop 09 ‘S9A 08 ‘S9A 10113s1Q 191ep\ [edidiunpy sauabliip se
VIN V/N 10141S1g J9¥ep\ youey aulAld]
‘10 se 1no pied s1ab ded puoAaq buiyiAue ‘aouepeq buljjoy awin
uoneoeA 0] Jajsuel) 186 feak repusjed Aq pasn Jou sinoy pasnun 08 ‘SOA 08 ‘SeA 1amod pue Jarep a[epus|o
'sInoy 08 paadxa
jou Aew sinoy Ho awin Aloresuadwod paniode [e1o) s,994o0/dwa uy 08 ‘S9A 08 ‘S9A 19111S1Q J81eAn fedioiunpy ulaiseq
Ajjenuue
shep -2
ulwpy Ing ‘oN (0] 10111S1Q Jarepn AsjeA ebuoweoan)
‘Jley-auo-pue-awn e awi dwod YO ‘Hey-e-pue
-awn se 1no pred ag Aew inoy 1O yoe3 "aAea| jenuue Jo ded e 10O anea anea| [enuue
1B 1IN0 pred @amyiom Jy O 10 Aepyiom Inoy-g8 puokaq panidde 1O [enuuy ‘oN uo spuadap soA 1011s1q Jarepn redidiunpy senbaje)d
'sinoy
0172 10 2101 & JO SS9IXa Ul 3wl Nal|-ul ayejnwindde 01 paniwiad aq jou
Ireys saakojdw3 Aed swiano jo nai ul Aed yum Jo awin azioyine
‘@akojdwa ay) JO JUBSUOD YuMm ‘Aew aAlndax3 uswuedaq ayl O AETN ovZ ‘S9A lamod pue Jarepn yueging
deo ‘seafojdwy | deas ‘seakojdwz mm.azmm< yiewyauag
Sjus WY jdwoxzg jdweaxz-uop 19)eM ADS

T AINJINHOVLLY

Aanins (01D) 1O awil Atoresuadwod 181eph ADS

19


edill
Attachment 1


"aAoQe pue

Jabeuew loj sinoy 08 pue siosiAladns 1o} sinoy Of :Seakojdwa [aA3)
1uswabeuew 1dwaxs 01 UBAID SI aABa| UILLPY "Sabem 0] palaAuo?
Sl 01D ‘sAep Qg UIYlIM Pasn 10U J| "PaxIOM SeM SWILIBA0 3yl Y2Iym
uo arep ayl Buimojo} sAep g UIyIM pasn ag 1snw 01D paules

aAea
ulwpy jo sinoy

Auy “Aed awiIBA0 JO N3IL UL YI0M WOJL JO SWi 10} paIayo sl 01D | 08/0% Ing ‘ON SOLIBA ‘SaA Jajep ajepwied
"92INISS JO SIedA sy} Jo}
[enJdde uoneoeA WnWIXew ay) payoeal aney Asyl |nun awil UoeIeA
JO Y2aM [euonIppe auo aAledal saakojdwsa 1dwax3 ‘Ajrenuue 1no pred
aq |[Im Bulurewal ayl pue yueq Q1D 418y} Ul SInoy 08 01 dn SAB3| 01 | UOIJeIBA }3aM
199|8 ued saakojdw3 ‘sinoy Oz Jo wnwixew ‘1dwaxa-uou 10} 01D | |86 Ing ‘oN orz ‘oA jJou3siq J9)ep [edidlunjy weq aiped
"JeaA [easl) JO pua e 1no pred saosueeg 10 ul 1IN0
pred si eyl puoAaq BuiyiAue ‘jjey-auo-pue-awi je awi pajnpayds
s,99A0|dwa ay) uey) Jarealb pax)Iom sinoy Aue JO nal| ul palayo 01D VIN OF ‘SOA JouIsIq 193 AUnwiwod yjowwep
uswisn(pe Arejes Aue 01 Joud 1no
pred aq 10 uaye] aQ 1SnWw aAes| ‘paules alam Aayl awn yaiym e Aed
JO 81eJ 8y} 1e aJe sinoy Ino-pred Auy “JeaA [easi) 1xau 03 JAAO palIed
aq Aew adueleq Yo siy 08 AlUO "OLD 10 1O 3|gnop e paules sl aned|
sinoy gT puoAaq paxiom Aep auo ul SINOH “jjey-auo-pue-awi Jo ayel juswabeuew siy
Te ¥2aM XJoM INoY-0f7 PUOASq PaxIoM SINOY JO NaI| Ul paiayo 01D | 0838b Ing ‘oN 0SZ ‘saA oueyjside) uenp ueg jo £319
‘parels
10U s|re1ap Jayun4 yaam ylom Jeinbal syl puoAaq paxiom sinoy
8S0U1 10} Jjey-auo-pue-awn pue ‘Aepxiom Jejnbal jo eyl puokaq
paJom sinoy Joy awn Jybrens 1e Aed | O o nal| Ul paIayo 01D 09 ‘S9A 09 ‘s9A BIBAIY 091d Jo A9
"yreap J0 juswalilal ‘uoneulw.al Je ael Jeinbail 1e 1no pred aq
lllm @duefeq O 10 Auy "1O Se 1o pred aq ||IM 07g PUoAaq SINOH “jley
-9u0 pue awi Je 1 O Jo naj| ul 8akojdwa 1dwaxa-uou 0] Paidayo 01D ON 0z ‘SO ofalp uoissipy jo 19
"JeaA [edsl} 8y} JO pua ayl Ag usxel aq ishw
UoIYyM SAB3| SAIINJSXS [enuue Jo SIy 79 aAladal saakojdwa 1dwax3
"1eal [easl) Jo pua e 1no pred sI 01D Jo adueeqg "1 0 1e 1no pred | aAes| 99xa siy
e s1y 08 J0 $S99X3 "jey-auo-pue-awi ye 1O JO N3l| Ul paI1ayo 01D | #9196 inq ‘ON 08 ‘SaA peqspie jo A9
Jeak Jad anes|
"1eak Jepuajed Jad anea| uipe sAep 0T uanlb saakojdws 1dwax3 | ujwpe shep g} 08 ‘SOA ejlie[) ejues jo A1)
soafojdwzy saafojdwg
sjusWIWoy ydwoex3y jdwex3z-uop fianb 4S9 0} papuodsal oym sapug JoY)0

Aanins (01D) 1O awil Atoresuadwod 181eph ADS

20



"191enb Jad pasn aq Aew 01D Siy 81 Ajuo ‘sinoy

paxueq 08 puoAaq no pred s jjey-e-pue-awi ye 10O Jo Ndlj ul 01O VIN 08 ‘SaA JoLsIq Jajep ¥aa1) [anbog
‘sjnoAed ou pue
Saoueleq J9A0ALIBD OU ‘)l 8S0| 10 1l 8Sn "Jeak Jepusjed jo Buluuibag
1e pajuelb sI 8AB3| 9AIINJ3Xa JO Sy g/ ‘seakojdwa 1dwaxa 104
‘Jeak repuajed jo pus Aq 1no pred 1o pasn aq ISnw SIY O JO SSOIXd
ul seaueeq Q19 "aAe9)| pred Jo wioj Jaylo Aue 01 Joud pasn ag 1snwi

pue JeaA 1xau 0] JISA0 palied ag Aew sInoY Of "J[ey-sauo-pue-awl} [sAe3] 99X3a JO Siy
JO 81kl 3y} e | O Jo naj| ul seakojdwa 1dwaxa-uou 01 palayo 01D | g2 19 Ing ‘oN 021 ‘seA Kouaby Jayep fjunog Jaseid
saalojdwz saafojdwg
sjusWIWoy ydwoex3y jdwex3z-uop fianb 4S9 0} papuodsal oym sapug JoY)0

Aanins (01D) 1O awil Atoresuadwod 181eph ADS

21



[This page intentionally left blank.]

22



ATTACHMENT 2 REDLINE VERSION

EMPLOYEE MANUAL

S CV Policy Title: OVERTIME POLICY

Policy No.: 10.0 Section Nos.: 10.0-10.34

WATER Approval Date: December 2023 Effective Date: January
2018January 2024

D

10.0 OVERTIME POLICY

The overtime policy shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) as those may be revised from time-to-time and with Board adopted policy and shall be applied to
all employees. Because the Agency is a public entity, it is not subject to the California state overtime
rules and laws.

Any employee may be requested to work in excess of the regular workday by its supervisor or the
General Manager-er-his-or-hersuperviser. The Agency will pay all non-exempt employees at the rate of
one-and-a-half times the regular rate of pay for all hours in excess of 40 in a workweek, except as
otherwise provided by FLSA. Paid leave hours (vacation, holiday, sick leave, bereavement leave, jury
duty, military leave, etc.) will be included in the calculation for determination of a 40-hour workweek.

In addition, the Agency pays time-and-a-half overtime for the first 4 hours of daily overtime and
2.0 times the base hourly salary for all consecutive overtime hours worked in excess of 4 hours, even
when spanning more than one workday. Daily overtime is hours worked in excess of the normal
workday (generally an 8-hour shift).

It will be the employee’s immediate supervisor’'s responsibility to determine if an employee
should work his or her regularly scheduled work shift after working overtime. Employees are not
permitted to work overtime without the express prior approval of their supervisor. Employees in
violation of this policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. Nonetheless, the
Agency will pay employees for all hours actually worked in a given workweek in accordance with
applicable federal law. Paid holidays, as an example, do not count as “hours worked” for purposes of
overtime calculations unless an employee actually worked on the holiday.

Approved By: Board of Directors

10.1 Scheduled Overtime

Scheduled overtime work is announced in advance and generally will involve an entire
department or operation. This type of overtime becomes part of the required workweek of the
people who are members of the department or operation. Employees that need to be excused
from performing scheduled overtime should speak with their supervisor, who will consider each
situation and the requirements of the department or operation in deciding whether an employee
may be excused from performing the scheduled overtime.

10.2 Incidental Overtime

Incidental overtime is not scheduled; it becomes necessary in response to extenuating
circumstances, such as responding to service calls or other problems that may arise in the
evenings or on holidays or weekends. Extra time may be needed to complete work normally
completed during regular hours. Incidental overtime may also become necessary when an
illness or emergency keeps co-workers from being at work as anticipated. It may require that
an employee return to the workplace for emergency work. The opportunity to work incidental
overtime will be given first to the employee who normally performs the task. If that employee
cannot work the overtime, the supervisor will offer the overtime to a suitably qualified person
who is available to perform the overtime work. In the event that no employee voluntarily agrees

SCV Water Employee Manual Page 10-2 of 10-2-4 Rev.
014/201812/2023 23



EMPLOYEE MANUAL

S CV Policy Title: OVERTIME POLICY

Policy No.: 10.0 Section Nos.: 10.0-10.34

WATER Approval Date: December 2023 Effective Date: January
2018January 2024

D

Approved By: Board of Directors

to work the necessary incidental overtime, the Agency may require an employee to work
incidental overtime regardless of whether the employee volunteered. An employee’s refusal to
work mandatory overtime will subject an employee to discipline, up to and including termination.

10.3 Compensatory Time Off

Compensatory time off, also referred to as comp time or CTO, is paid time off given to an
employee in lieu of overtime/double-time pay. Accumulated CTO has a rotating cap of 40
hours. When an employee utilizes their CTO hours and reduces their bank balance below 40,
the employee may once again earn CTO hours until it reaches the 40-hour cap. CTO may be
used with pre-approval of the employee’s supervisor. CTO may not be carried over to the next
calendar year. Employees should make a good faith effort to use CTO hours prior to the end
of the calendar vear.

10.3.1 CTO for Non-Exempt Employees

o If an employee is authorized to work overtime/double-time, the employee may
choose to be compensated by pay or compensatory time off (CTO). If an
employee chooses CTO, it shall be for the amount of time equivalent to the extra
hours worked in excess of their reqular schedule, i.e., if an employee works one
hour of OT, the employee will receive one and one half hours of CTO.

e Accumulated CTO may not exceed a bank of 40 hours. If an employee reduces
the CTO bank below 40 hours, then the employee may opt for CTO for future
overtime/double time worked until the employee again reaches the 40-hour cap.

e CTO may be used with pre-approval of the employee’s supervisor.

e A maximum of 20 CTO hours may be carried over to the next calendar year.
Employees should make a good faith effort to use CTO hours prior to the end of
the calendar year. As of December of any year, any hours in excess of 20
remaining CTO hours will be paid out.

e Additions to CTO will not be allowed for hours that are considered “billable” to
outside sources, i.e., developer-funded projects.

e Upon termination of employment, employees shall be entitled to cash payment for
unused CTO accumulated prior to their separation date.

10.4 Holiday Compensation

Full-time non-exempt employees who work on an Agency holiday will be paid for the
holiday and-at two times their normal hourly rate for each hour actually worked on the holiday,
in accordance with Policy 13.4.

SCV Water Employee Manual Page 10-2 of 10-2-4 Rev.
01/201812/2023 24



ATTACHMENT 3 CLEAN VERSION

EMPLOYEE MANUAL

S CV Policy Title: OVERTIME POLICY

Policy No.:  10.0 Section Nos.: 10.0-10.4

S0

WATER Approval Date: December 2023 Effective Date: January 2024

Approved By: Board of Directors

10.0 OVERTIME POLICY

The overtime policy shall be in compliance with the requirements of the Fair Labor Standards Act
(FLSA) as those may be revised from time-to-time and with Board adopted policy and shall be applied to
all employees. Because the Agency is a public entity, it is not subject to the California state overtime
rules and laws.

Any employee may be requested to work in excess of the regular workday by its supervisor or the
General Manager. The Agency will pay all non-exempt employees at the rate of one-and-a-half times the
regular rate of pay for all hours in excess of 40 in a workweek, except as otherwise provided by FLSA.
Paid leave hours (vacation, holiday, sick leave, bereavement leave, jury duty, military leave, etc.) will be
included in the calculation for determination of a 40-hour workweek.

In addition, the Agency pays time-and-a-half overtime for the first 4 hours of daily overtime and
2.0 times the base hourly salary for all consecutive overtime hours worked in excess of 4 hours, even
when spanning more than one workday. Daily overtime is hours worked in excess of the normal
workday (generally an 8-hour shift).

It will be the employee’s immediate supervisor’'s responsibility to determine if an employee
should work his or her regularly scheduled work shift after working overtime. Employees are not
permitted to work overtime without the express prior approval of their supervisor. Employees in
violation of this policy will be subject to discipline, up to and including termination. Nonetheless, the
Agency will pay employees for all hours actually worked in a given workweek in accordance with
applicable federal law. Paid holidays, as an example, do not count as “hours worked” for purposes of
overtime calculations unless an employee actually worked on the holiday.

10.1 Scheduled Overtime

Scheduled overtime work is announced in advance and generally will involve an entire
department or operation. This type of overtime becomes part of the required workweek of the
people who are members of the department or operation. Employees that need to be excused
from performing scheduled overtime should speak with their supervisor, who will consider each
situation and the requirements of the department or operation in deciding whether an employee
may be excused from performing the scheduled overtime.

10.2 Incidental Overtime

Incidental overtime is not scheduled; it becomes necessary in response to extenuating
circumstances, such as responding to service calls or other problems that may arise in the
evenings or on holidays or weekends. Extra time may be needed to complete work normally
completed during regular hours. Incidental overtime may also become necessary when an
illness or emergency keeps co-workers from being at work as anticipated. It may require that
an employee return to the workplace for emergency work. The opportunity to work incidental
overtime will be given first to the employee who normally performs the task. If that employee
cannot work the overtime, the supervisor will offer the overtime to a suitably qualified person
who is available to perform the overtime work. In the event that no employee voluntarily agrees

SCV Water Employee Manual Page 10-2 of 10-4 Rev. 1228023


edill
Attachment 3

edill
Clean Version


EMPLOYEE MANUAL

S CV Policy Title: OVERTIME POLICY

Policy No.:  10.0 Section Nos.: 10.0-10.4

S0

WATER Approval Date: December 2023 Effective Date: January 2024

Approved By: Board of Directors

to work the necessary incidental overtime, the Agency may require an employee to work
incidental overtime regardless of whether the employee volunteered. An employee’s refusal to
work mandatory overtime will subject an employee to discipline, up to and including termination.

10.3 Compensatory Time Off

Compensatory time off, also referred to as comp time or CTO, is paid time off given to
an employee in lieu of overtime/double-time pay. Accumulated CTO has a rotating cap of 40
hours. When an employee utilizes their CTO hours and reduces their bank balance below 40,
the employee may once again earn CTO hours until it reaches the 40-hour cap. CTO may be
used with pre-approval of the employee’s supervisor. CTO may hot be carried over to the next
calendar year. Employees should make a good faith effort to use CTO hours prior to the end
of the calendar year.

10.3.1 CTO for Non-Exempt Employees

o If an employee is authorized to work overtime/double-time, the employee may
choose to be compensated by pay or compensatory time off (CTO). If an
employee chooses CTO, it shall be for the amount of time equivalent to the extra
hours worked in excess of their regular schedule, i.e., if an employee works one
hour of OT, the employee will receive one and one half hours of CTO.

¢ Accumulated CTO may not exceed a bank of 40 hours. If an employee reduces
the CTO bank below 40 hours, then the employee may opt for CTO for future
overtime/double time worked until the employee again reaches the 40-hour cap.

e CTO may be used with pre-approval of the employee’s supervisor.

e A maximum of 20 CTO hours may be carried over to the next calendar year.
Employees should make a good faith effort to use CTO hours prior to the end of
the calendar year. As of December of any year, any hours in excess of 20
remaining CTO hours will be paid out.

e Additions to CTO will not be allowed for hours that are considered “billable” to
outside sources, i.e., developer-funded projects.

e Upon termination of employment, employees shall be entitled to cash payment for
unused CTO accumulated prior to their separation date.

10.4 Holiday Compensation

Full-time non-exempt employees who work on an Agency holiday will be paid for the
holiday at two times their normal hourly rate for each hour actually worked on the holiday, in
accordance with Policy 13.4.

SCV Water Employee Manual Page 10-2 of 10-4 Rev. 1228023



ITEM NO.

& '

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: November 21, 2023
TO: Board of Directors
FROM: Rochelle Patterson

Chief Finance and Administrative Officer

SUBJECT: Approve a Revised Driving and Vehicle Policy

SUMMARY AND DISCUSSION

Management recommends approval of the attached revised Driving and Vehicle Policy for the
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. This policy was originally adopted in September 2019 and
needs updating.

The Driving and Vehicle Policy establishes uniform guidelines for employees whose positions at
the Agency may require driving an Agency vehicle. It also establishes procedures regarding
driver’s licenses, insurance, driving safety, records, restrictions, and authorizations for overnight
use.

Since September 2019, there have been organizational and workflow changes. The revised
policy addresses current practices and adds clarifying language for Agency Vehicles Approved
for Long-Term Overnight Use, section 6.0.

The addition of the perimeter map (Attachment 1 to the policy) provides clear direction to
Agency managers, supervisors, and employees with specific authority and responsibility on
policy guidelines for long-term overnight use of Agency vehicles. Adding the perimeter map will
ensure that Agency employees are close enough to respond when called and reduce the
number of miles on Agency vehicles.

On November 20, 2023, the Finance and Administration Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to approve a revised Driving and Vehicle Policy.

STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS
The revision of this policy helps to support SCV Water’s Strategic Plan Objective F.1.2. —
“Standardize operating procedures and business processes across the organization,” as well as

Objective F.1.3 — “Update, develop and maintain clear and comprehensive policies for SCV
Water.”

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None.

27


ajacobs
Rochelle Patterson

ajacobs
Item 5.3


RECOMMENDATION

The Finance and Administration Committee recommends that the Board of Directors approve
the attached revised Driving and Vehicle Policy.

RP

Attachment

M2

28


ajacobs
Matt Stone


- Fee

1.0

2.0

3.0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September

w ATER December 2023 2019January 2024
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

PURPOSE

Some positions at the Agency require the ability to drive a motor vehicle. The purpose of
this policy-establishes is to establish uniform procedures that apply to employees who
drive Agency and/or personal vehicles for Agency business. This policy also establishes
procedures for reviewing employee Department of Motor Vehicle (DMV) driving records
reports and for addressing restriction, suspension or revocation of a required California
driver’s license. All Agency-provided vehicles are for Agency use only and may be taken
overnight only with prior authorization of the-superviser Department Manager.

Employees shall drive in accordance with the following:

e Applicable local, State and Federal laws
Safe and defensive driving practices

¢ Reasonable prudence to conserve fuel, energy and maintain vehicles at the
highest operating efficiency

e The Agency’s liability, property and other insurance programs, and in a manner
to reduce liability to such.

VALID DRIVER’S LICENSE

All employees whose job responsibilities require the ability to drive a motor vehicle
throughout the duration of their employment with the Agency shall maintain a valid
driver’s license, appropriate to the kind of vehicle they are required to drive, as well as
an acceptable driving record. An acceptable driving record shall be defined as a driving
record with five (5) or fewer points assigned by the Bepartment-of-Meoter-\ehicles
£DMVZ). In addition, the employee will be part of the DMV Employer Pull Notice
Program. The Agency participates in a system that regularly checks the DMV records of
all employees who drive as part of their job.

Any employee who does not maintain a valid, appropriate driver’s license and an
acceptable driving record, or who is determined to be uninsurable by the Agency, may
be subject to disciplinary action up to and including suspension, demotion, transfer or
termination. Any change in an employee’s driving license must be reported immediately
to his or her supervisor.

Before commencing employment, each employee required to drive for Agency business
shall provide a copy of histhertheir driver’s license.

GENERAL RULES AND REGULATIONS FOR USE OF AGENCY VEHICLES
The Agency’s Management Vehicle or Vehicle Allowance policy and employment
contracts apply to senior management positions regarding use of Agency

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2019January 2024 1of6

29



Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
. S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

w ATER December 2023 2049January 2024
: i DMS #

Approved By: Board of Directors

vehicles. Unless in conflict with the Management Vehicle or Vehicle Allowance policy or
employment contracts, provisions of this Driving and Vehicle Policy apply to the senior
management positions.

Agency vehicles are provided to eligible employees to enable them to efficiently perform
their job functions for the Agency. They are not intended to be fringe benefit items.

1) Agency vehicles may not be used for personal business except for incidental use
during the course of official business (e.qg., stopping for lunch while on business). No
one except authorized employees and business guests may be transported in an
Agency vehicle_unless the authorized employee receives prior -at-any-tirre approval
of the Department Manager. The transportation of personal property within an
Agency vehicle is prohibited at all times, except for incidental items such as a
briefcase, gym-bag or other property ordinarily used by employees while they are on
Agency business. This provision applies to employees on On-Call Duty.

2) Smoking and the use of tobacco products is prohibited in all Agency vehicles.

3) An employee to whom a vehicle is assigned shall be fully responsible for the general
maintenance and proper care of the vehicle, e.g., maintaining proper fluid levels and
tire air pressure. The employee shall present the vehicle for repair, service, or
adjustment whenever such is needed, and preventative maintenance when due. It is
the responsibility of the assigned driver to immediately notify the Fleet and
Warehousing sSupervisor of any vehicle maintenance needs, damage or safety
problems by submitting a completed “Vehicle Condition Checklist” form.

4) Employees shall drive vehicles with reasonable prudence to conserve fuel, energy
and sustain them at the highest operating efficiency.

5) Itis the responsibility of the assigned driver to ensure that copies of the Vehicle
Registration, proof of Agency insurance coverage, and a Vehicle Accident Report
Packet are kept in the vehicle at all times.

6) Ifinvolved in an accident, even if minor, the employee must immediately report the
accident to their supervisor and must also complete a “Driver’s Report of Accident”
form.

7) Employees shall drive in accordance with defensive driving practices.
8) Agency vehicles may not be loaned to consultants or contractors.
4.0 AGENCY VEHICLE DRIVER SAFETY RULES

1) The use of an Agency vehicle while under the influence of intoxicants or other drugs
that could impair driving ability is forbidden and is sufficient cause for discipline, up to

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2019January 2024 20f6
30



S0

5.0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September

w ATER December 2023 2019January 2024
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

2)

3)
4)

5)

6)

7

and including termination of employment. Please refer to the Drug-Free Workplace
Policy in Section 5 of the Employee Manual Section for more information.

No driver shall operate an Agency vehicle when his/her ability to do so safely has
been impaired by illness, fatigue, injury, prescription or over-the-counter (OTC)
medication.

All drivers and passengers operating or riding in an Agency vehicle must wear seat
belts, even if air bags are available.

No whautherizednon-Agency personnel are allowed to drive or ride in Agency
vehicles, without prior the approval from Department Manager-

Drivers are responsible for the security of Agency vehicles assigned to them. The
vehicle engine must be shut off, ignition keys removed, and vehicle doors locked
whenever the vehicle is left unattended, and Agency or personal property removed.
All State, Federal and local laws must be obeyed, including the use of hands-free
technology. Please refer to the Agency’s Wireless Device Policy for further
information.

In the interest of safety, engaging in activities that distract employees while driving
on Agency business is prohibited. If an employee must make or answer a cell phone
call while driving, he or she should pull over and stop if possible. If an employee
must use a phone while driving, he or she should do so with caution and in a manner
that does not interfere with safe driving and in compliance with State law (i.e.,
headsets and hands-free technology).

AGENCY VEHICLES APPROVED FOR SHORT-TERM OVERNIGHT USE

Overnight or longer-term use _of an Aagency vehicle by an employee must have prior
written approval by a supervisererDepartment -mManager or General Manager as
follows:

1)

2)

3)

Overnight use_(unplanned overtime or emergencies) requires prior witter-approval

of the immediate-superviseror Department Manager.

Temporary use for more than one day requires prior written approval of the
Department Manager.

Temporary use of more than one week requires prior written approval of the General
Manager or his/her designee.

Prior written approval is required, using the “Authorization to Take Home Agency
Vehicle” form.

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2019January 2024 30of6

31



Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
. S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

w ATER December 2023 2019January 2024
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

6.0 AGENCY VEHICLES APPROVED FOR LONG-TERM OVERNIGHT USE

Management positions and key Agency positions with extensive field duties_are-and
considered to be on call at all times, and may be assigned vehicles that may be stored at
the employee S reS|dence within the perimeter map as shown in Attachment 1. II'-he

1) The-eEmployees must have the-proper authority and responsibility level for making
emergency decisions and skills to perform necessary tasks. Such positions include
but are not limited to superintendents-and-supervisors of maintenance, operations,
fleet, facilities, mechanical and preduction water systems departments, as well as
management.

41)2) Managers and supervisors defined in section 6.1, having proper authority and
responsibility, are authorized to take Agency vehicles home if home residence is
within 30 minutes as shown in the perimeter map, Attachment 1.

2y3)  Employees designated by their manager or supervisor to be on standby, on call
or other emergency response assignment and whose home residence is 30 minutes
as shown in the perimeter map as shown in Attachment 1.

Prior written approval is required, using the “Authorization to Take Home Agency Vehicle” form.

7.0 USE OF PRIVATE VEHICLES FOR AGENCY BUSINESS

1) The use of private vehicles for Agency business will be reimbursed at the rate
allowed by the IRS (subject to IRS updates).

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2019January 2024 40of6
32



e

8.0

POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September

w ATER December 2023 2019January 2024
Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

2) An employee using a private vehicle on Agency business must maintain legally
acceptable automobile insurance with liability coverage indicating the minimum limits
required by the State of California.

3) The employee’s private vehicle insurance is the primary insurance on the vehicle.

4) While operating an Agency vehicle or driving a personal vehicle on Agency business,
the driver must possess a valid State of California, Department of Motor Vehicles
(DMV) Driver’s License, and must comply with the requirement of the California
Vehicle Code and local regulations and ordinances.

SUSPENSION OF DRIVING PRIVILEGES
In addition to maintaining an acceptable driving record and insurance, any employee
may have-his-er-her-their right to use an Agency vehicle suspended by the General

Manager—orthe- Human-Resources/Risk-Management-Supervisor, if the individual:

1) Is convicted of a serious driving offense, or a series of lesser offenses related to
safety

2) Has been involved in an accident involving damage in an Agency vehicle, where the
driver has been found to be at fault

3) Isjudged to have incurred excessive insurance claims
4) Has not maintained the vehicle in a suitable manner
5) Has breached any of the agreed conditions

6) Has lost driving privileges or insurance

7) Has failed to complete defensive driving training

In addition, the employee may be subject to discipline.

9.0

TAX TREATMENT ON USE OF AGENCY-OWNED VEHICLES

Governmental agencies are required to withhold taxes on the personal use of
government owned vehicles. The Agency includes the personal use taxable value on the
employee’s W-2 based on personal use of an Agency provided vehicle. There are three
methods for computing tax treatment. A governmental Agency may use the lower of the
three methods. The Agency utilizes the Annual Lease Value Plus method and
Commuting Valuation method.

1) Annual Lease Value Method Plus value of employer provided fuel. Business and
personal mileage is monitored. The total annual value x personal use % = reportable
income.

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2019January 2024 50of6

33



POLICIES, RULES AND REGULATIONS
S CV Title: DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY

‘ Approval Date: September2019 | Effective Date: September
“ WATER December 2023 2019January 2024

Approved By: Board of Directors | DMS #

2) Cents-per-mile rate, times personal mileage.

3) Commuting Valuation method. Vehicles provided/assigned to Agency employees
and approved to be stored at home are taxed on the value of each one-way
commute of $1.50, to and from work.

Managers are required by the IRS to use the Annual Lease Value Method due to being
considered “Controlled Employees.” A controlled employee is either an elected official
and/or executive Level V employee. Based on the 2019 compensation level per U.S.
Office of Personnel Management, this annual salary is currently $156,000. This amount
is subject to U.S. Office of Personnel Management updates.

(Originally adopted September 2019; revised December 2023)

DRIVING AND VEHICLE POLICY September2049January 2024 6 of 6
34



abplIjul
p! «.!./_n,_ obnpJspA

sdely [euid\syad
Z -T\Adljod @2ue3siq SpIYRA YMADS\Od SIDPW\sIafold SI9V\safoid\siB\sjso\\ :Aemuyred
WO BMADSINOA MMM//:sdY
‘pajiqiyoud s uonewloyul sy} Jo ajesal Auy ‘pupy Aue jo
Aueuem Aue Jnoyym papinoid ale ejep pajeloosse pue dew siy|
Kouaby Jajep) Asjlep elle|) ejues

[ |
SallN 0L S 0

diLvm

IM
}selo4 |euolleN
sojabuy
djed [eua) (¥
Atepunog soin1es YMADS ()
I Atepunog SInuin 0€
s9|abuy soT]
—
=
euuaAe

r L >

=

I

@)

A uojoy

T

T

<

1]
&
30048137 ]
3 youey Jeniy
puejiead
alepwijed
spue|ybiy
MB3IA H8sa(d
1lodly |euoibay
slepwjed
I'H Z3enp
asliung
[oN]

19)seouen]

de ]

uadQ suiejuno|y

,ﬂ///
.

uadQ 1udoelpy
}salo/s8|8buy

ealy SsauJap|ip
uiejuno|y o1bep

290|nQg enby

}S819 ujooul

aoedg T

g CRIETTTYY |
@ |
P |
m
= |
<
| _
| — |
| |
| _
ooedg uadQ % |
weq wasuey = LJW___I ZPELELD \/\ IEETe)
e — | N\ _ Ajunwwo)n
opueuUle UBS \
n/ L Kajlep 1uis
///// /M/ /.
/,,_mE_>w /\/ \
\ A
;m_>/W>__oHuU\ /. /

Aajlep usain

9)e7 yjeqezi|3

saybny ayen

1912 WlJad :

niid

WY 00:TT-00:6 U9aMIaq Aepseam

oA
- sdeyy 916009 :Ag palinboy ejeq awi] |[oAeIL ol
1 ‘uoneunssp
M_ 3] Sem dled |enua) “suonelado [oaely kg
S |ew.ou Buninp paJinboe sem ejeq 230N
yiedioop
yriomd3
e
o|epspieg 19A

¥ ydeibajol g al0Wijig

a10w(|14 YyloN

abnjey
SJIIPIIM [euolieN
J\ JoddoH

Jusawyoelly



edill
Attachment 1


[This page intentionally left blank.]

36



ITEM NO.
5.4

SCV

WATER

&

Monthly
Financial
Report

AUGUST 2023


ajacobs
Item 5.4


[This page intentionally left blank.]

38



Statement of
Revenues and Expenses



[This page intentionally left blank.]

40



"quIay UOHEX3UUY ‘BW0DU| 1S8Ialu| ‘Senuanay qe ‘404 ‘Saus (180 ‘Xel Auadold %T ‘siuswasinquiay ¥ Siuel :apnjoul senuanay Bunessdo-uoN

‘Yiuow 0} yuow wouy Aren syoafoid fendeo jo Buiwny (1)

‘sydigdal syuelo) pue saxe] Auadold ‘@84 Anoede) Ayjioe payebpng uey Jaybiy 03 anp Jaybiy ate sanuansy bunelsado-uoN  (U)

's994 Aloreinbay a8y Jo Buiwi ayy 01 anp 196png Japun ate SadIAIBS apISINQO 'SadloAul Bulljig 3OS Jo Bulwin ay) 01 anp 1amo| sjenioe asuadxa AN (6)

‘sasuadxa Jayem 8109 pue Buiwuly sy Jo Buiwn o} anp Jamo| sasuadxa i1snbny  (3)

*S92IAI8S Bulljig Jo Buiwin 01 anp palebpng ueyl 1oMo| a1e SadIAIBS apISINQO "%00T Je Bunelado spialy sejos pue Bulljig uosip3 jo Buiwn o) anp 18Bpnqg Jepun Jamod paseyaind  (8)
'S921A19s Bulljig Jo Buiwin 0} anp paiabpng uey) JaMo| aJe S82IAI9S apISINQ ‘palabpng uey) JOMO| S8IIAISS JUB)NSUOD [euolssajold  (P)

: g uos|p3 jo Buiwn o3 anp 186png Japun sal | Jo Buiwn 0y anp palabpng uey) Jamo| ale sadIAIas apIsino  (9)

‘sasuadxa [efa] pue uonebni] arelojydlad jo Buiwn ayl 01 anp paebpng ueyl Jamo| Sa2IAIBS apising  (q)

‘(3snbBny ul paAi@dal ulel Jo saydul TL'G) "UOIBAISSUOD pue Jayream 0} anp pajedionue uey) Jamo| sem uondwnsuod [elang  (e)

000°02$ PUe 90T Uey aiow jo sebueyd Alyluo

(22)  (%ze) €.1'90.°0T $ (rvz'608'ce) $ (T20'€0T'€2) $ uonisod 19N ul (aseal0aQ) asealou| (%621) 0£8'0€8's ¢ (00'09€'T) $ 9z8'0LY'Y ¢ (z2)
(12)  (%62) /T9'99.'TT $ (ev1'260'TY) $ (9z5'sze’62) $ (sesuadx3) pue sanuansy Buiresado-uoN 18N (9%6G2T) ¥89'Zhv'9 ¢ (1€6'T9T'S) $ /v.'082'T $ (12)
(02) wvz (185'T) (299'9) (8vz'8) sasuadx3 1saJelu| VL1IgS pue sasea (%8) 692 (eeg'e) (r90'€) (02)
(6T) %0 0 (692'89.°0€) (692'89.'0€) 92IAI9S 192d %0 - - - (67)
(8T)  (%88) 608'/GT'TT (2ge'veL'e) (8%5'995'T) 09 Aed - sjosloid Juswanoidwy fended (1) (%E8) 1€2'962'S (821'29¢€'9) (zv6'S0T'T) (81)
(LT) %Sz 06€'0T9 $ 6vT'L0v'Z  $ 6EGLT0'E  $ | Senuanay buielsado-uoN (U ) %66 8.T'98T'T ¢ G/G'€0Z'T  $ €GL'688'C  $ (271)
(sasuadx3) pue sanuanay buieiadp-uoN
(91)  (%ST) (rvv'090'T) ¢ 668'282°L $ SSv'2zz'9 $ (sosuadx3) sanuanay Buiresado 1N (%9T1) (re8'TT9) % Z€6'108°€  $ 6.006T'C $ (91)
(ST)  (%1€) (ovz'sSL'y) ¢ €22V12'ST  $ £86'GSY'0T_ $ sasuadx3 Bunesado [elol (%692) (8€€'6€0'2)  $ 9£8'2€6'L  $ 6617'€68'S  $ (s1)
1) (%) (228'191T) 0T9'999 €8/'705 $921MI8S Buneauibug %2 805'9 soe'eee €18'6€€ (1)
(e1)  (%92) (9e€'965) Yy¥'8TE S 80T'22.'T soueUBUR 7 Juswieal] ‘Airend Jsrem (B) (%62) (891'v1E) 1¥€'202'T 6/8'1G8 (e1)
(z1)  (%.6) (zse'eor) 9ET'8TY ¥8.'YT Aiddns jo @21nos (4) (%00T) (890'602) 890'602 - (z1)
(1) (%L1) (S52v'068) 69/'9/8'T ¥62'986 $90In0sayY J181eM (9) (%82) (z€0's92) G8E'8E6 €5€'€.9 (T1)
(o1)  (%L1) (€86'0¥7'T) T90'S¥0'E 8/0'709'T abeiols » s|lam Buidwnd (p) (%TS) (296'906) TET'96L'T 891'688 (o1)
6 (%er) (r20'27T2) €92'6G8'T 68T'ZV9'T uonnquisiq % suel L %S 20v'8y TET'TE6 €€5'6.6 ()
8 (%te) (S18'09T) 69E'TTS ¥6G'0G€ ared Jswolsnd (p) (%ST) (ev6'8€) 689'G5¢ TYL'9Te (8)
(1) (%s1) (sov'eT2) 1682007 6817'€82' 11%® ulwpy ‘soueuld (9) (%zT) (L18'Tv2) 8776'800'C 2EV'191'T (2)
(9)  (%ee) (t26'29T) % ¥19'GTS $ €0.'LVE $ wawabeue () (%ve) (852'88) $ 1€8'15¢ $ 6.5'69T $ (9)
sasuadx3 Bunesado
Q) (%92) (789'878'S) $ zer'l6v'2e $ 8€¥'8/9'9T § sanuaay bBupesado [eloL (%€2) (16T°759'2) $ 69.'V€L'TT ¢ 8/G'€80'6 ¢ (s)
) %9z 085'6¢2 000'STT 08S'¥¥T sabreyd pue saa4 osIN %6T 082'TT 00009 082'T. (¥)
(€) wet §92'0T 00Z'18 59116 pajohosy - safes Jarem %9t 88/'ST 009'0% 88€E'6S (€)
@ (%0) (2L7) T9€'0S ¥81'0S dMM - S3[es Jate (%0) (88) 08T'G2 260'G2 ()
(1) (%92) (zge'sss's) $ 295'052'2  $ 602'26€'9T $ saes 1arem (') (%€2) (T21'189'2) % 686'809'TT $ 818'/26'8 $ (1)
sanuanay buneiado
IVERIEN ERIVEITEIN 19bpng lenioy JERIEN ERIVEITEIN 19b6png renjoy
9)Je-0]-Jes A polad 1uslind
(H) (9) €)} @ (@ () (@ (v)

palpneun - £2'1€'g Bulpu3 pollad puz ay) Jod
wwmcwaxm_ pue sanusAay JO juswalels
191BM ADS

41



[This page intentionally left blank.]

42



Investment Report



[This page intentionally left blank.]

44



Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Cash and Investment Summary
August 31, 2023

Foreign Issues 143%  CMOs s ectgsclk\edand Investments Customer Billing
4.38% s iti Supranationals Operating Bank Accounts US Treasury Bills
ecurities s Account 4.25% 0.53%
Corporate Issues 2.22% 0.45% 2.93%
11.16%
Govt Money Market Commercial Paper
0.14% 0.46%
Certificates of Deposit \
0.88% AR US Bank - Cash With
— Fiscal Agent 23.74%
State and Local Govt —
Bonds 4.48%
US Bank Trust Account
0.40%
US Gov't Issues 15.28%
LAIF-Operating
10.88%
US Treasury Notes 16.38% LACPIF
0.01%
Operating Account-Incl FCF's, SWP & CIP XXX-10101 S 13,433,647 4.25%
Customer Billing Bank Accounts 101-10105 1,679,672 0.53%
US Treasury Bills (Cash Equivalent) 101-10104 9,264,942 2.93%
Commercial Paper 101-10106 1,444,736 0.46%
US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent 101-102XX 75,036,899 23.74%
US Bank Trust Account (1% Prop Tax) 101-10202 1,275,092 0.40%
LAIF - Operating 101-11061 34,396,535 10.88%
LAC Pooled Investment Fund 101-11062 22,030 0.01%
US Treasury Notes 101-11063 51,783,707 16.38%
US Gov't Issues (excl T-Bills & T-Notes) 101-11064 48,287,314 15.28%
State and Local Government Bonds 101-11065 14,149,196 4.48%
Certificates of Deposit 101-11066 2,773,230 0.88%
Government Money Mkt Fund 101-11067 427,105 0.14%
Corporate Issues 101-11068 35,285,740 11.16%
Foreign Issues 101-11069 4,511,205 1.43%
CMOs 101-11070 13,854,753 4.38%
Asset Backed Securities 101-11071 7,007,230 2.22%
Supranationals 101-11072 1,438,891 0.45%
S 316,071,926 100.00%
Estimated Refundable Developer Deposits: B 7,322,739 |included
in totals
Portfolio-wide Investments:
Weighted Average Yield 4.448%
Rochelle Patterson, MPA Amy Aguer, CPA
Treasurer/Chief Financial & Administrative Officer Controller

All investment actions executed since the last report have been made in full compliance with the Investment Policy,
and the Agency will meet its expenditure obligations for the next six months as required by Government Code
Section 53646(b)(2) and (3), respectively.

45


phoover
Signature - Rochelle Patterson

phoover
Signature - Amy Aguer


AGENCY FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts

WEF Operating Account-Incl FCF's, SWP & CIP
Less: WF Restricted Cash (FCFs, SWP & CIP)
US Treasury Bills - CAM

Customer Billing - Northstar Account
Commercial Paper

Customer Billing - enQuesta Account

US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent

US Bank Trust Account (1% Prop Tax)

Less: Restricted Cash US Bank Accts -SWP

SCV Water

Consolidated Cash & Investment Summary

Subtotal - Cash & Sweep Accounts Unrestricted

Investments - Unrestricted

Local Agency Investment Fund

LAC Pooled Investment Fund

US Treasury Notes - US Bank

US Govt Issues (excl T-Notes & T-Bills)
Taxable Municipal Issues (State & Local)
Certificates of Deposit

Government Money Mkt Fund
Corporate Issues

Foreign Issues

CMOs-Collateralized Mortgage Obligations
Asset Backed Securities

Supranationals

Less: Restricted Investments - FCF

Less: Restricted Investments - SWP

Cash and Investments - Restricted

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Cash

Facility Capacity Fee Fund - Investments
State Water Project - Cash (WF & US Bank)
State Water Project - Investments

TOTAL AGENCY CASH & INVESTMENTS

CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS

Cash & Sweep Accounts (WF & US Bank)
US Bank - Cash with Fiscal Agent
Local Agency Investment Fund - Restricted

TOTAL CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECT FUNDS

Notes

0O NV A WN

8/31/2023
Note Acct # Balance Total % of Total
XXX-10101 S 13,433,647
1 2XX-10101 (2,770,939)
101-10104 9,264,942
101-10105 269,541
101-10106 1,444,736
101-10107 1,410,131
101-102XX 24,536
101/204-10202 1,275,092
1 204-10202 -
S 24,351,686 7.70%
101/202/204-1106 S 34,396,535
101-11062 22,030
101-11063 51,783,707
101/204-11064 48,287,314
101-11065 14,149,196
101-11066 2,773,230
101/204-11067 427,105
101-11068 35,285,740
101-11069 4,511,205
101-11070 13,854,753
101-11071 7,007,230
101-11072 1,438,891
2 202-11061 (9,479,196)
3 204-11061-11067 (88,074,656)
Subtotal - Investments Unrestricted S 116,383,086 36.82%
4 202-10101 S -
5 202-11061 9,479,196
6 204-10XXX 3,067,262
7 204-11061/11063/ 88,074,656
Subtotal - Investments Restricted 100,621,113 31.83%
$ 241,355,885
8 220/223-10101 S (296,322)
223-102XX 75,012,363
220-11061 -
$ 74,716,041 23.64%
TOTAL CASH AND INVESTMENTS $ 316,071,926 100.00%

Less: Restricted Cash - FCF's, SWP & CIP

Less: Restricted Investments - FCF's Legacy SCWD
Less: Restricted Investments - State Water Project
Restricted Cash - FCF's (Txfr'd to cover Debt Svc)

Restricted Investments - FCF's (SCWD Legacy)

Restricted Cash - SWP (State Water Project)

Restricted Investments - SWP (State Water Project)

Restricted Cash - CIP 2020A Bond Proceeds

46



8/31/2023

Agency-wide General Funds Invested:

Cash & Cash-Equivalents

Wells Fargo Pooled Operating Cash

Less: CIP 2020A/2023A Pooled Cash

Wells Fargo Customer Care Accounts

US Bank DS Accounts

US Bank 1% Property Tax Trust Account

US T-Bills (Cash Equiv) - CAM

Commercial Paper (Cash Equiv) - CAM

First American Gov't MM (Cash Equiv) -CAM

Per Chandler Asset Management and US Bank Custody Trust Statements

Total Cash & Cash-Equivalents

Investments External to US Bank / Chandler Asset Management

Local Agency Investment Fund (LAIF)
LA County Pooled Investment Fund

Purchase Maturity Est'd

Cost Yield Date Date Yield

$ 13,433,647 5.202% Various Liquid $ 698,825
296,322 5.202% Various Liquid 15,415
1,679,672 5.202% Various Liquid 87,377
75,036,899 4.815% Various Liquid 3,613,027
1,275,092 3.900% Various 08/15/23 49,729
9,264,942 5.079% Various Liquid 470,552
1,444,736 5.158% Various Various 74,512
427,105 4.940% Various Liquid 21,099

$ 102,858,416 4.891% Weighted Avg Yield $ 5,030,536
$ 34,396,535 3.434% Various Liquid 1,181,177
22,030 3.780% Various Liquid 833

Investments per US Bank / Chandler Asset Management Statements (excluding Cash Equivalents)

Asset-Backed Securities - CAM

Federal Agencies - CAM

CMO's - Collateralized Mortgages - CAM
Corporate Issues

Municipal Bonds (State/Local Gov'ts) CAM
Negotiable Certificates of Deposit - CAM
US Treasury Notes - US Bank

Foreign Issues & SupraNationals

Total Investments

Cash & Investments Non-CIP

7,007,230 5.545% Various Various $ 388,523
48,287,316 5.239% Various Various 2,529,677
13,854,753 4.833% Various Various 669,538
35,285,740 5.230% Various Various 1,845,438
14,149,196 5.312% Various Various 751,625

2,773,230 5.504% Various Various 152,640
51,783,707 4.615% Various Various 2,389,970

5,950,096 5.269% Various Various 313,519

$ 213,509,835 4.234% Weighted Avg Yield $ 9,040,930
$ 316,368,250 4.448% Portfolio Weighted Avg Yield $ 14,071,465

Reconciliation with Portfolio-wide Summary

CIP 2020A Cash
CIP 2020A LAIF

CIP Cash & Investments

Portfolio Wide Total Cash & Investments

See Note 1 On Consolidated TB

DMS #35851

CAM Managed Assets / Held at US Bank in Trust

$ (296,322) US T-Bills (Cash Equiv) $ 9,264,942
0 Commercial Paper 1,444,736
First American Gov't MM 427,105
(296,322) Asset-Backed Securities 7,007,230
Federal Agencies 48,287,316
$ 316,071,928 CMO's - Collateralized Mtgs 13,854,753
Corporate Issues (excluding Foreign 35,285,740
2 Issues)
Municipal Bonds (State/Local) 14,149,196
Negotiable CDs 2,773,230
US Treasury Notes 51,783,707
Foreign Notes 5,950,096
CAM Assets Managed $ 190,228,053
60%
47



[This page intentionally left blank.]

48



3-Month Cashflow



[This page intentionally left blank.]

50



SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for August FY24 to October FY24

DESCRIPTION QNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED _
Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees
Beginning Balance (estimated): $ 57,865,864 $ 110,476,321 | $ - $ 95,195,220 | $ 10,415,572
August
Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 11,634,169 - - - -
Water Sales Misc® 60,000 - - - -
Recycled Water Sales 40,600 - - - -
Non Operating Income:
Property Taxes 1,141,000 - - 1,145,885 -
Capacity Fees - - - - 131,483
Interest Earned 491,166 - 142,188 327,708 -
Communication/Rental 44,189 - - - -
Grants - - - - -
Reimbursements 2 392,612 - - - -
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - 74,865,094 - -
Other ® 1,936 - - - -
Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,860,911) - - (12,212) -
DWR Payments - - - (693,000) -
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667) - - (1,713,904) -
Debt Service (30,771,602) - - - -
CIP (6,362,178) - (3,893,500) - -
CalPERS UAL - - - - -
Txfr to/from - - - - -
Projected Ending Balance Aug $ 26,665,178 | $ 110,476,321 | $ 71,113,782 | $ 94,249,696 | $ 10,547,055
September
Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 11,634,169 - - - -
Water Sales Misc* 60,000 - - - -
Recycled Water Sales 40,600 - - - -
Non Operating Income:
Property Taxes - - - - -
Capacity Fees - - - - 131,483
Interest Earned 491,166 - 142,188 327,708 -
Communication/Rental 44,189 - - - -
Grants - - - - -
Reimbursements “ 392,612 - - - -
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - - - -
Other * 1,936 - - - -
Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,860,911) - - (12,212) -
DWR Payments - - - (1,039,500) -
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667) - - (1,496,904) -
Debt Service (3,333) - - - -
CIP (6,362,178) - (3,893,500) - -
Txfr to/from - - - -
Projected Ending Balance. Sep $ 25,091,761 $ 110,476,321 | $ 67,362,469 $ 92,028,788 $ 10,678,539

51




SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
3 - Month Cash Flow Projection

Cash Flow for August FY24 to October FY24

DESCRIPTION QNRESTRICTED RESTRICTED _
Checking Investments CIP Fund SWC Capacity Fees
Beginning Balance (estimated): $ 57,865,864 $ 110,476,321 | $ - $ 95,195,220 | $ 10,415,572
October
Cash Provided from:
Water Sales 9,699,338 - - - -
Water Sales Misc* 50,000 - - - -
Recycled Water Sales 40,600 - - - -
Non Operating Income:
Property Taxes - - - - -
Capacity Fees - - - - 131,483
Interest Earned 491,166 - 142,188 327,708 -
Communication/Rental 44,189 - - - -
Grants 647,743 - - - -
Reimbursements * 249,574 - - - -
Bond/Loan Proceeds - - - - -
Other * 1,936 - - - -
Cash Used/Added to/for:
Monthly Expenses (7,652,511) - - (12,212) -
DWR Payments - - - (808,500) -
Misc. Water Purchases (11,667) - - (1,486,703) -
Debt Service (3,333) - - - -
CIP (6,362,178) - (3,893,500) - -
Txfr to/from - - - - -
Projected Ending Balance Oct $ 22,286,617 $ 110,476,321 | $ 63,611,157 $ 90,049,081 $ 10,810,022

Notes:

! Water Sales Misc. includes Late Charges, Misc. Retail Charges, Rebates, and Water Sales-One time
2 Reimbursements include Annexation and PERCH Reimbursements - O&M & CIP
% Other includes Laboratory Revenues and Other Non-Operating Revenue

52




Ten Largest Disbursements
Check Register



[This page intentionally left blank.]

54



SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements

August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

No. Date Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Pmt Method [Amount
08-30-2023 |Department of Water Resources|Monthly Variable - Jul 2023 Contract CHECK 1,845,354.00
160213
1 Department of Water Resources 1,845,354.00
08-02-2023 |Department of Water Resources |Monthly Variable - Jun 2023 CHECK 652,507.00
2 Department of Water Resources 652,507.00
08-02-2023 |American Business Bank Retention for Progress Pays 2-12 for ESFP |CHECK 575,100.10
Washwater Return and Sludge Collection
Proiect
3 American Business Bank 575,100.10
08-23-2023 |So. California Edison Co. LK Hughes E/S Dam 6/27/23-7/27/23 AUTO_DEBIT 1,237.66
25849 1/2 Railroad Ave 6/27/23-7/27/23 11,863.51
27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd SB 6/27/23- 117.68
7/27/23
25401 Bouquet Canyon 6/26/23-7/26/23 243,278.97
23308 Magic Mountain 6/8/23-7/10/23 12,202.93
23498 Newhall Ranch Rd 6/27/23-7/27/23 18.74
28185 The Old Rd 6/27/23-7/27/23 9,024.68
26503 McBean Pkwy 6/27/23-7/27/23 17.51
32700 Lake Hughes Rd W 6/27/23-7/27/23 26,027.66
27930 1/2 Lost Canyon Rd 6/27/23- 171.97
7/27/23
27171 1/2 Camp Plenty 6/27/23-7/27/23 38.44
20545 Santa Clara St 6/27/23-7/27/23 267,384.98
27295 Rolling Hills Ave 6/27/23-7/27/23 337.19
17213 Medley Ridge Dr 6/27/23-7/27/23 41.23
27434 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/27/23- 144.75
7/27/23
27475 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/27/23- 87.76
7/27/23
26501 Summit Cir 6/21/23-7/23/23 901.37
26505 Summit Cir 6/21/23-7/23/23 396.60
26979 Westridge 6/27/23-7/27/23 34.06
27139 Honby Ave PED 6/20/23-7/20/23 27.25
4 So. California Edison Co. 573,354.94
08-23-2023 |So. California Edison Co. 27101 Ridge Road 160 6/21/23-7/23/23 AUTO_DEBIT 6,162.88
26629 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/16/23- 5,394.28
7/18/23
22555 Brightwood Pl 6/16/23-7/18/23 119.28
27949 Hancock Pkwy U 6/12/23-7/12/23 4,536.08
23600 Decoro Drive 6/21/23-7/23/23 13,470.36
24050 Valencia Blvd 6/21/23-7/23/23 194.11
26477 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/21/23- 3,290.49

7/23/23

55




SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements

August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

No.

Date

Supplier_Name

Invoice_Description

Pmt Method

Amount

25112 Rye Canyon Loop 6/21/23-7/23/23

25234 Valencia 6/21/23-7/23/23

25841 Tournament Rd 6/21/23-7/23/23

27700 Golden St 6/21/23-7/23/23

28400 Copper Hill Dr PED 6/21/23-7/23/23

25197 Aurora Dr 6/21/23-7/23/23

28531 Farrier Dr PED 6/21/23-7/23/23

23816 Auto Center N7 6/21/23-7/23/23

23817 Auto Center N8 6/21/23-7/23/23

27508 Newhall Ranch Rd 6/21/23-7/23/23

24439 Valencia 6/21/23-7/23/23

29238 Black Pine Way U 6/21/23-7/23/23

24341 Valencia Blvd 6/21/23-7/23/23

28820 Bellows Ct U 6/21/23-7/23/23

23900 Bridgeport S6 6/21/23-7/23/23

25600 Hwy 99/159EMG PMP 6/21/23-
7/23/23

26629 Bouquet Canyon Rd 7/19/23-
8/16/23

22555 Brightwood Pl 7/19/23-8/16/23

23416 Magic Mountain Pkwy V5 7/11/23-
8/8/23

Avenida Velarte V6 7/11/23-8/8/23

23503 Valencia Blvd N68 7/14/23-8/13/23

24526 Sagecrest Cir LAR 7/12/23-8/9/23

27011 Ridge Road 160 5/22/23-6/20/23

27101 Ridge Road 160 4/21/23-5/21/23

25901 Tournament Rd 7/12/23-8/9/23

Firebrand 6/13/23-7/13/23

28424 Tamarack Ln 6/15/23-7/17/23

26975 Westridge Pkwy 6/13/23-7/13/23

28139 Blacksmith Dr 6/15/23-7/17/23

23790 Bridgeport S8 6/15/23-7/17/23

23850 Bridgeport S7 6/15/23-7/17/23

25001 Decoro Pump 6/15/23-7/17/23

Firebrand 7/14/23-8/13/23

28424 Tamarack Ln 7/18/23-8/15/23

27949 Hancock Pkwy U 7/13/23-8/10/23

26975 Westridge Pkwy 7/14/23-8/13/23

28139 Blacksmith Dr 7/18/23-8/15/23

23790 Bridgeport S8 7/18/23-8/15/23

260.92

18,832.11

24.84

254.50

615.00

9,520.16

19.67

23,956.51

24,727.81

3,374.79

310.55

23.89

12,954.20

1,978.97

3,339.78

2,647.84

4,977.65

118.00

9,191.58

344.58

17,691.12

10,864.34

4,606.33

4,959.26

8,029.80

2,098.31

5,852.85

12,959.71

20.87

2,233.22

125.20

4,793.32

2,440.41

4,701.84

2,431.64

10,473.42

17.55

822.33

56




SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements

August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

No. Date Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Pmt Method [Amount

23850 Bridgeport S7 7/18/23-8/15/23 122.41
25001 Decoro Pump 7/18/23-8/15/23 2,097.43
27118 Vista Delgado Dr B 7/17/23-8/14/23 10,215.58
26024 Kavenagh Ln 7/13/23-8/10/23 8,571.30
27502 Hasley Canyon Rd D 6/16/23- 1,230.38
7/18/23
28053 Carnegie Ave CAR 6/20/23-7/20/23 3,464.06
28432 Livingston Ave 6/16/23-7/18/23 3,184.44
26280 1/2 Galdding 6/20/23-7/20/23 118.70
28201 1/2 River Trail Ln Well 7/3/23- 3,799.91
8/2/23
28410 Hillcrest Pkwy 6/2623-7/26/23 2,416.90
28410 Hillcrest Pkwy 6/26/23-7/26/23 2,583.33
30400 Vineyard Ln PED 6/26/23-7/26/23 389.32
26908 Feedmill Rd U 6/21/23-7/23/23 38,093.85
25101 Sagecrest Cir 6/21/23-7/23/23 270.66
25550 Hemingway Ave 6/21/23-7/23/23 16,823.00
26290 Shakespeare Ln 6/21/23-7/23/23 18.35
26748 Sandburn PI PED 6/21/23-7/23/23 31.91
28202 Cascade Rd PED 6/21/23-7/23/23 46.47
28318 Witherspoon Pkwy PED 6/21/23- 18.53
7/23/23
29646 The Old Rd U 6/21/23-7/23/23 27.18
30016 Hamlet Way TPP 6/21/23-7/23/23 22.77
25774 Oak Meadow Dr 6/21/23-7/23/23 29.61
26608 Feedmill Rd U 6/21/23-7/23/23 21,318.64
25507 Oak Meadow 6/21/23-7/23/23 18.10
26994 Willowbrook Ln U 6/21/23-7/23/23 18.93
23100 Lowridge Pl U 6/21/23-7/23/23 18.69
30149 Galbreth Ct 6/21/23-7/23/23 16.13
29909 Bancroft Pl 6/21/23-7/23/23 18.54
26797 Westridge 6/21/23-7/23/23 17.32
28636 Livingston Ave 6/21/23-7/23/23 433.34
26353 McBean Pkwy 7/13/23-8/10/23 2,921.46
28830 Hancock Pkwy U 6/29/23-7/31/23 5,469.18

08-23-2023 25100 Karie Ln 6/7/23-7/9/23 AUTO_DEBIT 2,210.09
18621 Cedar Valley Way 6/6/23-7/7/23 638.28
20081 1/2 Avenue of the Oaks 6/6/23- 16.46
7[7/23
16400 Placerita Canyon Rd 6/26/23- 58.66
7/26/23
25529 1/2 Mountain Pass Rd Pump 6/6/23- 400.47

7/7/23

57




SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements
August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

Date Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Pmt Method [Amount

28635 1/4 Winterdale Dr 6/23/23-7/25/23 513.82
16742 1/2 Placerita Canyon Rd 6/26/23- 229.04
7/26/23
28340 Via Joyce Dr 6/21/23-7/23/23 41.71
28301 Whites Canyon 6/21/23-7/23/23 631.64
26532 Heron Ln 6/28/23-7/30/23 1,511.50
22102 1/2 Garnet Canyon PED 6/1/23- 13.57
6/29/23
20095 Avenue of the Oaks 6/7/23-7/9/23 4,120.23
21002 W Ranch View U 6/19/23-7/19/23 454.49
25205 Via Princessa 6/26/23-7/26/23 3,351.29
27100 Furnivall Ave 6/20/23-7/20/23 121.05
23307 Magic Mountain Pkwy 6/15/23- 7,406.59
7/17/23
18090 Lost Canyon Rd 6/28/23-7/30/23 1,656.21
27230 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/19/23- 56.54
7/19/23
18501 1/2 Olympian Ct 6/27/23-7/27/23 53.43
27234 Bouquet Canyon Rd 1 6/19/23- 77.00
7/19/23
26945 Cherry Willow Dr Pump 6/28/23- 662.18
7/30/23
27238 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/12/23- 531.55
7/12/23
27501 Sierra Hwy 6/12/23-7/12/23 163.44
27245 Luther Dr 6/12/23-7/12/23 1,986.45
27115 Golden Valley Rd 6/12/23-7/12/23 21,956.13
21768 Centurion Way Pump 6/16/23- 11,965.46
7/18/23
26640 1/2 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/16/23- 8,507.32
7/18/23
26930 Ruether Ave 6/12/23-7/12/23 108.54
455416 Linda Vista Rd Pump 6/2/23-7/2/23 12,427.29
21900 Centurion Way Pump 6/12/23- 171.24
7/12/23
18870 Skyline Ranch Rd 6/12/23-7/12/23 2,865.47
28530 La Madrid Dr U 6/19/23-7/19/23 6,685.40

So. California Edison Co. 461,181.31

08-02-2023 |Association Of California Water |ACWA JPIA, Upper Santa Clara Valley SCV_ACH 500.00

Agencies Joint Power Insurance |Property Program Renewal - July 1, 2023 -

Authority June 30, 2024
ACWA JPIA Property Program Renewal - 437,603.29
July 1, 2023 - June 30, 2024

Association Of California Water Agencies Joint Power Insurance Authority 438,103.29

58



SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements
August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

No. Date Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Pmt Method [Amount
08-16-2023 | X-Act Technology Solutions, Agreement Managed Security Services - SCV_ACH 11,200.00
Inc. Nov 2022
Agreement Managed IT Support Services - 16,434.00
Nov 2022
Agreement Managed Security Services - 11,200.00
Oct 2022
Agreement Managed IT Support Services - 16,434.00
Oct 2022
Labor - Hourly Cable Techs Performed to 16,950.00
Install Fiber Electronics Box (1/16/23:56.5
hrs) - Rio
Agreement Azure Usage - Nov 2022 19,701.88
Agreement Cloud Backup - Nov 2022 4,075.00
Agreement Office 365 - Nov 2022 13,914.15
Agreement Azure Usage - Aug 2023 21,536.17
Agreement Office 365 - Aug 2023 14,724.46
Agreement Cloud Backup - Aug 2023 4,075.00
Agreement Managed Security Services - 14,200.00
Aug 2023
Agreement Managed IT Support Services - 16,434.00
Aug 2023
Agreement Office 365 - Oct 2022 13,911.40
Agreement Cloud Backup - Oct 2022 4,075.00
Agreement Azure Usage - Oct 2022 18,680.16
7 X-Act Technology Solutions, Inc. 217,545.22
08-23-2023 |So. California Edison Co. 16747 1/2 Soledad Canyon Rd Pump AUTO_DEBIT 4,277.10
6/14/23-7/16/23
27200 Sand Canyon Rd 6/28/23-7/30/23 13,912.06
23200 Avenida Velarte 6/8/23-7/10/23 7,223.53
28244 1/2 Alaminos Dr Pump 6/19/23- 4,046.88
7/19/23
20251 Keaton St Pump 6/22/23-7/24/23 24,727.21
End Luther Dr/Wash 6/19/23-7/19/23 129.94
27245 Luther Dr 6/19/23-7/19/23 157.22
19000 Whites Canyon Road 6/23/23- 5,128.81
7/25/23
26700 Sierra Estates Drive 6/6/23-7/7/23 6,317.44
17390 Lost Canyon Rd 6/14/23-7/16/23 1,076.99
16003 1/2 Lost Canyon 6/26/23-7/26/23 7,363.15
17247 Sierra Hwy 6/13/23-7/13/23 133.93
26820 Gregory Well 6/20/23-7/20/23 6,274.01
26805 Rainbow Glen 6/20/23-7/20/23 13,578.80
19090 Via Princessa 6/23/23-7/25/23 46,093.82
28726 Haskell Canyon Rd 6/19/23-7/19/23 4,584.63

20557 Santa Clara St 6/20/23-7/20/23

19,018.30

59




SCV Water

Ten Largest Disbursements

August 1, 2023 to August 31, 2023

No. Date Supplier_Name Invoice_Description Pmt Method [Amount
15590 Appaloosa 6/14/23-7/16/23 6,722.14
27320 Bouquet Canyon Rd 6/19/23- 15,170.18
7/19/23
21885 Deena Pl 6/26/23-7/26/23 7,861.54
26715 Valley Center Dr 6/5/23-7/6/23 15,192.06
15305 Live Oak Springs Canyon Rd 6/14/23 3,996.86
7/16/23
8 So. California Edison Co. 212,986.60
08-02-2023 |American Business Bank Retention for Progress Pays 3-10 for Santa |CHECK 210,515.92
Clara and Honby PFAs Project
9 American Business Bank 210,515.92
08-09-2023 |Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C. Services through 6/30/23 Construction for [SCV_ACH 26,890.00
the Santa Clara and Honby Wells PFAS
Groundwater Treatment Improvements
Services through 6/30/23 Tesoro Highlands 41,095.50
Tract 51644-19A - T&U Wells PFAS
Treatment, Saugus 1 and 2 VOC
Treatment. and Chemical Buildina
Services through 6/30/23 Water Master 92,453.75
Plan
Services through 6/30/23 Planning study 43,119.50
for PFAS, Perchlorate, and Softening
Treatment for Saugus Wells (N11, N12,
N13) Groundwater Treatment
Imbrovements
10 Hazen and Sawyer, D.P.C. 203,558.75

Total

Total-All Disbursements Issued During August 2023

Largest Ten Vendor Payments as Compared to Total

5,390,207.13
10,256,772.07

53%

60



Director Stipends



[This page intentionally left blank.]

62



8 sbunea |ejol v sbunaay |ejol

8 sfeq pied |ejol 2 sheq pied |ejoL

00°Z16°L$ lejo] puadng 00°956% lejo] puadng

00'6£Z$ Bunes|y sapiwwo) Ajenp el VMOV | £2/0€/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y 88piWW0) ddoueUl VMOV | €2/62/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y Buluue|d epusby | €2/82/80

00'6£2$ Bues|y 8eRIWWO) oNPUOY JO BPOD VMOV | £2/52/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbay | €Z/S1/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y s8jIWWO) UOHEASIUIWPY PUE ddoueuld peinpaydsey | €2/12/80

00'6£2$ abuey) aweN AjjioeS - Bunes|y 88RIWWOD 20H PY | €2/71/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y 8epiwwo) uone|sibaT pue yoesnnQO dland | €2//1/80

00'6£Z$ Bunes|y @apiwwo) suonesedo pue Buussulbuz | £z/0/30 00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €2/51/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbsy | €2/10/80 00'6£2$ abuey) aweN Ajj1oe 4 - Bues|y 88RIWWO] 20H pY | £2/7L/80

junowy [TEET ajeq junowy Bunespy ajeq
._OQOOO Em____>> LOuooh_ﬁ_ 0__00 3m ._Ouom.h_ﬂ

r4 wmc_uwws_ |ejol 9 wm:_«wws_ |ejol
z sheq pied |ejoL 9 sheq pied |ejoL
00°8.7$ lejo] puadns 00°vEV1$ lejol puadis
00'6€2$ Bunes|y 88)jiWWOD UOHEASIUIWPY PUE 80UBUIY PB|NPayosay | £2/12/80
00'6€2$ Bunes|y 8apiwwo) uone|siba] pue yoeannQ olaqnd | €2/.1/80
00'6€2$ Bunes|y pJeog Jeinbey | €£z/51/80
00'6£2$ abuey) aweN Ayjioed - Bues|y ®8RIWWOY 20H pY | £2/71/80
00'6€2$ Bunes|y sspiwwo) uonelsibe pue yoeannO oliaNd | £z/.1/80 00'6£2$ | Aunod v YHON 4o spoussia [eroads auj jo buies|y sspiwwo) aAnosx3 | £2/60/80
00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbay | €Z/S1/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €2/10/80
junowy m:_wwws_ ajed junowy m:_wwws_ ajed
uigjsunelg yjag Joj3oalig |wmmu_:.=< w>_.=.m¥ Jojo3alig

€20z 3snbny jo yuop ayj 104
€202 ¥39IN3Ld3S NI AIVd SANIdILS SHOLO3HIA

63




64

S sbBuesy [ejoL L sbunasy [e3oL

S sheq pied |ejoL ol sAeq pied |ejoL

00'S61L°1$ lejo] puadns 00°06£Z$ lejol puadis
00°0$ Bunss|y 88pIWWOD J8}lempunold VMOV | £2/0€/80
00'6£Z$ Bunes|y Buiuue|d epusby | €2/82/80
00'6£2$ Bunes|y si00841q Jo pJeog vOA | €2//1/80
00'6£Z$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €z/51/80
00'6£2$ abueyd sweN Ajjioed - Buesy @8)lWW0) 90H PY | €2/71/80
00'6£Z$ Bunes|y Buyeug si00811q Jo pJeog vOa | €2/11/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y buluue|q epusby | €2/82/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|\ 88)IWWOD PaYSISIB A\ PUB S82IN0SaY Jalep\ | £2/60/80

00'6£2$ Jabeueyy |ejouss) yum Buiesy euQ-uo-auQ | €Z/71/80 00'6£2$ Jaupe.g weyels J0joalig eAlnoax3 yum Bunseiy voad | £2/80/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y 88)jIWWOD PaYSISIBA\ PUB S82IN0SaY JJBM | £2/60/30 00'6£2$ Jabeuely [eisus yum Bunss|y 8UQ-U0-8UQ | £2/.0/80

00'6£Z$ Bunes|y @spiwwo) suonesedo pue Buussulbuz | £z/0/30 00'6£2$ Bunes|y sapiwwo) suonesadQ pue Buuesuibuz | €£z/£0/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbsy | €Z/10/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y pseog Jeinbey | €£z/10/80

junowy Bunespy ajeq junowy [EE ajeq

_v_wgosothO .:0_& LOuowh_ﬁ_ C_u._ms_ mmu ._Ouum.__ﬁ_

9 wmc_uwws_ |ejol 9 wm:_uwws_ |jejol

9 sheq pied |ejoL 9 sheq pied |ejoL

00°¥EV 1S lejol puadns 00¥EV1$ lejol puadis

00'6£2$ 80UBI8JU0D JeJB A [BNUUY UIOE IMN | £2/52/80 00'6£2$ Bunesy Buluueld epusby | €z/82/80

00'6£Z$ 80UBIBJUOD JBJB A [BNUUY UIOE IMN | £2/42/80 00'6£Z$ Bunes|y 8ajiWWOY UOHEASIUIWPY PUB B0UBULY pB|Npayosey | £2/12/80

00'6£2$ 80UBI8JU0D JSJB A [BNUUY UIOE IMN | €2/€2/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y sepiwwo) uone|sibaT pue yoesnno dlland | €2//1/80

00'6£Z$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbay | €Z/S1/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €z/51/80

00'6£2$ Bunes|y 88))IWWOD PaYSISIBAN PUB S82JN0SaY J8JBM | £2/60/30 00'6£2$ uoineigaje) auolss|IN JeleA PAIUN | £2/€0/80

00'6£Z$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbsy | £Z/10/80 00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €2/10/80

junowy m:_uwws_ ajed junowy m:_uwws_ ajed

SYIeN 3a1g 1030a41g }19ZIN5) euepy Jo0joaiig



00'681°ZL$ SAN3ILS TV10L
4] SONILIIN TVIOL
LS SAVA dIVd V101
v sbunaay |ejol
¥ sheq pied |ejol
00°956$ lejo] puadng
00'6£2$ Bunes|y @8RIWWOY UONEJSIUIWPY pue ddueUl] PaINPaYosay | €2/12/80
00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €z/51/80
00'6£2$ Buluue|d olbsjess a1 sues\ p3 /m BunesN | €2/11/80
00'6£2$ Bunes|y pieog Jeinbey | €z/10/80
junowy Bunasiy ajeq

Uasiojed Uay J103oailg

65



[This page intentionally left blank.]

66



Director Reimbursements



[This page intentionally left blank.]

68



81°€95°e

00°SZ1 uonensIsNy - €7/S1/60 1S8II0,] JOOINQ JIWOU0dY €70 - wer[[ip 10doo) €27/10/80
00°0ST uonensi3ay - €7/€0/11 [1ed 991 2 11 yseq VIA - Aren ‘uniey €27/10/80
00°569 uonensIZoy Axen) ‘uniep €27/10/80
- MN\mN\woumN\wO - ooﬁo.ﬁmﬁoU Hoﬁw?/ oﬁzﬁmﬁw HB@\K/ G.mn_HD -
v6'v€T (8ui8por) ssuadxy SunadA preod 2 doysyiom VMOV €207  WeI[IA “1odoo) €7/10/80
LL99S (93eaIA “1oq) -uoneuodsuel],  wWe[ip 10doo) €27/10/80
punoin) ‘Funjred ‘Q1ejary) asuddxy [oAel] SunadN preog 29 doyssiop VMOV €202
96'C6¥ (sregary) asuadxy [9ARI], €7/S1/9 SUNRIIN VO( - Aren ‘uniey €7/10/80
6£°0TH (8urdpo) asuadxy €7/11/S-€7/6/S douaIyuo) JutdS VMOV €70 - 1o1d ‘BISMOYIZIO €27/10/80
79°€0¢ (Burdpor) asuadxy €7/11/S-€7/6/S 2oudIdjuo)) Sutids VMOV €20¢ - Aren) ‘uniejy €7/10/80
0S'vLS (8urdpo) asuadxy €7/11/S-€7/6/S douaIayuo) JutdS VMOV €70T - 1og ‘ureisunerg €27/10/80
junowyy juswasINquIdy 10} uoseady juswiasIinquiay ajeq

"Used 1aqo}oQ 193)e suoljoesuel) piedd Jaquiaydas, £Z/0S/6 3O Se pajepd suondesuel]

) Pies -d

Jo jJuaidioay

€202/0S/6 30 se pajepdn suonoesuel] dy 7Z/€Z JEIA |BISI 10 9INSO[ISI] [enuuy
aiow 10 001 $ = ..Sobiey) [enpiAipul,, 10} JUBWASINQUIIDY }JO }ISIT]
G'G90€G UOI}OdS dpPOY "JN0Y VI

69



[This page intentionally left blank.]

70



ITEM NO.

DRAFT 6.1

Minutes of the Regular Meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water
Agency — November 21, 2023

A regular meeting of the Board of Directors of the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency was held
at Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, 27234 Bouquet Canyon Road, Santa Clarita, CA 91350
at 6:00 PM on Tuesday, November 21, 2023. A copy of the Agenda is inserted in the Minute
Book of the Agency preceding these minutes. The meeting recording can be accessed by
clicking on the following link: Board Meeting Recording.

DIRECTORS PRESENT: Kathye Armitage, Beth Braunstein, Ed Colley, William Cooper,
Dirk Marks, Gary Martin and Ken Petersen.

DIRECTORS ABSENT: Maria Gutzeit and Piotr Orzechowski.

Also present: Assistant General Manager Steve Cole, Board Secretary April Jacobs, Chief
Engineer Courtney Mael, Chief Financial and Administrative Officer Rochelle Patterson, Chief
Operating Officer Keith Abercrombie, Communications Manager Kevin Strauss, Director of
Water Resources Ali Elhassan, General Counsel Joe Byrne, General Manager Matthew Stone,
Information Technology Technician Il Jonathan Thomas, as well as additional SCV Water
Agency staff (Virtually), and members of the public (In Person and Virtually).

President Martin called the meeting to order at 6:01 PM. A quorum was present.

There were no changes to the November 21, 2023 Board Agenda and it was accepted as
shown (ltem 4).

Upon motion of Director Marks, seconded by Director Braunstein and carried, the Board pulled
Item 5.3 for further discussion and approved the remaining items on the Consent Calendar
including Resolution No. SCV-393 by the following roll call votes (ltem 5):

Director Armitage Yes Director Braunstein Yes
Director Colley Yes Director Cooper Yes
Vice President Gutzeit Absent Director Marks Yes
President Martin Yes Vice President Orzechowski Absent
Director Petersen Yes

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-393

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
AUTHORIZING THE GRANT APPLICATION, ACCEPTANCE, AND EXECUTION
OF A FUNDING AGREEMENT FOR THE NEWHALL WELLS (N11, N12, N13)
GROUNDWATER TREATMENT IMPROVEMENTS

FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE
Upon motion of Director Armitage, seconded by Director Braunstein and carried, the Board

pursuant to the previously adopted addendum to the adopted 2005 Groundwater Containment,
Treatment, and Restoration Project MND and MMRP, approved Resolution SCV-394

71


https://www.yourscvwater.com/sites/default/files/2023-11/Board-Recording-112123.mp3
ajacobs
Draft

ajacobs
Item 6.1


November 21, 2023
Page 2 of 4

authorizing a purchase order to Lee & Ro, Inc for an amount not-to-exceed $600,000 for
planning and final design services for Wells 206 and 207 Groundwater Treatment Improvements
Project with the potential addition of certain exemption language related to CEQA planning and
design, subject to legal review by General Counsel, by the following roll call votes (Item 5.3):

Director Armitage Yes Director Braunstein Yes
Director Colley Yes Director Cooper Yes
Vice President Gutzeit Absent Director Marks Yes
President Martin Yes Vice President Orzechowski Absent
Director Petersen Yes

RESOLUTION NO. SCV-394

A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS
OF THE SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY
APPROVING, PURSUANT TO A PREVIOUSLY ADOPTED ADDENDUM TO THE ADOPTED
2005 GROUNDWATER CONTAINMENT, TREATMENT, AND RESTORATION PROJECT
MND AND MMRP, A PURCHASE ORDER TO LEE & RO, INC FOR PLANNING AND FINAL
DESIGN SERVICES FOR WELLS 206 AND 207 GROUNDWATER TREATMENT
IMPROVEMENTS PROJECT

FULL RESOLUTION MAY BE VIEWED BY VISITING THE SCV WATER WEBSITE

General Manager’s Report on Activities, Projects and Programs (ltem 6).
The General Manager reported on the following:

He mentioned next week’s ACWA Conference and the opportunity (as a separate event) for the
Directors and staff to get a briefing on the Delta Conveyance Project. He informed the Board
that two of the SCV Water Board members and a few staff are planning to attend. He advised
the Board, that if additional Directors would like to attend, to please let the Board Secretary
know so there is no quorum issue.

He then gave an update on water supplies relating to current year banking and transfer
activities. He mentioned that a presentation on this item was given to the Water Resources and
Watershed Committee and that Committee asked the General Manager to present this
information to the full Board.

Lastly, he thanked the Board for their feedback on his annual performance review that he
received this past week from the Board officers and the consultants who facilitated the General
Manager’s review.

To hear the full comments, please refer to the Board recording by clicking the meeting recording
link on the first page of these minutes or visiting the SCV Water Website.

Committee Meeting Recap Report for Informational Purposes Only (ltem 7).

There were no comments on the recap report.

72



November 21, 2023
Page 3 of 4

President’s Report (Item 8).

President Martin updated the Board on upcoming meetings and events.

AB 1234 Written and Verbal Reports (Item 9).
Written reports were submitted by Director Marks and were included in the Board packet.

President Martin reported that he virtually attended the monthly meeting with DCA Executive
Director Graham Bradner on November 15, 2023 and attended the final Water Academy
Session held at the RVWTP on November 18, 2023.

Director Cooper reported that he virtually attended the evaluation meeting of the ACWA
Executive Director on November 13, 2023 and attended the ACWA Board meeting in
Sacramento on November 16 and 17, 2023.

There were no other AB 1234 Reports.

Director Reports (Iltem 10).

Director Armitage wished everyone a happy Thanksgiving.

President Martin updated the Board on the November 14, 2023 Ad Hoc Committee on
Remodeling the Boardroom. He mentioned that the Ad Hoc Committee consisted of Vice
Presidents Gutzeit and Orzechowski, Director Cooper and himself. He stated that this item will
be coming to the December 5, 2023 regular Board meeting for consideration to move forward
with a Request for Proposals on a Boardroom remodel.

There were no other Director reports.

The Board went into Closed Session at 6:26 PM to discuss Item 11.1:

Conference with Legal Counsel — Existing Litigation (Paragraph (1) of Subdivision (d) of
Section 54956.9), Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency v. 3M Company, et. al., Case No:
2:20-cv-3771-RMG

The Zoom meeting was put on hold while the Board went into Closed Session. President Martin
advised the public and staff for those who wanted to stay, to remain on the current
teleconference line and once Closed Session ends, the Board would reconvene for Closed
Session announcements and the conclusion of the meeting.

President Martin reconvened the Open Session at 8:34 PM.

73



November 21, 2023
Page 4 of 4

Joe Byrne, Esq., reported that there were no actions taken in Closed Session that were
reportable under the Ralph M. Brown Act (Item 12).

Director Requests For Future Agenda Items (ltem 13).

There were no requests for future Agenda items.

The meeting was adjourned at 8:35 PM (Item 14).

April Jacobs, Board Secretary

ATTEST:

President of the Board

74



ITEM NO.
ébscv 52

WATER BOARD MEMORANDUM

DATE: December 5, 2023
TO: Water Resources and Watershed Committee
FROM: Ali Elhassan Ag

Director of Water Resources

SUBJECT: Approve Adopting a Resolution Approving the SB 221 Water Supply
Verification for the Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Development

SUMMARY

The City of Santa Clarita (City), acting as California Environmental Quality Act (CEQA) lead
agency (Lead Agency), has requested that the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water)
prepare a Water Supply Verification (WSV) for the Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Development
(Project), Tentative Tract Map 51644-1, in accordance with 2001 Senate Bill 221 (SB 221).
Under CEQA, the City is responsible for all land use decisions related to the Project. SCV Water
staff has prepared for Board consideration a WSV (Attachment 1) for the Project that concludes
current and future water supplies are sufficient to meet demands for the Project, consistent with
SCV Water’s 2020 Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP), updated with current information
on water supply availability.

BACKGROUND AND DISCUSSION

City Request for SB 221 WSV — In December 1998, the County of Los Angeles (County)
Planning Department prepared and certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (EIR) for the
entire Tesoro Del Valle Development. The certification of the EIR preceded the passage of
Senate Bill 610 that requires a Water Supply Assessment (WSA) be completed for projects
exceeding 500 units. In August 2017, Newhall County Water District (NCWD), the predecessor
to SCV Water, at the request of the lead agency at the time submitted a WSA for Areas B & C of
the Tesoro Del Valle Development. In 2018 the County prepared and certified a Supplemental
Environmental Impact Report for Areas B & C (SEIR). The new design in the SEIR included 665
residential single-family homes, 155 multi-family senior villas, 5.21 acres of developed parks
and 133.84 acres of landscaping with dedicated irrigation on approximately 243 acres. In 2022
the City annexed the portion of the proposed project located outside of the City limits and took
over the responsibility as the Lead Agency from the County. SB 221 (specifically Government
Code sections 65867.5 and 66473.7) requires cities and counties to condition approval of
tentative tract maps that include more than 500 dwelling units on obtaining a WSV from the
applicable public water system that a sufficient water supply will be available to serve the
Project. Because the Project includes a total of 820 dwelling units, the City as the Lead Agency
has requested SCV Water to prepare a WSV.

SB 221 WSV Requirements, Analysis, and Conclusions — In accordance with SB 221, a WSV
evaluates whether the total water supplies available to SCV Water during normal, single-dry,
and multiple-dry years over a 20-year projection will be sufficient to meet the projected demand
associated with the proposed Project in addition to SCV Water’s other existing and planned

75


ajacobs
Item 6.2


future uses, including but not limited to agricultural and industrial uses. SCV Water staff have
prepared the attached WSV in accordance with the statutory requirements of SB 221, including
but not limited to a detailed analysis of existing and projected demand and supply for normal,
single-dry, and multiple-dry years over a 20-year projection. As noted above, in 2018 the County
prepared and approved a Supplemental EIR for the proposed Project. The WSA completed by
NCWD in 2017 was incorporated in this SEIR with a total projected water demand of 728 acre-
feet per year (AFY). As shown in the WSV, the water demand for the Project is now estimated
to be 847 AFY in a normal year, 898 AFY in a single dry year, and 864 AFY in a multiple dry
year event. The WSV is based on several water supply planning documents, including the 2020
UWMP and the 2021 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report. The water demands associated with
the Project are specifically accounted for as part of SCV Water’s projected water demands in
the 2020 UWMP.

Based on the requirements of Government Code section 66473.7 and the supporting
documentation contained in the administrative record, this WSV, based on the evaluation of the
approved WSA for the Project as well as the 2020 UWMP and SCV Water's most recent supply
and demand forecasts and updated demand projections for the Project, concludes that the total
projected water supplies available during normal, single-dry, and multiple dry water years during
a 20-year planning projection are sufficient to meet the projected water demands of the Project,
in addition to SCV Water’s existing and planned future uses, including but not limited to
agricultural and industrial uses.

On November 8, 2023, the Water Resources and Watershed Committee considered staff’s
recommendation to adopt a resolution approving the SB 221 Water Supply Verification for the
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B and C) Development.

STRATEGIC PLAN NEXUS

The approval of the resolution adopting the Water Supply Verification will help meet SCV
Water’s Objective and Strategic Plan Objective C.3: “Respond to SB 610 Water Supply
Assessments and SB 221 Water Supply Verifications.”

FINANCIAL CONSIDERATIONS

None

RECOMMENDATION

The Water Resources and Watershed Committee recommends that the Board of Directors
adopt the attached resolution (Attachment 2) approving the SB 221 Water Supply Verification
for the Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Development and direct staff to forward the Water
Supply Verification to the City of Santa Clarita Planning Department.

RGV

Attachments

76


ajacobs
Matt Stone


ATTACHMENT 1

& SCV waTER

SB 221 Water Supply Verification

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

Vesting Tentative Tract Map No. 51644-1

Prepared for:
City of Santa Clarita

November 8, 2023

Prepared by

Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Department of Water Resources
27234 Bouquet Canyon Road
Santa Clarita, CA 91350

77



[This page intentionally left blank.]

78



Table of Contents

EXECULIVE SUMMAIY ........ e e v
LiSEOF TADIES........ oo e e e e e e vii
S o o 10 = P viii
LIS o) Y o] o =T Lo o= 1 PP viii
L o) Yo o) 1)/ 4 viii
SECTION 1: INTRODUCTION ... s rree s s s s ssss s s s s sms s s s s mm s s s e mms s s s e mm s s s s nmnsnnsenns 11
1.1 BACKGROUND ...vveeutteeuteeeteeeseseseeeseessseaassessssesassessnssesnsessnsessssessnsessssessnsssassessssessssessssessssessssessssessssessssessnsessssessssessssessssesssens 1-1
1.2 PURPOSE AND APPLICABLE REQUIREMENTS ......ttttteeeeeaautttteeeeeesaauueteeeeassaausseteeeeesaaanseeaeeeesasaansebeeeeesesansasbeeeesesaasnbaeeeesesanannseeaeas 1-1
1.3 PROJECT DESCRIPTION ..vtteutveeuteeesteeesesesssesssesesseeasesassaeassesssesansessnsessssesssssassessssessssesssessssessnsessssessssessssessnsessssessssessssesssseesssens 1-4
1.3.1 Project CEQA DiSCUSSION ......ccocuueeeeeieeeeieeeestee ettt ee e ettt e e sttt e e st e e st te e ettt e ssasseeesauseaeeansteeenasseeesuseeenansneeenanneas 14
1.4 SANTA CLARITA VALLEY WATER AGENCY ..uvveetteesureesuseenseeesseeesssessseeesssesssssesssesssssesseesssssssssssssssessessnsssessessssssssseesssessseessssessseesnses 1-6
1.4.1 Water Management Within SCV WALEK ...........ueeeuueeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteettte et te e e et tteaesassaaesatasasassaaeessssasssssasassssssessssees 1-6
1.5 2020 URBAN WATER IMANAGEMENT PLAN. ....ttteruteestteesiteesuteesiteesteeesttessseeesssesssaeesstesssseesssesssssessessnsesensessnsesssseesssessnseessseessseesnses 1-6
1.6 SCV WATER POLICIES AND REGULATORY APPROVALS/PERMITS .....eiiiuveieeieteieeeeteeeeeaeeessesteessssasessssssessseseeesssssssessssssssasesessssesesssees 1-7
1.7 INFORMATION USED OR RELIED UPON IN PREPARING THIS WSV .....utiiitieiiieeiieetessieesteesteeseteesteesateessseasstessnseesnsesssseesssessnsessnsens 1-8
SECTION 2: HISTORICAL AND PROJECTED WATER SUPPLIES AND DEMANDS ..... 21
2.1 HISTORICAL USE AND EXISTING AND PROJECTED SCV WATER DEMANDS .....cetttiiaiiutieteeeeeeaiiittteeeeeesanteeeeeeesesaunbeeeeeeesessnreneeeeesesannnes 2-1
2.2 PROJECTED WATER USE ...t tteee ettt ettt et e e ettt et e e e s e auae et e e e e e e e aas et e e e e e e e e unb et e eeeeea s anbbeeeeeesasanbebaeeeeeaaaansebaeaeesesannnen 2-4
2.2.1 POtADIE WALET USE PrOJECTIONS ........evveeeeeeieeeeeeeeeeeeettee e e e ettt a e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e et asasaaaaeeassssasaaaaeeessssssseaaaaesasssssanasas 2-4
2.3 TESORO DEL VALLE (AREAS B & C) PROJECT DEMANDS .....uveeiutieeteesieesteesiteesteesseesseesseesuseessseesssessseesssessseesssessnseessseessseessseesas 2-7
SECTION 3: EXISTING AND PROJECTED WATER SUPPLIES .........ooimiieeccciineeeeeees 31
3.1 IMPORTED WATER SUPPLIES «..eeeutteeuteesttesteesteesseesseesuseessseesuseesaseesuseesaseesaseesaseesssesssseesssessasessnsessaseessesssseesseessseesnseesssesssseesns 3-2
3.2 STATE WATER PROJECT SUPPLIES ..ttt euteeeuteesuteesuteesteesuseessseesuseesaseesuseesaseesaseessseessseessseessseesssessnseesseessessseesseessseesnseesssessnseesns 3-2
B Y T o e Lol 1 =X SRS PP PP UPUPUPPPIN 3-2
3.2.2 SWP Water SUPPly CONIACt AMENAMENTS .........coeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e et e e s tta e et e e e stteaesesaeaaessseaessssasesasssasesssenannnns 3-2
3.2.3 SWP WALEE SUPPIIES ...ttt e e e e ettt e e e e e e et aaaaaee e tassasaaaaeeasasssasasaaeeaaasssssesaseesasssssanaaas 3-4
3.2.4 Factors Affecting SWP TADIE A SUPPIIES ........eeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e ettt a e e e e ettt aa e e e e s stsasaaaaeeessssssenaaas 3-5
RPN 21 (o) (oo Iole | @) o111 ] o] FT OO SST P 3-7
3.2.6 SWP TADIE A SUPPIY ASSESSIMENT ..ottt e e ettt e e e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt aeaaaeeassssasasaaeeassssssseaaaeesasssssenaaas 3-9
3.2.7 SWP WAter SUPPIY ESTIMQTES .........oeeeeeeeeeeieeeeee ettt e e e e ettt a e e e e e ettt eeaaeee s aasaaaaaaeeassssasaaaaeeassssssseaaaeesassssssenasas 3-9
3.2.8 Coordinated OPEratioNS AGIEEIMENT............ueeeceeeeestieeeeeeseeeeeeestteeesstteaessteaeessteeeaaassesesssssaasssssasasssssesssssaessssenanas 3-11
Il D=1 | (o [ 00T N VI=3Y o I Tol= ol o[- ot SR 3-12
3.2.10 Emergency Freshwater Pathway Description (Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta)................ccceeevveeeecuereeceeneesrennnn. 3-12
3.2.11 Sisk Dam Raise and San Luis RESEIVOIr EXPOANSION ...........ceeecueeeeeiieeeesiiseesieaeesteeessstssessssasesisssssssssssesssssssssssaans 3-14
3.2.12 SWP SEISMUC IMPIOVEMENLS...cccccceeeeeeee et e e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeaeaeaees 3-14
3.2.13 Water Quality Control Plan/VOolUNtary AGIreEMENT .............ccvueeeveeeiieeeiereiieeeeeeeireeeseseeeeesesesssessesessesessesessssessesen 3-14
IV B DL o I =] o T Lo =R TUTIUR IR 3-15
3.2.15 OtNEr IMPOITEOA SUPPIICS ... ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e ettt aaaeeeestsasaaaaeeassssssseaaaeesssssssanaeas 3-15

79



3.2.15.1 Buena Vista-ROSEAAIE RiO BIraVO ........ueeiiuiiiieiiee ettt et e ettt e e et e e e tee e e etaeeeeateaeesteeeesseeeeaseseensasaeasseeeesseesasseeeasaeaas 3-16

3.2.15.2 Nickel Water — NEWRNAI LANG ....cccueiiiiiiieeieeiee ettt sttt st sttt et esbe e st e e bt e sate e beesabeenbeesabesabeesateenbeesanesnbeensaesasens 3-16
3.2.15.3 YUDA ACCOIT WaALEI ....eeeiieeiieeeiecteestte et et e et e st e st e et esste e teesaaeeteesseeenseesseeenteeaseeanseeseeasseeseeanseenseesnseenseesseesnseannseenseesseann 3-17

3.3 GROUNDWATER. .. tttteteeeeeaautttteeeeeesaauusetteeeeeaaauseeeeeeeeeaaunbeeeeeeeeesaansaeeeeeeee s e aaseeeeeeeesaaannbeeeeeeeeaanbaeeeeeeeeaaunseeaeeeeeesansnraeeaaaean 3-17
3.3.1 Santa Clara River Groundwater Basin — EQSt SUDDASIN ............cooviiieieeiiiieeiiie ettt eeiee e st e e ssiee s esieee s 3-17
3.3.2 Groundwater Management PIANNING.............cucoooeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee e eeettetette e e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e s eeessssssaaaaaeesssssssenaeas 3-17
3.3.2.1 Groundwater SUSTAINADITITY PIAN .....ccviiiieieecee ettt e et e e s e e st e e sae e s see e seeesseeseessaeenseesnseenseesnseenseenneeeneens 3-18
3.3.2.2 Groundwater ManagemMENT PIAN .........uiiiiiiiiiiiie ettt ettt et e e e e ta e e e s tbe e e sabbee s steeeesbbeeeeabeeeaataeeesbeeeebaeeeataeeaataaeas 3-18
3.3.2.3 AVailable GroUNAWaATEr SUPPIIES ....uiiiiiie ittt ettt e et e e e e ta e e e s tbee e sabbeeeastseeessbeeeasbeeesasaeaasbeeesabeeeestaeeassaeeas 3-19

TR 070 1 0 PP 3-25
3.3.2.5 SAUEUS FOIMATION 1eiiiiiiiiiiieieieeiit ettt e ettt e e e e s sttt et e e e sa bbb eeeeeea bt b aeeeeesasaaeaeaeesansataaaeeesssssbaaeeeesassssesaaessansnsssaanesesnns 3-34
3.3.3 Existing and Planned GroundWaLEr PUMPING ..............ueeieeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeteetetee e e e eettataaa e e e esestasaaaaeeesssssseaaaeeesssssssenaeas 3-42
3.3.3.1 IMPACTEA WEII CAPACILY ...uveenveeeeiieieesiee et estte et e st e et e st e s te e teeesaeesseesseeenseesseeenseeaseeanseesaeasseeaseeanseesseesnseanseessseenseennseanseessennn 3-42
TR 5. 707 Y 1 0 o PSP 3-44
3.3.3.3 SAUEUS FOIMATION 1eiiiiiiiiiiieieiesiite ettt e s ettt e e e e sttt et e e e sa bt bt e e e e essabtbaaeeeesssaaeaeeeesansataeaeeeessssbaaeeeesasssbesaeessansssssaenesesnns 3-44
I IR AU T 44 o= [ Y 2P UT O UPPPPPPURON 3-45

3.4 TRANSFERS AND EXCHANGES....ceetuutteeesuttteesuteeesuteeesateeesanseessanstesasaseeesasnseeesnseeessaseeesannseeesanseeesaaseeesansaeesanneeessaseeesannseeesannees 3-48
00T = I o 4 =1 T S 3-49
R A oL Y Lo T (=T o T Ky =1 (TR 3-49
34,3 OPLION CONEIACES..cccceeieeeeeee ettt ettt ettt e e e e et et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e et e e e e e s e seeeeeeeeeeeeaeeees 3-49
3.4, 4 FULUIE MATKET TIANSFOIS ....eveeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeteee e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt aaaaeeasstssseaaaeeasstsssaaaaeesasnssssesaaeesssssssanaaas 3-49

R B0 (=T g (ol o[ [ £ L =X OO U 3-49
3.5 GROUNDWATER BANKING PROGRAMS .....ceeiutteteriteeeaaietesanreessaustesaasseeesamseeesnseeessaseeesasseeesanseeessaseeesannsnsesaneesssnsseesanseeesannees 3-51
3.5.1 SemitropiC BANKING PIrOGIGIM ........coccuveeeeeieseeeee et e e ettt e ee e e et tte e e et a e et a e e sttaaaasteaeesssaaesaseaasasseaesssseasnassenanns 3-51
3.5.2 Rosedale-Rio Bravo BANKING PrOGIAIM ...........cc..ueeeeeieeeeeeeeseeeteeeesieaeetteaeesttaaesttaeaasteaaeasssaaesssssasssssesesssssssnsssenanns 3-52
3.5.3 Semitropic Banking Program — NEWAQI LANG ............cccceeeieeeeeeeeeieeeesieeeeeee et teeeestta e e tata e e steaaeesasaaessnsaaaesseeaens 3-53
3.6 PLANNED WATER SUPPLY PROJECTS AND PROGRAMS .....uvveeeuireeesirteeesteteesiseeesuseeessateeesasnseeesanneeessnsseessnnsesesanneeessnsseesannseeesnnnees 3-53
N A Yo TN oL Yo L= gl > 1o [ ] [ 1o U 3-53
R Reole | INYV T o))V g1 Lo TaTol=1 01 T=T g T U UUUU 3-54
3.6.3 SIS REOSEIVOIN.....ceeeieaeeeeeee ettt et ettt et ettt e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e bbbt e e e e e e ea bbb e e e e eeeaaantneeaeas 3-54
3.7 RECYCLED WATER ... ettttee ettt et e e e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e e aab et e e e e e e e s aansee e e e e e e e s e aae e e e eaeee e e asn b et e eeeeaaanbae et eeeseaaanbabaeeaeeesansnbeeaeaaean 3-55
3.7.1 Recycled Water Master PIGNNING EffOITS........uuuuieiuieeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeteeeettteteetta e et ttaaasssteaessassaaesssaassssseaesssssaensssenanas 3-55
3.7.2 Existing Wastewater TreQtmMeNt FACIITEIES ...........ccecuueeeeeeeseeeeeeeeeee e ettt e st e et tte e e ettt eeeaateaesseaaessssesessnssaesssenaaas 3-57
3.7.3 Wastewater Treatment Facility Improvements GNd EXPANSIONS .........c...eeeeeueeeesiiieeaesieseesieeseesiseeeasssesessisssessisenaens 3-58

3.7 4 NEW DIOP PrOGIOM ...ttt ettt ettt e et e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s e seeeeeeasaeasasasasesasesesesasasesesasesanenens 3-58
3.7.5INStream FIOW REGUITEIMENTS ........oeeeeveeeeeeie e e et e e ettt e e e e et tte e e et a e et a e et e e e asseaeasssaaesssesaeasseaensnsnaenassananas 3-59
3.7.6 Other Potential SOUIces Of RECYCIEU WALEK .........c....eeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e e se s aaaeeesssasssanaeas 3-61
3.7.7 Recycled Water SUpply GNnd DEMANG..............cocoooneeeeeeeeieeeeeeeeeee ettt e e e ettt e e e e e e sttt aaaeeesassasaaaaeeesssssssanaeas 3-61
IV H t=10) o (1o [NV VLo A=l D =T s 1 To [ Lo OO TP 3-63
3.7.9 Recycled WAter COMPAIISON............ceeieeeeeeieeeseeeeeeteee e e e e ettt e e e e e e ettt aaaeeestttaseaaaeessastsssaaaaeesssssssenaaeeesssssssanasas 3-64
3.7.10 Methods to Encourage ReCYCIEd WALEr USE.............ceeecuereeeieeeeeiieeeesteteeeeaeesttaeaesteaeesasaaessaaaessssaaessnssaessnnenaeas 3-64
3.7.11 Optimization PIAN fOr RECYCIEA WALEN ..............ueeeeeeeeeeeees e esee e ettt ettt e e et tta e e e tte s e s aastaaessaaaesssssaesssssasesasenaeas 3-65
3.8 CAPITAL OUTLAY PROGRAM ....ceeituutteeaurttessnreeesaureeeaaseeesanseessanstesassseeesanseeesanseeessasesesansseeesanseessssseesannsnsesanseesssnsseesanneeesannees 3-65

SECTION 4: SUPPLY RELIABILITY PLANNING AND ACCOUNTING FOR
UNCERTAINTIES ASSOCIATED WITH GROUNDWATER CONTAMINATION AND OTHER
FACTORS 4-1

.1 WATER QUALITY ..eeteteeeeeereeerereeeeeersesesesssesssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssssesssesssssssssssesssssssssssssssssens 4-1
4.2 WATER QUALITY CONSTITUENTS OF INTEREST 4vvvveeeieeiuurreeeeeeesesssrereeeeeemsissseseeeseemsssssssssessesssssssssessesssssssssssssesssssssssssssessemssnsssseesess 4-2
B N =T ol ] (o) o 1 - 4-2

80



4.2.2 Per- and PolyfluoroaIkyl SUDSTANCES (PFAS)........uu ettt eeetee ettt e eetea e ettt a ettt e e e ssaaeesssasesssssaeessseseaaans 4-6

W3 1V =3 o] ke [ Lo BN Yo 1L R3S 4-7
4.2.4 DiSINFECEION BY-PrOGUCES ......cccceeeeeeeeee ettt ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e e e et aaaaeee e assasaaaeeaassssasaaaaeeasasssssesaseesssssssenaaas 4-8
4.2.5 TOLQI THINQIOMEEAGNES. ...c.....eeeeeeeeeeee et et e et e et e e ettt e e e ettt e e e sstaeeasseaaeaasseaeaasseaaassesasanssesessseasssssenennnes 4-8
VB Y/ [Tel 0] o] 1o Lo e ol | H SRSt 4-8
V2S48 o o [T ) [0 Yo | Lol | N I =Xy 3SRt 4-9
ViR RO o lo o] (ol 60 ¢ 1] o Yo 1V 4 Lo kXN SRSt 4-9
4.3 IMPORTED WATER QUALITY .t tteeee e ettt e e e e e ettt et e e e e e e aaabe e bt e e e e e e aaansee e e e e e e e e aunbeeeeeeeea s anbeeeeeeeeesanbeeeeeaeeesansnrbeaeeeesasnnreeaeas 4-10
4.4 SURFACE WATER QUALITY 1.ttt tte e e e e ettt e e e e e ettt e e e e e s sabe e et e e eaesaanae et eeeeeaaaaanbeeeeeeeeaaanbeeeeeeeeesanbsbaeeaeeesaansnnbeaeeeesannnneeaeas 4-10
4.5 GROUNDWATER QUALITY ttetteiutttteeeeeeaautttteeeeeasaubteeeeeeeesaases et eeeeesaaaanseeeeeeeaaaanbeeeeeeeeaaanbaeaeeeeeesansssbeeaeeesaansnseeaeeeesasnnreeaeas 4-11
4.5.1 WAter QUAIIEY — AIUVIUM ...ttt ettt e e e e e ettt a e e e e ettt aaaaeeesttaseaaaeesssssssenaaeeesssssssanaeas 4-12
4.5.2 Water QUALItY — SAUGUS FOIMQTION ............eeeeeeieeeeeeeeee et eeete e e ettt e e e e e ettt aaeeeesattasaaaaeessssasssaaaaeessssssssanaeas 4-12
4.6 WATER QUALITY IMPACTS ON RELIABILITY ..eeteuutteeesurttessuneeessasreeeasuseeesauneeessasseessanseeesanseeessnsesesssnseessasseesssnsesessnnseessnnseessnsesessnnees 4-13
4.7 REVIEW OF PENDING WATER QUALITY PERMITTING FOR ALL WELLS....ettiutteeeeitteeeireeesirteeesieeessnseeesnneeessnbaeessnnneessanseessnnnenesannees 4-14
4.7.1 Process Memo 97-005 REQUITEIMENTS .......cccceeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeeee et ee e e et e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e eeeeeeaeeeeeeeeeeeeaeaseeens 4-17
4.7.2 EXiSting AN FULUIE SQUGUS WEIIS .........oeeneeeeeeeeeeeeeee et ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e ettt e e e e tte e e e aastaaesaseeaeasseaensnseassaasenaaas 4-17
L R T = U TN Y S 4-17
4.7.2.2 SAUGUS WEIT 205ttt ettt ettt et stt e et e st e st estaesabe e bt e e ate e bt e sabeeabeeshbeeabeeaaeeeabeeshbesabeenseeeateenseesabeenbaesabeenaeesnees 4-18
e B T = U T Y e B o o [ SR 4-18
4.7.2.8 SAUGUS WEIIS 5 ANT 6 ..oeiiiiiieiiiieeciiee ettt e ettt e ettt e e sta e e et e e e sabeeesabaeeeastaeeastseeeesbaeaassseeasbeeesabbaeessaeeansseeesbaeeansaeesnsses 4-18
oy R U= U T Y o g T [ ST 4-18

4.8 POTENTIAL EFFECTS OF CLIMATE CHANGE . .....ettttttteaaiuttttteeeeeeaatetteeeeaesaauaseeeeeeesaauaseteeeeesaaaanbeeaeeeeeesansseaeeaeeesaansnsbeeeeeesasnnseeeeas 4-19
4.9 PENDING WATER USE EFFICIENCY ....ctttetieiutttteeeeeeestitttee e e e e aiteteeeeeesaause e eeeeee s e anaeeeeeeeeaaanbaeaeeeeeesansabbeeaeaesaannnnaeaeeeesasnnreeaeas 4-24
4.10 WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY IMODELING .....uttttteeeeaeutitteeeeeeeatetteeeeeesaausseeeeeeesaaunseteeeeesaaaunbeeaeeeesesansssaeeaeeesaannnsaeaeesesasannseeaes 4-26
4.11 WATER CONSERVATION AND WATER SHORTAGE CONTINGENCY PLANNING ....ettttiiieiuiittteeeeeaiiieteeeeeesaieeteeeeeeseinraeeeeeesesanseeeeas 4-29
SECTION 5: WATER SUPPLY VERIFICATION..... .ot rree e s e e e e s e e 5-1
5.1 WATER SYSTEM OPERATIONS AND RELIABILITY PLANNING ..eeeutvteesttteesstteeesiuteeessuteeesssaeesssseessnsseesssssseesssssessssssessssseesssssseesssseeens 5-1
5.1.1 Impacts on Water Availability for Agricultural & INAUSEIIQI USES ............cceccueeeeeeiiieeeiiieesiieeeesieeeeseteeesiaeaeesreaaeans 5-2
5.1.2 Historical Operations of Santa Clarita Valley Water SYStIM ............ueeeueeeeeceeeeeeieeeeecteeesieeeesteeeessteaesiseaeessasaenans 5-4
5.1.3 Average/Normal Year Supplies and Demand COMPATISON ..........c.eecveeecueesiueeeieresiieeeissesiseeessesissessssesisssssssesssssssssenns 5-6
5.1.4 Single Dry Year Supplies GNnd DEMANG ................ooeecueeeeeeeeseseee et eetee e s ttta e e s ea e e s tta e e s atteaaesssasasastaaesasssaaesssenannans 5-8
5.1.5 Multiple Dry Year Supplies Gnd DEMANG ..............ccc.eeeeeeeeeieeeieeeeeeeee sttt ee et e et tte e e ettt e e e sstaaestaeaesssseaessnseaessaseeaeas 5-10
5.2 ADDITIONAL WATER SUPPLY RELIABILITY ANALYSIS ...etttteeeeeaiututteeeeeesaauueteeeeessaaunsseeeeessasaunsseaeeessasaansssaeeessessanssnseesesssannsssseeseeesnn 5-12
5.3 CONCLUSION ...ttt e e e ettt e e e e ettt e e e e e aabb et e e e e e e e uabae et e e e e e s aaasee e e e e e e e s e aaseeeeeeeeeaasnb et e eeeeaaaanbae et eeeeeaaunbaebeeeeeesansnnbeaaanenan 5-13
SECTION 6: REFERENCES USED OR RELIED UPON IN PREPARING WSV ................ 6-1

81



PAGE INTENTINALLY LEFT BLANK

82



EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

Introduction

This Executive Summary is provided as a quick reference for the information and conclusions provided in
this Water Supply Verification (WSV). On October 5, 2023, Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV
Water) received a formal request from the City of Santa Clarita (City) to prepare a WSV. SCV Water has
90 days from October 5, 2023, to finalize the document and adopt a resolution approving the WSV. In the
preparation of this WSV, SCV Water’s projections include the most recent State Water Project reliability,
up to date groundwater availability and recently proposed new EPA PFAS standards. This WSV
documents that SCV Water has sufficient water supplies to meet the projected water demands of the
proposed Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Development (Project) in compliance with Government Code
section 66473.7, et seq. The Project meets the definition of a “subdivision” as defined in Government
Code Section 66473.7, and SCV Water is required to provide this WSV.

Project Water Demands

The County of Los Angeles, lead agency for the Project at the time, previously identified Newhall County
Water District (NCWD), a predecessor to SCV Water, as the public water system that would serve the
proposed Project. In August 2017, NCWD provided the lead agency with a Water Supply Assessment
(WSA) in compliance with Water Code section 10910, et seq. That WSA identified sufficient water
supplies during normal, single dry, and multiple dry years during a 20-year projection to meet projected
water demands of the Project.

The Project lies entirely within the SCV Water service area, so the first step in determining whether SCV
Water has sufficient water supplies to meet the Project’s projected water demands is to estimate the
current and future water demands for the service area, including the Project’'s demands, and comparing
these demands to the demands calculated in the WSA as well as the most recently adopted Urban Water
Management Plan (2020 UWMP).

Through changes in the design and updates to SCV Water’'s demand calculations in the 2020 UWMP,
the Project’s water demands have increased from those estimated in the 2017 WSA. Using SCV Water’s
water demand factors from the 2020 UWMP, the total estimated water demand for the Project at build-
out is now approximately 847 acre-feet per year (AFY) in an average/normal year compared to the 728
AFY presented in the 2017 WSA, including temporary irrigation of landscaped slopes. Removing the
temporary slope irrigation reduces the water demand by 126 AFY, bringing the future demand of the
Project down to 721 AFY in an average/normal water year. For purposes of this WSV, the total estimated
Project demand includes the temporary irrigation and is calculated to be 847 AFY in normal/average
years, 898 AFY in a single dry year, and 864 AFY in multiple-dry years. The demands for the Project
were included in SCV Water’'s 2020 UWMP.

Vi

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
83



Water Supply

The next step in the process is to verify the availability of water supplies for the Project. As indicated
above, the current demand projections for the Project have increased slightly from the demand
projections in the WSA, so this WSV evaluates the current water supply conditions to these updated
demand projections for the Project.

SCV Water’s 2020 UWMP sets forth demand projections, including all previously approved projects and
future projects, through the year 2050. The Project was included in the 2020 UWMP. The 2020 UWMP
concludes that SCV Water has sufficient water supply for normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years over
its planning horizon. This conclusion is based on the reliability of water supply from imported State Water
Project water, local groundwater supplies, banking programs with Semitropic and Rosedale-Rio Bravo
Water Districts, long-term agreements with Buena Vista-Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Districts, recycled
water as well as conservation measures and other water exchanges and transfers as shown in the
Executive Summary, Table 1 — Summary of Projected Supplies and Demands, below. The 2020 UWMP
also assessed and incorporated potential impacts from climate change as it relates to both the supply
and demands projections.

This WSV also relies on the most recent information in regard to water quality challenges impacting the
local groundwater basins. A key factor to meeting future demands is restoring existing groundwater
supplies that are currently contaminated with perchlorate, per- and poly fluorinated alkyl substances
(PFAS), and volatile organic compounds (VOCs).

Recently, two wells (Well 205 and Well 201) which initially were scheduled to be back on-line in 2023
due to treatment for perchlorate and VOCs have had their timeline extended to 2025. Two additional
wells (Saugus 1 and Saugus 2) are also scheduled for VOC treatment planned to be completed by 2025.
The proposed timeline for all wells impacted by perchlorate, VOCs and PFAS can be found in Tables 4-
3(a)(b). The temporary reduction in supply due to new treatment timelines was incorporated into our
calculations in this WSV.

In March 2023, the United States Environmental Protection Agency (USEPA) announced a proposal to
establish national standard maximum contaminant levels (MCL) for PFAS in drinking water. These newly
proposed MCL’s may affect SCV Water’s ability to pump groundwater locally and may require SCV
Water to perform PFAS treatment on up to 31 impacted wells. Although these proposed changes are not
anticipated to be finalized until 2024 with an additional 3 years for compliance, SCV Water has amended
its Groundwater Treatment Implementation Plan’ which evaluated these proposed changes and their
potential impacts on our groundwater supply. The plan identifies additional wells needing PFAS
treatment and provides a schedule where the wells will be returned to service by 2030. This WSV
includes this new information and evaluates impacts from the newly proposed MCL’s and determines
SCV water can reliably utilize other water supply sources until the affected wells have been returned to

! Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2023. Addendum to the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Groundwater Treatment
Implementation Plan. August
vi

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
84



service. The impacts of water quality affecting the local groundwater basins are explained in more detail
in Section 4.2.

Executive Summary Table 1 below shows current water supply projections, which include only existing
and recovered supplies, taking the new treatment schedules and USEPA MCL'’s for PFAS into account,
compared to water demand projections.

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY TABLE 1
SUMMARY OF PROJECTED SUPPLIES AND DEMANDS (AF)

Summary of SCV Water's Existing and Recovered Supplies

Normal Year Normal Year Remaining | Single-Dry Year Single-Dry Year e 5—'Year Dry  5-Year Dry Perif)d SemEining
Year (a) Demand (AF) b) Demand (AF) Period Supply Demand (AF) with

Supply (AF) with Project(a) Balance (AF) | Supply (AF) with Project“’) Balance (AF) (AR iject(c) Balance (AF)
2025 94,039 76,400 17,639 86,547 81,000 5,547 98,043 77,830 20,213
2030 104,196 81,700 22,496 104,356 86,600 17,756 114,023 83,620 30,403
2035 108,988 88,700 20,288 115,550 94,000 21,550 125,229 90,570 34,659
2040 109,435 93,600 15,835 116,719 99,200 17,519 129,706 95,780 33,926
2045 110,436 97,500 12,936 117,720 103,400 14,320 130,636 99,670 30,966

Notes:

(a) Reference Table 5-2 for Normal Year supply and demands with active and passive conservation.
(b) Reference Table 5-3 for Single Dry Year supply and demands with active and passive conservation.
(c) Reference Table 5-4 for Multi Dry Year supply and demands with active and passive conservation.

Verification of Sufficient Water Supply

This WSV is based on the evaluation of the approved WSA for the Project as well as the 2020 UWMP
updated with the most recent information regarding the Project and the current status of SCV Water’s
supplies. This WSV concludes that the total projected water supplies available during normal, single-dry,
and multiple-dry water years during a 20-year planning projection are sufficient to meet the projected
water demands of the Project, in addition to SCV Water’s existing demands and planned future
demands, including but not limited to agricultural and industrial uses.

Vi

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
85



[This page intentionally left blank.]

86



List of Tables

Table 2-1 Historical Water Use In the SCV Water Service Area (AF)

Table 2-2 Summary of Water Supplies Used in 2020 (AF)

Table 2-3 SCV Water Projected Normal/Average Year Demands (AFY)

Table 2-4 SCV Water Projected Single-Dry Year Demands (AFY)

Table 2-5 SCV Water Projected Multiple-Dry Year Demands (AFY)

Table 2-6 Water Demand Estimates — Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

Table 2-7 Demand Factors Used in Water Supply Verification Calculations

Table 3-1 SWP Table A Supply Reliability (AF)

Table 3-2 Groundwater Operating Plan For The Santa Clarita Valley

Table 3-3 Recent Historical Groundwater Production (AF)

Table 3-4 Projected Groundwater Production (Normal Year) (AF)

Table 3-4(a) Active Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity — Alluvial Aquifer Wells

Table 3-4(b) Active Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity — Existing, Future and Recovered Alluvial
Aquifer Wells Normal Year Detail (2021-2030)

Table 3-4(c) Active Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity — Existing, Future and Recovered Alluvial
Aquifer Wells Dry Year Detail (2021-2030)

Table 3-5(a) Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity- Existing, Future, And Recovered Saugus
Formation Wells

Table 3-5(b) Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity- Existing, Future, And Recovered Saugus
Formation Wells Normal Year Detail (2021-2030)

Table 3-5(c) Municipal Groundwater Source Capacity- Existing, Future, And Recovered Saugus
Formation Wells Dry Year Detail (2021-2030)

Table 3-6 Average/Normal Year Existing And Planned Groundwater Usage (AF)

Table 3-7 Single-Dry Year Existing And Planned Groundwater Usage (AF)

Table 3-8 Multiple Dry Year (5-Year) Existing And Planned Groundwater Usage (AF)

Table 3-9 Participating Entities

Table 3-10 Existing And Projected Recycled Water Demand

Table 3-11 Projected Recycled Water Use

Table 3-12 Recycled Water Uses — Projection Compared With Actual Use (AFY)

Table 4-1 Status of Impacted Wells

Table 4-2 Current And Projected Water Supply Changes Due To Water Quality (Percent Change)

Table 4-3(a) Anticipated Schedule For Permitting And Operation Of Saugus Wells

Table 4-3(b) Anticipated Schedule For Permitting and Operations of Alluvial Wells

Table 4-4 Recommended Indoor Water Use Standards

Table 4-5 Various SCV Water Supply Scenarios

Table 5-1 SCV Water Historical Sources of Supply (AFY)

Table 5-2 Projected Average/Normal Year Supplies And Demands (AF)

Table 5-3 Projected Single-Dry Year Supplies And Demands (AF)

Table 5-4 Projected Five-Year Dry Year Supplies and Demands (AF)

Vii

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
87



List of Figures

Figure 1-1 Project Location Map

Figure 2-1 Historical Water Use in the SCV Water Service Area (AF)
Figure 3-1 New Drop Program Process

Figure 4-1 Monthly Distribution of ETo Compared to Baseline

Figure 4-2 Monthly Distribution of Precipitation Compared to Baseline
Figure 4-3 Final Reliability Results with Active Conservation

List of Appendices

A. Tentative Tract Map 51644-1

List of Acronyms

AF Acre-Feet

AFY Acre-Feet Per Year

AIP Agreement in Principle

AVEK Antelope Valley East-Kern Water Agency
Bay-Delta San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary
BO Biological Opinion

BVWSD Buena Vista Water Storage District

Cal OES California Office of Emergency Services
CASGEM California Statewide Groundwater Elevation Monitoring
CCR California Code of Regulations

CCWA Central Coast Water Authority

CEC California Energy Commission

CESA California Endangered Species Act

CEQA California Environmental Quality Act

CEPA California Environmental Protection Agency
CDFW California Department of Fish and Wildlife
cfs Cubic Feet Per Second

Cll Commercial, Industrial, Institutional

CLWA Castaic Lake Water Agency

CNRA California National Resources Agency
COA Coordinated Operation Agreement

CORPS Corps of Engineers

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)



CVvP Central Valley Project

BPD Disinfection By-Products

DCP Delta Conveyance Project

DCP Delivery Capability Report

DDW Division of Drinking Water

DFW Department of Fish and Wildlife

DLR Detection Level for Reporting

DPH California Department of Public Health
DPR Direct Potable Reuse

DSS Decision Support System

DTSC Department of Toxic Substances Control
DWR Department of Water Resources

FBR Fluidized Bed Reactor

FWS Fish and Wildlife Service

GSA Groundwater Sustainability Agency

GSP Groundwater Sustainability Plan

GWMP Groundwater Management Plan

HET High Efficiency Toilets

HEU High Efficiency Urinals

EIR Environmental Impact Report

EIS Environmental Impact Statement

ESA Endangered Species Act

FBR fluidized bed reactor

GIS Geographic Information System

HAAS Haloacetic Acids

KCWA Kern County Water Agency

IRWMP Integrated Regional Water Management Plan
LACWWD 36 Los Angeles County Water Works District 36
LARWQCB Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board
MAF Million Acre-Feet

MGD Million Gallons per Day

MGL Micrograms per Liter

MOU Memorandum of Understanding

NCWD Newhall County Water District

NEPA National Environmental Policy Act

Ng/L nanograms per liter

NL Notification Level

NLF Newhall Land and Farming

NMFS National Marine Fisheries Service
NPDES National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System
NOP Notice of Preparation

NWD Newhall Water Division

OAL Office of Administrative Law

ovov One Valley One Vision

ix

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

89



PFAS Per- and Polyfluoroalkyl Substances

PFOA Perfluorooctonic acid

PFOS Perflurooctane sulfonate

PWAs Public Water Agencies

RL Response Level

RRBWSD Rosedale Rio-Bravo Water Storage District
RWMP Recycled Water Management Plan
SATP Saugus Aquifer Treatment Plant

SB Senate Bill

SCWD Santa Clarity Water Division

SCVSD Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District
SCV Water Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency
Semitropic Semitropic Water Storage District
SGMA Sustainable Groundwater Management Act
SLDMWA San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority
SNMP Salt and Nutrient Management Plan
SOC Synthetic organic compounds
SWRCB State Water Resources Control Board
SWP State Water Project

SWRU Stored Water Recovery Unit

THMS Trihalomethanes

TTHMs Total Trihalomethanes

TMDL Total Maximum Daily Load

TOC Total Organic Carbon

USCR Upper Santa Clara River

VOC Volatile Organic Compound

WMT Water Management Tools

WQOs Water Quality Objectives

WSA Water Supply Assessment

WSV Water Supply Verification

WUESP Water Use Efficiency Strategic Plan
ug/L micrograms per liter

UIF Unimpaired Flow

UuwcCD United Water Conservation District
USEPA United State Environmental Protection Agency
USBR United States Bureau of Reclamation
UWMP Urban Water Management Plan

uv Ultra-Violet

WKWD West Kern Water District

WQR Water Quality Report

WRP Water Reclamation Plant

VWC Valencia Water Company

VWD Valencia Water Division

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)



Section 1: Introduction

1.1 Background

This Water Supply Verification (WSV) has been prepared by the Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV
Water) for the Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Development (Project), which consists of 665 single family
home lots, 155 senior villas, 5.21 acres of developed parks and 133.84 acres of dedicated irrigation,
located in the City of Santa Clarita, Los Angeles County, California. The WSV is prepared pursuant to the
requirements of California Government Code Sections 66473.7, et seq., commonly known as Senate Bill
221 (SB 221; Kuehl; Chapter 642, Stats. 2001)."

SB 221 amended state law, effective January 1, 2002, to improve the link between information on water
supply availability and certain land use decisions made by cities and counties. Generally, SB 221 requires
cities and counties to condition their approvals of tentative maps that include a “subdivision” (defined as a
proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units) on obtaining written verification from
the applicable “public water system” that a sufficient water supply will be available to serve the proposed
subdivision in addition to existing and planned future uses.”

The Water Code defines “public water system” to mean “a system for the provision of piped water to the
public for human consumption that has 3,000 or more service connections.” SCV Water serves piped water
to the public (i.e., residents of the Santa Clarita Valley) within its current service area, and the area includes
about 73,542 service connections in the City of Santa Clarita and in the neighboring unincorporated Los
Angeles County communities. As a result, SCV Water is the “public water system” for the purposes of this
WSV and would serve as the water purveyor for the Project.

The Project involves a tentative map that includes more than 500 residential dwelling units. The City of
Santa Clarita has thus conditioned approval of Tentative Tract Map No. 51644-1 for the Project on
obtaining a WSV to show that a sufficient water supply will be available to serve the Project in accordance
with the SB 221 standards.? SCV Water is the retail purveyor for the Project, and thus SCV Water is
required to prepare a WSV, pursuant to a request by CEQA lead agency, which is the City of Santa Clarita.®

1.2 Purpose and Applicable Requirements

As noted above, SB 221 requires cities and counties to condition their approvals of tentative maps that
include a “subdivision” (defined as a proposed residential development of more than 500 dwelling units)
on obtaining written verification from the applicable “public water system” that a “sufficient water supply”
will be available to serve the proposed subdivision in addition to existing and planned future uses,
including, but not limited to agricultural and industrial uses. (Govt. Code § 66437.7(a)-(b).) “Sufficient water
supply” means the total water supplies available during normal, single-dry, and multiple-dry years within a
20-year projection that will meet the projected demand associated with the specified subdivision, in addition

1SB 221, filed with Secretary of State October 9, 2001, amended Section 11010 of the Business and Professions Code and
Section 65867.5 of the Government Code (Subdivision Map Act), and added Sections 66455.3 and 66473.7 to the
Government Code (Subdivision Map Act).
2 Government Code § 66473.7(a)(1). This section also includes other types of development that are defined as a “project” by
this section of the code.
3 Government Code § 66473.7(a)(1)

1-1

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
91



to existing and planned future uses, including, but not limited to, agricultural and industrial uses. (Govt.
Code § 66437.7(a)(2).)

In determining whether a sufficient water supply will be available, all of the following factors must be
considered:

(a) the availability of water supplies over a historical record of at least 20 years (Table 5-1);

(b) the applicability of an urban water shortage contingency analysis prepared pursuant to Section
10632 of the Water Code that includes actions to be undertaken by the public water system in response
to water supply shortages*;

(c) the reduction in water supply allocated to a specific water use sector pursuant to a resolution or
ordinance adopted, or a contract entered into, by the public water system, as long as that resolution,
ordinance, or contract does not conflict with Section 354 of the Water Code; and

(d) the amount of water that the water supplier can reasonably rely on receiving from other water
supply projects such as conjunctive use, reclaimed water, water conservation, and water transfer, including
programs identified under federal, state, and local water initiatives®.

(e) if the Project relies in whole or in part on groundwater, the following factors:

(i) For a basin for which a court or the State Water Resources Control Board has adjudicated
the rights to pump groundwater, the order or decree adopted by the court or the State Water Resources
Control Board.

(i) For a basin that has not been adjudicated, as follows:

(I) For a basin designated as high- or medium-priority pursuant to Section 10722.4
of the Water Code, the most recently adopted or revised adopted groundwater sustainability plan or
approved alternative. If there is no adopted groundwater sustainability plan or approved alternative,
information as to whether the Department of Water Resources has identified the basin or basins as over
drafted or has projected that the basin will become over drafted if present management conditions
continue®.

(II) For a basin designated as low- or very low priority pursuant to Section 10722.4
of the Water Code, information as to whether the Department of Water Resources has identified the basin
or basins as over drafted or has projected that the basin will become over drafted if present management
conditions continue.

(see Govt. Code § 66437.7(a)(2)(A)-(E).)

SB 221 provides that a WSV must be based on substantial evidence, which may include, but is not limited
to:

(a) the water agency’s most recently adopted Urban Water Management Plan’;

4 See link in Section 6 to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan Section 4
5 See Section 5 Tables 5-2, 5-3 and 5-4
6 See link in Section 6 to Santa Clara River Valley East Groundwater Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan, 2022
7 See link in Section 6 to SCVYWA 2020 Urban Water Management Plan
1-2

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
92



(b) a Water Supply Assessment previously prepared for the project under SB 6108;

(c) a groundwater sustainability plan adopted or alternative approved pursuant to Part 2.74
(commencing with Section 10720) of Division 6 of the Water Code?; and

(d) information and analysis that is substantially similar to that contained in the water agency’s
water shortage contingency plan.

(Govt. Code § 66437.7(c).)

If the subdivision relies on water sources that are not currently available to the water agency, the WSV
must be based, as to those sources of projected supplies, on the following elements, as applicable:

(a) written contracts or other proof of valid rights to the supply that identify the terms and conditions
under which the water will be available to serve the proposed subdivision;

(b) copies of capital outlay programs for delivery financing;
(c) applicable construction permits for infrastructure necessary to serve the subdivision; and
(d) any other necessary regulatory approvals.

(Govt. Code § 66437.7(d).)

In addition to the above requirements, the WSV must include a description to the extent data is reasonably
available, of the reasonably foreseeable impacts of the proposed subdivision on the availability of water
resources for agricultural and industrial uses within the water agency’s service area’".

(Govt. Code § 66437.7(9).)

Where the water supply for a proposed subdivision includes groundwater, the WSV also must evaluate the
extent to which the water supplier and/or project applicant has the right to extract any groundwater on
which the subdivision will rely2,

(Govt. Code § 66437.7(h).)
This WSV addresses and meets all of these SB 221.

8 See link in Section 6 to NCWD Tesoro Del Valle Development Water Supply Assessment, August 2017

9 See link in Section 6 to Santa Clara River Valley East Groundwater Subbasin Groundwater Sustainability Plan, 2022
10 see link in Section 6 to SCVWA Biennial Budget and Section 3.8

11 See Section 5.1.1

12 See Groundwater Section 3.3.3

1-3

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
93



Government
Code Section
66473.7(a)(2)(A) |Section5 - Table 5-1
66473.7(a)(2)(B) |Section 6 Link - 2020 Water Shortage Contingency Plan Section 4
66473.7(a)(2)(D) |Section5- Tables 5-2, 5-3 and 5-4
66473.7(a)(2)(E) |Section 6 Link - 2022 SCRV Groundwater Sustainablity Plan

Information Location

66473.7(c)(a) Section 6 Link - 2020 SCVWA Urban Water Management Plan
66437.7(c)(b) Section 6 Link - 2017 NCWD Tesoro Del Valle Development WSA
66437.7(c)(c) Section 6 Link - 2022 SCRV Groundwater Sustainablity Plan
66437.7(d) Section 6 Link - SCVWA Biennial Budget 23/24, 24/25 and Section 3.8
66437.7(g) Section 5.1.1

66437.7(h) Groundwater Section 3.3.3

1.3 Project Description

The Project (Vesting Tentative Tract Map 51644-1) is a 1274.9+/- acre subdivision of which approximately
243-acres in Phases B & C will be developed with residential homes, parks and landscape with dedicated
irrigation, the balance being unirrigated open space. The Project is located east of the |-5 Freeway along
the northern boundary of the City of Santa Clarita. The Project site is adjacent to, and northwesterly of, the
mostly constructed Phase A of the Tesoro Del Valle development, just north of Avenida Rancho Tesoro
and west of Casa Luna Place. The Project is located within SCV Water’s service area as shown in Figure
1-1. The Project consists of 665 single family residential homes, 155 multi-family senior villas, 5.21 acres
of developed parks and 133.84 acres of landscaping with dedicated irrigation. The total estimated water
demand for the Project at build-out is approximately 847 AFY in an average/normal year. The Project Site
Plans are shown in Appendix A.

1.3.1 Project CEQA Discussion

In December 1998, the County of Los Angeles certified the Final Environmental Impact Report (FEIR) for
the entire Tesoro Del Valle development. The certification of the FEIR came before the passing of State
Bill 610 that requires a Water Supply Assessment be completed for any projects exceeding 500 units. In
2018, the County of Los Angeles certified a Supplemental Environmental Impact Report (SEIR) for the
Project. The SEIR included a SB 610 Water Supply Assessment prepared by Newhall County Water
District (NCWD), a predecessor to Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency. The WSA states that the total
projected water supplies available during the ensuing twenty years would be adequate to meet the
projected water demands associated with the Project as well as existing and other planned uses within
SCV Water’s service area. This determination was consistent with the Castaic Lake Water Agency’s, a
predecessor to SCV Water, 2015 UWMP.

1-4

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
94



Figure 1-1 Project Location Map

L 5 -

Q-

L LT

= Orune, Ow
© N 4

o s B

LT AgeREm e

R Simi Valley &
e il . .
L -,
Lannen B
L I Pasmmar § 1
— A v Nywe Benay by e i
#enive boed i
-

1-5

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

95



1.4 Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency

SCV Water is located in the northwestern portion of Los Angeles County. SCV Water is the regional water
wholesaler and retailer for the Santa Clarita Valley. The Project site is located within SCV Water’s service
area, and the lead agency has identified SCV Water as the water supplier for the Project.

SCV Water's service area includes nearly the entire city of Santa Clarita and neighboring unincorporated
portions of Los Angeles County. SCV Water’s current service area includes a mix of residential and
commercial, and light industrial land uses, mostly comprised of single-family homes, apartments,
condominiums, and several local shopping centers and neighborhood commercial developments. SCV
Water serves approximately 73,542 service connections. SCV Water generally meets potable water
demands using a mix of local groundwater, banked groundwater supplies, imported State Water Project
(SWP) water, and other imported supplies. Recycled water is delivered to some customers for non-potable
uses, such as landscape irrigation.

The groundwater basin in the Santa Clarita Valley, the Santa Clara River East Subbasin, is unadjudicated,
meaning that SCV Water does not have specific adjudicated, or court-defined, water rights or specific
limitations that dictate its groundwater supply. However, in practice, SCV Water assesses available
groundwater supplies pursuant to appropriative groundwater rights in the basin and in accordance with a
groundwater operating plan developed by SCV Water and other retail water purveyors in the Santa Clarita
Valley and complemented by analyses based on a numerical groundwater flow model of the basin. SCV
Water is also a member of the Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SCV-GSA) for the
Santa Clara River East Subbasin. In preparing the basin’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP), it
conducted additional numeric modeling that further refined the groundwater operating plan for the basin
as further discussed in Section 3.3.2.1. The Project landowner will not pump groundwater to serve the
Project. SCV Water has rights to and will pump groundwater, as part of its water supply portfolio, to serve
the Project as detailed more fully herein.

1.4.1 Water Management Within SCV Water

SCV Water was formed on January 1, 2018, when the Castaic Lake Water Agency (CLWA), which included
Santa Clarita Water Division (SCWD), merged with Newhall County Water District (NCWD) to become a
single agency pursuant to state legislation (SB 634, Chapter 833 2017). Later in January 2018, Valencia
Water Company (VWC) was dissolved, and its assets were transferred to SCV Water. The SCV Water
service area is shown in Figure 1-1. The formation of SCV Water occurred through a collaborative process.
Until the merger, CLWA served as the regional wholesaler to the Santa Clarita Valley, encompassing a
service area of 195 square miles in Los Angeles and Ventura Counties. SCV Water now serves the same
service area which covers nearly the entire City of Santa Clarita and unincorporated portions of Los
Angeles County. In addition, SCV Water serves as a wholesale water provider to Los Angeles County
Water Works District 36 (LACWWD 36) whose service area includes the Hasley Canyon and the Val Verde
communities in unincorporated Los Angeles County. LACWWD 36, which is in the SCV Water service
area, relies in part on its own groundwater. SCV Water provides imported water as a supplemental supply.

1.5 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

Under SB 221, the most recently adopted Urban Water Management Plan (UWMP)" is a foundational
document for WSV’s and can be used as substantial evidence to support the conclusions in the WSV. The

4 Urban Water Management Planning Act (UWMP Act), Water Code § 10610, et seq.
1-6

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
96



2020 UWMP was adopted by the SCV Water Board of Directors in June 2021 and filed with DWR.' Since
the 2020 UWMP was submitted to DWR in 2021, additional information has become available, which staff
incorporated into this WSV. These updates primarily reflect revised SWP reliability data, which became
available from the October 2021, Final SWP Delivery Capability Report (DCR 2021) (see Section 3.2.7
SWP Water Supply Estimate) as well as updated planning, construction, and permitting schedules for
several groundwater well recovery projects (see Section 3.3.2.3 Available Groundwater Supplies). The
2020 UWMP information was therefore updated to provide the SCV Water Board with the most current
information when it considers adoption of this WSV.

The 2020 UWMP is a planning document covering the SCV Water service area. The 2020 UWMP
encouraged extensive public participation that included information dissemination; public workshops,
meetings, and hearings; plan adoption; and plan submittal to DWR. The 2020 UWMP includes the following
ten major sections:

Section 1: Introduction

Section 2: Water Use

Section 3: SBX7-7 Baseline, Targets, and 2020 Compliance
Section 4: Water Resources

Section 5: Recycled Water

Section 6: Water Quality

Section 7: Reliability Planning

Section 8: Demand Management Measures

Section 9: Catastrophic Interruptions in Water Service
Section 10: References

Consistent with the UWMP Act, the 2020 UWMP accomplishes water supply planning over the required
20-year period in five-year increments. While not required, SCV Water exceeded the requirements of the
UWMP Act by including a span of 30 years in the 2020 UWMP, extending out to 2050. The 2020 UWMP
identifies and quantifies sufficient water supplies for existing and future demands in normal/average,
single-dry, and multiple-dry years and describes implementation of conservation and efficient use of urban
water supplies.

Due to the fact that the County of Los Angeles had certified an EIR for the Project and their Planning
Department was involved in the preparation of 2020 UWMP to the extent of notifying SCV Water of all
known future projects, the Project’s total projected water demand was accounted for in the 2020 UWMP.
This information is incorporated by reference in this WSV and can be found on SCV Water's website at
https://yourscvwater.com/uwmp/. Demands for the Project are included in Section 2.3 of this WSV.

1.6 SCV Water Policies and Regulatory Approvals/Permits

The Project will be subject to all SCV Water policies that govern development and connection to the SCV
Water public water system. As with other projects within its service area, the Project applicant is
responsible for making appropriate financial and contractual arrangements with SCV Water to assure the
necessary improvements are made to the water supply infrastructure to serve the Project site.

Other Regulatory Approvals/Permits: SCV Water is regulated by the State Water Resources Control Board
— Division of Drinking Water (DDW) and must meet rigorous water quality standards.

14 The 2020 UWMP, Section 1.
1-7

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
97


https://yourscvwater.com/uwmp/

1.7 Information Used or Relied Upon in Preparing this WSV

This WSV used or relied on information contained in the documents listed below. Documents may be
available online, as set forth in Section 6 — References, and/or by contacting the SCV Water - Water
Resources Department at (661) 297-1600. The documents are part of SCV Water's record for the
preparation of this WSV.

California Department of Water Resources, 2021 Final State Water Project Delivery Capability
Report.

California Department of Water Resources 2019 State Water Project Delivery Capability Report.
California Department of Water Resources Contract Extension Amendment, February 2019.
California Department of Water Resources Addendum to the Coordinated Operations Agreement.
with the Bureau of Reclamation, December 2018.

California Department of Water Resources. 2018. Delta Flood Emergency Plan.

California Department of Water Resources. 2018a. Guidance for Climate Change Data Use
During Groundwater Sustainability Plan Development.

California Department of Water Resources. November 2011. “Climate Change Handbook for
Regional Water Planning.”

California Department of Water Resources, 2016. Bulletin 118 — Update 2016.

California Department of Water Resources and the Army Corps of Engineers, 2019. Delta
Emergency Integration Plan.

California Department of Water Resources Climate Change Technical Advisory Group (CCTAG).
2015. Producing Scientific and Strategic Guidance for California's Department of Water
Resources.

California Department of Water Resources Coordinated Operations Agreement with the Bureau
of Reclamation, 1986.

California Division of Drinking Water, November 1997. Policy Memo 97-005: Policy Guidance for
Direct Domestic Use of Extremely Impaired Sources.

California Ocean Protection Council. 2018. Sea-Level Rise Guidance.

California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES). 2018. Northern California Catastrophic Flood
Response Plan.

California State Water Resources Control Board, 2000. Revised Water Right Decision 1641.
Carollo Engineers, June 2015. Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Water Resources
Reconnaissance Study.

CH2M Hill, 2004a. Regional Ground water Flow Model for the Santa Clarita Valley, Model
Development and Calibration.

CH2M Hill, 2004 b. Analysis of Perchlorate Containment in Ground water Near the Whittaker-
Bermite Property, Santa Clarita, California, Prepared in support of the 97-005 Permit Application.
CH2M Hill, 2005a. Technical Memorandum, Calibration Update of the Regional Ground Water
Flow Model for the Santa Clarita Valley, Santa Clarita, California.

CH2M Hill and Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers, 2005. Analysis of Ground Water
Basin Yield, Upper Santa Clara River Groundwater Basin, East Subbasin, Los Angeles County,
California, prepared for Upper Basin Water Purveyors.

1-8

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023
Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

98



e Geoscience. 2014. Salt and Nutrient Management Plan for the Upper Santa Clara River
Groundwater Basin Volumes 1 and 2.

o GSI Water Solutions (GSI), Inc. 2022. Santa Clara River Valley East Groundwater Sustainability
Plan.

o GSI Water Solutions (GSI), Inc. 2020a. Water Budget Development for the Santa Clara River
Valley East Groundwater Subbasin, Draft Technical Memorandum.

e GSI Water Solutions, Inc. 2020. Development of a Numerical Groundwater Flow Model for the
Santa Clara River Valley East Groundwater Subbasin.

e GSI & LSCE. 2014. Draft Report: Perchlorate Containment Plan for Well V201 and Saugus
Formation Groundwater in the Santa Clarita Valley (Task 3 of the Well V201 Restoration
Program).

e Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2023. Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Addendum to the
Groundwater Treatment Implementation Plan.

¢ Kennedy/Jenks Consultants 2021. Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency Groundwater Treatment
Implementation Plan Addendum.

e Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2021. Santa Clarita Valley 2020 Urban Water Management Plan

o Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2016a. Recycled Water Master Plan Update.

¢ Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2016b. Santa Clarita Valley Recycled Water Rules and Regulations
Handbook.

¢ Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2015. Final Preliminary Design Report for the Recycled Water
System Phase 2B.

¢ Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2014 and 2018 Update. Integrated Regional Water Management
Plan for the Upper Santa Clara River Region.

¢ Kennedy/Jenks Consultants. 2002. Recycled Water Master Plan Update.

e Los Angeles Regional Water Quality Control Board (LARWQCB). 1994. Water Quality Control
Plan: Los Angeles Region Basin Plan for the Coastal Watersheds of Los Angeles and Ventura
Counties, 2020 version.

e Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers, 2021. 2020 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report.

e Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers, 2020. 2019 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report.

e Luhdorff & Scalmanini and GSI Water Solutions. August 2009. Analysis of Ground Water
Supplies and Ground water Basin Yield, Upper Santa Clara River Ground Water Basin, East
Subbasin.

e Luhdorff and Scalmanini, 2005. Consulting Engineers, Impact and Response to Perchlorate
Contamination, Valencia Water Company Well Q2, prepared for Valencia Water Company.

e Luhdorff & Scalmanini, Consulting Engineers, December 2003. Ground Water Management Plan
for the Santa Clara Valley Ground Water Basin, East Subbasin.

¢ M&N. 2007. Levee Repair, Channel Barrier, and Transfer Facility Concept Analyses to Support
Emergency Preparedness Planning.

¢ Maddaus Water Management (MWM), Inc. 2021. Draft 2021 SCV Demand Study: Land-Use-
Based Demand Forecast Analysis.

e Maddaus Water Management (MWM), Inc. 2015. SCV Family of Water Supplies Water Use
Efficiency Strategic Plan.

1-9

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
99



e Newhall County Water District (NCWD), SB 610 Water Supply Assessment for the Tesoro Del
Valle Development, August 2017.

¢ Newhall Land and Farming Agreement with Semitropic WSD for Water Banking Exchange
Program 2001.

¢ Newhall Land and Farming Company 2022, Nickel Water Agreement.

¢ Richard C. Slade & Associates, LLC, 2001 Update Report, Hydrogeologic Conditions in the
Alluvial and Saugus Formation Aquifer Systems, prepared for Santa Clarita Valley Water
Purveyors, July 2002.

¢ Richard C. Slade & Associates, LLC, 1988. Hydrogeologic Assessment of the Saugus Formation
in the Santa Clara Valley of Los Angeles County, California, Vols. | and Il, prepared for Castaic
Lake Water Agency.

e Richard C. Slade & Associates, LLC, 1988. Investigation of Perennial Yield and Atrtificial
Recharge Potential of the Alluvial Sediments in the Santa Clarita River Valley of Los Angeles
County, California, Vols. | and I, prepared for Upper Santa Clara Water Committee.

e Sanitation Districts of Los Angeles County, 2013. Santa Clarita Valley Sanitation District Chloride
Compliance Facilities Plan and Environmental Impact Report.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Biennial Budget, FY 2021/22 and FY 2022/23.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Biennial Budget, FY 2023/24 and FY 2024/25.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water). 2023. 2021 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water). 2021. Water Supply Reliability Plan Update,
prepared by Geosyntec.

¢ Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water). 2021. 2020 Urban Water Management Plan for
Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency.

¢ Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), 2021. Final Water Shortage Contingency Plan.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Two-for-One Water Exchange Program with
Antelope Valley-East Kern Water Agency (AVEK), 2019.

¢ Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water) Two-for-One Water Exchange Program with
United Water Conservation District, 2019.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), 2018, Yuba Accord Agreement.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), July 2015. Castaic Lake Water Agency 2015
Strategic Plan, 2017 Addendum.

o Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), State Water Contract with the Department of
Water Resources (DWR).

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), 2015, Agreement with Ventura County for use
of their Flexible Storage Account.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Agreement with Semitropic Water Storage
District for participation in the Storage Water Recovery Unit (SWRU), 2015.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), 2014, Agreement in Principle with the
Department of Water Resources for extension of contracts, September 12, 2014.

e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Transfer Agreement with Buena Vista Water
Storage District and Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District, 2007.

¢ Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), Water Banking and Exchange Program
Agreement with Rosedale Rio Bravo Water Storage District, 2005-2015.

1-10

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
100



e Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency (SCV Water), 1996. Contract with the Santa Clarita Valley
Sanitation District.

¢ Sites Program Management Team. 2020. Sites Reservoir Value Planning Report.

e Wang, Jianzhong, Hongbing Yin, Erik Reyes, Tara Smith, Francis Chung (California Department
of Water Resources). 2018. Mean and Extreme Climate Change Impacts on the State Water
Project. California’s Fourth Climate Change Assessment. Publication number: CCCA4-EXT-2018-
004.

e Woodard and Curran, 2021. Recycled Water Seasonal Storage Study Technical Memo, January
14, 2021.

1-11

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification — November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
101



[This page intentionally left blank.]

102



Section 2: Historical and Projected Water Supplies and Demands

This section describes historical and projected water supplies and demands in the SCV Water service area
and the methodology used to project future demands within SCV Water service area. In order to estimate
demand out to 2050 (assumed year of designated land use-buildout), population and water use projections
were made based upon existing land uses and planned land use development compiled for the service
area, including the City of Santa Clarita and County of Los Angeles land use plans, also known as the One
Valley One Vision general plan (OVOV). The Project is located in the City of Santa Clarita and covered by
the OVOV. It is SCV Water’s understanding that this development is contained in and consistent with the
OVOV plan. As the UWMP incorporates the housing and commercial development projected in the OVOV
plan, the Project’'s water demand has already been incorporated into the existing UWMP demand
projections. In addition, weather and water conservation effects on water usage were considered for this
WSV consistent with the approach of the 2020 UWMP.

2.1 Historical Use and Existing and Projected SCV Water Demands

As part of the 2020 UWMP update, an analysis was performed that combined growth projections with water
use data to forecast total water demand in future years. Water uses were broken out into specific categories
and assumptions were made to accurately project water use over the next 30 years. The demand
projections include econometric modeling and plumbing code changes and assume that water
conservation programs will continue to be implemented. Climate change impacts on demands were also
assessed and incorporated in the demand projections. Demand projections were based on the 2021
Maddaus Technical Memorandum, which serves as the land-use demand forecast for SCV Water and its
service area. SCV Water's service area historical and current potable water demands are shown in
Table 2-1 and graphically in Figure 2-1.

2-1

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
103



HISTORICAL WATER USE IN THE SCV WATER SERVICE AREA

TABLE 2-1

BASED ON AVAILABLE SUPPLIES USED (AF)®

Year Population®  SCV Water = LACWWD 36® Total®
1995 161,234 45,196 477 45,673
1996 164,417 49,614 533 50,147
1997 168,825 53,388 785 54,173
1998 173,802 48,280 578 48,858
1999 179,260 56,596 654 57,250
2000 186,236 60,188 800 60,988
2001 196,619 59,784 907 60,691
2002 206,400 67,156 1,069 68,225
2003 215,779 66,272 1,175 67,447
2004 227,823 71,062 1,234 72,296
2005 237,065 69,568 1,200 70,768
2006 242,464 72,837 1,289 74,126
2007 247,194 76,086 1,406 77,492
2008 248,909 74,546 1,354 75,900
2009 250,624 68,731 1,243 69,974
2010 254,548 62,925 1,141 64,066
2011 257,095 63,633 1,172 64,805
2012 259,730 68,447 1,265 69,712
2013 260,377 72,164 1,296 73,460
2014 265,061 66,936 1,242 68,178
2015 266,530 53,515 976 54,491
2016 269,220 56,916 1,050 57,966
2017 271,940 62,461 1,094 63,555
2018 274,660 64,011 1,209 65,220
2019 277,305 59,098 979 60,077
2020 280,588 64,734 1,262 65,996
2021 286,868 66,418 1,244 67,662
2022 295,639 60,912 986 61,898

Source: 2021 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report (January 2023) and 2022 data provided by SCV Water and

LACWWD 36.

Notes:

(a) Total potable and non-potable water use.
(b) LACWWD 36 is included for purposes of providing regional completeness; however, it is not required to
prepare an UWMP.

(c) Does not include required groundwater discharge to the stormwater system during initial operation at

multiple SCV Water Groundwater Treatment Facilities
(d) Population does not include LACWWD 36

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

104



FIGURE 2-1
HISTORICAL WATER USE IN THE SCV WATER SERVICE AREA (AF)®@

90,000
80,000
70,000
60,000
50,000
40,000
30,000
20,000

10,000

=@=SCV Water ==@=|ACWWD 36(b) ==@=Total(c)

Source: 2021 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report (January 2023) and 2022 data provided by SCV Water and
LACWWD 36.
Notes:
(a) Water use shown here includes potable and non-potable (recycled water) use. Recycled water makes up less
than 1 percent of total use.
(b) LACWWD 36 is included for purposes of providing regional completeness; however, it is not required to prepare
an UWMP
(c) Does not include required groundwater discharge to the stormwater system during initial operation at multiple

SCV Water Groundwater Treatment Facilities

2-3

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
105



TABLE 2-2
SUMMARY OF WATER SUPPLIES USED IN 2022 (AF)

2022@
Existing Groundwater
Alluvial Aquifer 13,616
Saugus Formation 10,434
Total Groundwater®) 24,050
Recycled Water
Total Recycled 340
Imported Water
State Water Project(b) 6,447
Buena Vista-Rosedale(c) 6,242
Yuba Accord Water 748
Flexible Storage 1,993
Mitigation Water 13
Total Imported 15,443
Existing Banking and Exchange Programs
Rosedale Rio-Bravo Bank 17,776
Semitropic Bank 5,000
Total Bank/Exchange 22,776
Total Supplies 62,609

Notes:
(a) Actual 2022 supplies utilized. These values are not indicative of available future supplies.
(b) Includes Table A, Article 56 and Back-up supplies.
(c) 11,000 AF water purchase. 6242 AF used in service area with remainder allocated to San Luis backup storage
for use in 2023

2.2 Projected Water Use

The demand projections for the SCV Water service area have been estimated through 2050. For the
UWMP, a land use-based approach was used (which incorporates information from a population-based
approach) because such an approach can further reflect assumptions regarding how future development
is planned. It can also demonstrate how water usage patterns have evolved from what they were in the
past as the Santa Clarita Valley approaches buildout.

2.2.1 Potable Water Use Projections

Potable water use projections are based on a combination of SCV Water and LACWWD 36 demands. For
SCV Water’s three retail water divisions, the potable demand forecast was determined from land-use-
based estimates from 2020 through 2050 (buildout). The land use-based estimates were determined in a
land use analysis that compiled data from planned development contracts and the OVOV General Plan. In
general, the land use analysis leveraged the following information:

o Estimated dwelling units provided by City of Santa Clarita and Los Angeles County Planning
Department,

2-4

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
106



e Land use-based GIS map shape files from City of Santa Clarita and Los Angeles County
planners for determining the appropriate number of dwelling units and non-residential building
area,

¢ Queries from GIS maps to determine dwelling units were multiplied by persons per household
from the U.S. Census appropriate to each retailer’s service area,

e Monthly billing data by customer category (single-family, multi-family, non-residential, etc.),
¢ Climate and economic adjustment factors for normalizing demands, and

e Future demand factors.

The LACWWD 36 potable demand projections relied on a population-based approach using OVOV-based
population estimates. Based on these estimates for SCV Water and LACWWD 36, potable demand
projections were developed using a Least Cost Planning Decision Support System Model (DSS Model),
which incorporates econometric-based adjustments to better develop an accurate forecast through the
year 2050. The DSS Model accounts for existing and future potable water consumption by water customers
and estimated passive and active water conservation savings. Demand adjustments include accounting
for climate change, drought rebound, weather normalization, work-at-home trends, and
overwatering/irrigation equipment efficiency degradation.

In addition, recent legislation provides that, where available, demand projections in the UWMP “shall”
display and account for the water savings estimated to result from adopted codes, standards, ordinances,
or transportation and land use plans identified by the urban water supplier, as applicable to the service
area. If such information is reported, the verification will provide citations of the various codes, standards,
ordinances, or transportation and land use plans utilized in making the projections. The UWMP must
indicate the extent that the demand projections consider savings from codes, standards, ordinances, or
transportation and land use plans (referred to as savings from passive conservation).

The demand forecast conducted for the UWMP, and incorporated herein, accounts for savings from
passive conservation and active conservation. Passive conservation savings focus on plumbing code
change impacts on indoor fixtures and include the following laws, codes, and regulations:

¢ National Plumbing Code (also known as the Energy Policy Act) — Passed in 1992, has long
required more efficient plumbing fixtures to be for sale throughout the United States.

e Assembly Bill (AB) 715 — California Plumbing Code includes the new California Code of
Regulations (CCR) Title 20 Appliance Efficiency Standards requiring High Efficiency Toilets and
High Efficiency Urinals to be exclusively sold in the state by January 1, 2014.

e SB 407 and SB 837 — SB 407 addresses plumbing fixture retrofits on resale or remodel,
requiring single family residential property owners of pre-1994 buildings or dwelling units to
replace existing plumbing fixtures with water conserving fixtures by 2017 and multi-family and
commercial property owners of pre-1994 buildings to replace fixtures by 2019. It also requires
all owners to upgrade existing buildings upon any remodel initiated after January 1, 2014, and
authorizes the enactment of local ordinances for greater water savings. SB 837 (enacted in
2011) requires that sellers of real estate property disclose in their Real Estate Transfer
Disclosure Statement whether their property complies with these requirements. Both laws are
intended to accelerate the replacement of older, low efficiency plumbing fixtures, and ensure
that only high efficiency fixtures are installed in new residential and commercial buildings.

2-5

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
107



o 2019 CALGreen and 2015 California Code of Regulations Title 20 Appliance Efficiency
Regulations — Fixture characteristics in the DSS Model are tracked in new accounts, which are
subject to the requirements of the 2019 California Green Building Code and 2015 California
Code of Regulations Title 20 Appliance Efficiency Regulations adopted by the California Energy
Commission (CEC) on September 1, 2015. The CEC 2015 appliance efficiency standards apply
to the following new appliances, if they are sold in California: showerheads, lavatory faucets,
kitchen faucets, metering faucets, replacement aerators, wash fountains, tub spout diverters,
public lavatory faucets, commercial pre-rinse spray valves, urinals, and toilets. The DSS Model
accounts for plumbing code savings due to the effects these standards have on showerheads,
faucet aerators, urinals, toilets, and clothes washers.

o AB 1881 — State Model Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance adopted by the City of Santa
Clarita effective January 1, 2010; improves efficiency in water use in new and existing urban
irrigated landscapes.

The conservation savings analysis includes SCV Water’s current active water conservation measures and
also passive water savings such as indoor plumbing code measures as follows:

Water Smart Workshop Credit
Landscape Transformation Incentives

High Efficiency Fixture Giveaway
Schools Retrofits

e Fixture Retrofit on Resale or Water e Smart Controller Rebates
Account Change e Irrigation Incentives

¢ New Development Submetering e lIrrigation Check-Ups

e Landscape & Irrigation Codes e Pool Cover Rebates

o Water Waste Implementation ¢ Residential Check-Ups

e AMI e Hot Water on Demand Rebate

¢ Real Water Loss Reduction e CIl Check-Ups

e Education e CII HET and HEU Rebates

[ ] [ ]

[} [}

This active conservation methodology is an update from SCV Water’s 2016 Water Use Efficiency Strategic
Plan (WUESP) and the 2015 UWMP analysis. In 2018, the State of California legislature passed AB 1668
and SB 606 to support ‘Making Conservation a California Way of Life.” The water conservation long-term
framework (Framework) builds upon water use efficiency successes realized during implementation of
SBx7-7, which required urban water suppliers to achieve, at a minimum, 20% reduction in gallons per
capita day (GPCD) by 2020, where SCV Water customers achieved 24% reductions in GPCD by 2020.
The framework will establish annual urban water use objectives for residential indoor and outdoor use,
commercial dedicated irrigation use, and water loss. Additionally, the framework establishes water use
performance standards for commercial, industrial, and institutional (Cll) uses of water. The framework will
start in 2024 with enforcement provisions scheduled to begin in 2027. In 2023, SCV Water will launch its
water conservation planning updates to incorporate the framework and to identify smart strategies to
achieve annual compliance. These efforts will have additional influence on reducing demands going
forward, but conservatively are not currently included in the demand projections.

Table 2-3 provides a summary of the projected total water use for the SCV Water service area in a
normal/average water year. Table 2-4 provides projected demands in a single-dry year and Table 2-5
provides demands in a multiple-dry year.

Additional details of the demand projections analysis are provided in the 2021 Maddaus Technical
Memorandum (Maddaus 2021).

2-6

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
108



TABLE 2-3
SCV WATER PROJECTED NORMAL/AVERAGE YEAR DEMANDS (AFY)@®)

Year 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
Total Water
Use 76,400 81,700 88,700 93,600 97,500 101,000

Source: Maddaus Water Management (MWM), Inc. 2021. Draft 2021 SCV Demand Study: Land-Use-Based Demand Forecast
Analysis. April. Table 5-2 Estimated total demand with active conservation and plumbing code savings. Demands include
climate change and recycled water.

8 ACWWD 36 is included for purposes of providing regional completeness; however, it is not required to prepare an UWMP.

b Demands include the Project.

TABLE 2-4
SCV WATER PROJECTED SINGLE-DRY YEAR DEMANDS (AFY) @10
Year 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
TotalWater 81,000 86,600 94,000 99,200 103,400 107,100

Source: WSV Table 5-3. Demands include savings from plumbing code and standards, and active conservation. Demands
account for an estimated increase from climate change.

8 ACWWD 36 is included for purposes of providing regional completeness; however, it is not required to prepare an UWMP.
b Demands include the Project

¢ Demands assume a 6% increase above normal demand during dry years.

TABLE 2-5
SCV WATER PROJECTED MULTIPLE-DRY YEAR DEMANDS (AFY) @)
Year 2025 2030 2035 2040 2045 2050
Total Water
Use 77,830 83,620 90,570 95,780 99,670 102,870

Source. WSV Table 5-4.

8 LACWWD 36 is included for purposes of providing regional completeness; however, it is not required to prepare an UWMP.
b Demands include the Project.
¢ Demands are weather adjusted for dry 1988-1992 hydrology.

2.3 Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C) Project Demands

Using SCV Water’s water demand factors from 2021 Maddaus Technical Memorandum, the total
estimated water demand for the Project at build-out is approximately 847 AFY in an average/normal
year. Water demand for the Project at build-out may increase by approximately six percent in a single dry
year to a total of 898 AFY and approximately two percent in multiple-dry years to a total of 864 AFY,
consistent with projections from SCV Water’'s 2020 UWMP. The total estimated water demand for the
Project at build-out is summarized in Table 2-6 below.

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
109



TABLE 2-6

WATER DEMAND ESTIMATE - TESORO DEL VALLE (AREAS B &C) DEVELOPMENT

Projected Normal/Average Year Demands

Unit # of Units Unit Type Demand (AFY)

Single Family (<1 du/ac) 15 DU 7.29
Single Family (1-5 du/ac) 650 DU 309.62
HOA/Dedicated Irrigation 133.84 Acres 436.07
Developed Park 5.21 Acres 16.97
Senior Villa Lots (MF) 155 DU 77.39

Total Average Year Demands (AFY) 847

Projected Single Dry Year Demands (AFY) 898

Projected Multiple Dry Year Demands (AFY) 864

TABLE 2-7

DEMAND FACTORS USED IN WATER SUPPLY VERIFICATION CALCULATIONS®

Residential Outdoor Non-Residential

Residential Indoor Demand Demand
Land Use Demand (GPCD) PPL/DU (Gal/Ac/Year) (Gal/TSF/Year)
Single Family (<1 du/ac) 50 3.74 1,260,050
Single Family (1-5 du/ac) 50 3.57 1,260,050
Single Family (6-10 du/ac) 50 3.74 1,260,050
Accessory Dwelling Unit 50 1 0
Condo/Townhome 50 3.62 2,520,100
Apartment 50 2.46 2,520,100
Mobile Home 50 2.37 2,520,100
Senior Living Facility 50 1.87 2,520,100
HOA/Dedicated Irrigation 1,023,100
Developed Park 1,023,100
Commercial 90,000
Industrial Park 20,000
Institutional 330,000
Notes:

(a) Demand factors derived from 2020 UWMP and 2021 Maddaus Technical Memorandum.

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)

110



Section 3: Existing and Projected Water Supplies

In determining whether a sufficient water supply exists for the Project this WSV considers the following
factors:

1. The availability of water supplies over a historical record of at least 20 years.

2. The applicability of an urban water shortage contingency analysis prepared pursuant to Section
10632 of the Water Code that includes actions to be undertaken by the public water system in
response to water supply shortages.

3. The reduction in water supply allocated to a specific water use sector pursuant to a resolution or
ordinance adopted, or a contract entered into, by the public water system, as long as that resolution,
ordinance, or contract does not conflict with Section 354 of the Water Code.

4. The amount of water that the water supplier can reasonably rely on receiving from other water
supply projects, such as conjunctive use, reclaimed water, water conservation, and water transfer,
including programs identified under federal, state, and local water initiatives, to the extent that these
water supplies meet the criteria of subdivision (d).

5. Relevant groundwater-related analysis, e.g., adjudication, overdraft, and basin priority status.

Where this WSV relies on a water supply not currently available to SCV Water, as to those projected
supplies, the WSV identifies the following, as applicable:

1. Written contracts or other proof of entitlement to an identified water supply;

2. Copies of a capital outlay program for financing the delivery of a water supply that has been
adopted by the public water system;

3. Federal, state, and local permits for construction of necessary infrastructure associated with
delivering the water supply; and

4. Any necessary regulatory approvals that are required in order to be able to convey or deliver
the water supply.

In accordance with SB 221 (Government Code Section 66473.7(2)(A)), Section 2 of the 2020 UWMP (June
2020) and the 2019 Santa Clarita Valley Water Report summarize the total quantity of water used by SCV
Water to meet water demand since importation of SWP water began in 1980. Also, Section 1.7, above,
and Section 6 below, contain a list of documents with information related to the identification of the existing
water supply entitlements, water rights, or water service contracts relevant to meet the Project’'s water
demand, in addition to the existing and projected water supplies reported in the 2020 UWMP and the most
recent 2019 and 2020 Santa Clarita Valley Water Reports.

SCV Water has existing water entitlements, rights, and contracts to meet demand as needed over a 25-
year horizon and beyond and has committed sufficient capital resources and planned investments in
various water programs and facilities to serve all its existing and planned customers. As discussed herein,
SCV Water also has identified an operational strategy combined with a prudent and flexible management
approach to ensure water supply reliability.

3-1

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
111



SCV Water’s existing supplies include imported water, local groundwater, recycled water, and water from
existing groundwater banking programs. Planned supplies not presently available include new
groundwater production and recycled water system use expansion as well as additional banking programs.
The mix of supplies can vary significantly depending on local and statewide hydrology, access to
groundwater, and other factors. For example, in 2019, a wet year, imported water supplies made up 58%,
groundwater 41%, and recycled water less than 1%. In 2020, dry hydrology and perchlorate and PFAS in
local groundwater resulted in groundwater production making up approximately 26% of SCV Water’s total
supplies, imported water making up 39%, recycled water making up less than 1% of supplies, and existing
banking and exchange programs making up approximately 34% of total supplies. A further description of
the variability of the mix of supplies is included in Section 5.1 of this WSV.

3.1 Imported Water Supplies

SCV Water’s imported water supplies consist primarily of SWP supplies, which were first delivered to SCV
Water (then CLWA) in 1980. From the SWP, SCV Water also has access to water from Flexible Storage
Accounts in Castaic Lake, which are planned for dry-year use, but are not strictly limited as such. In addition
to its SWP supplies, SCV Water has an imported supply from the Buena Vista Water Storage District
(BVWSD) and Rosedale Rio-Bravo Water Storage District (RRBWSD) in Kern County, which was first
delivered to SCV Water (then CLWA) in 2007. Additionally, Newhall Land and Farming Company (Newhall
Land or NLF) (now also referred to as Five Point) has a water transfer supply from a source in Kern County,
referred to as Nickel Water that is planned to be available beginning in 2035.

3.2 State Water Project Supplies
3.2.1 SWP Facilities

The SWP is the largest state-built, multi-purpose water project in the country. It was authorized by the
California State Legislature in 1959, with the construction of most initial facilities completed by 1973.
Today, the SWP includes 28 dams and reservoirs, 26 pumping and generating plants, and approximately
660 miles of aqueducts. The primary water source for the SWP is the Feather River, a tributary of the
Sacramento River. Storage released from Oroville Dam on the Feather River flows down natural river
channels to the Sacramento-San Joaquin River Delta (Delta). While some SWP supplies are pumped from
the northern Delta into the North Bay Aqueduct, the vast majority of SWP supplies are pumped from the
southern Delta into the 444-mile-long California Aqueduct. The California Aqueduct conveys water along
the west side of the San Joaquin Valley to Edmonston Pumping Plant, where water is pumped over the
Tehachapi Mountains and the aqueduct then divides into the East and West Branches. SCV Water takes
delivery of its SWP water at Castaic Lake, a terminal reservoir of the West Branch. From Castaic Lake,
SCV Water delivers its SWP water supplies to its surface water treatment plants and then to its customers
through an extensive transmission and distribution pipeline system.

3.2.2 SWP Water Supply Contract Amendments

SWP Contract and Extension

The Department of Water Resources (DWR) provides water supply from the SWP to 29 SWP Contractors
(Contractors) in exchange for Contractor payment of all costs associated with providing that supply. DWR
and each of the Contractors entered into substantially uniform long-term water supply contracts (Contracts)
in the 1960s with 75-year terms. The first Contract terminates in 2035, and most of the remaining Contracts
terminate within three years after that. SCV Water is one of the 29 Contractors that has an SWP Contract
with DWR.

3-2

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
112



The majority of the capital costs associated with the development and maintenance of the SWP are
financed using revenue bonds. These bonds have historically been sold with 30-year terms. It has become
more challenging in recent years to affordably finance capital expenditures for the SWP because bonds
used to finance these expenditures are limited to terms that only extend to the year 2035, fewer than 15
years from now. To ensure continued affordability of debt service to Contractors, it was necessary to extend
the termination date of the Contracts to allow DWR to continue to sell bonds with 30-year terms.

Public negotiations to extend the Contracts took place between DWR and the Contractors during 2013 and
2014. An Agreement in Principle (AIP) was reached and was the subject of analysis under the requirements
of the CEQA (Notice of Preparation dated September 12, 2014). On December 11, 2018, the DWR Director
approved the Water Supply Contract Extension Project. In accordance with CEQA, DWR filed its Notice of
Determination for the project with the Governor’s Office of Planning and Research. In addition, DWR filed
an action in Sacramento County Superior Court to validate the Contract Extension Amendments
(https://Water.ca.gov/Programs/State-Water-Project/Management/\Water-Supply-Contract-Extension).
After CEQA was completed and contract language was finalized, DWR and 22 contractors executed the
Extension Amendment, including SCV Water, which executed the amendment in February 2019. The
Extension Amendment extends the contracts through 2085 or the period ending with the latest maturity
date of any bond issued to finance the construction costs of Project facilities, whichever is longer. The
Extension Amendment improves the project’s overall financial integrity and management. The Extension
Amendment is the subject of a validation action and two CEQA lawsuits. However, the trial court in these
cases ruled in favor of DWR on all causes of action. While an appeal is pending, the Extension Amendment
took effect on January 1, 2023, and DWR has implemented the Extension Amendment.

Water Management Tools Contract Amendment

In a December 2017 Notice to Contractors, DWR indicated its desire to supplement and clarify existing
SWP Contract’s water transfer and exchange provisions to provide improved water management among
public water agencies (PWAs). The purpose was to seek greater flexibility to manage the system in order
to address changes in hydrology and further constraints placed on DWR’s operation of the SWP. To this
end, PWAs and DWR conducted public negotiations in 2017 with the purpose of improving these water
management tools (WMT). Importantly, the transfers and exchanges provided for in a WMT Contract
amendment are limited to those transfers and exchanges between PWAs with SWP Contracts.

In June 2018, PWAs and DWR agreed upon an Agreement in Principle (AIP), which included specific
principles to accomplish this goal. These principles included a process for transparency for transfers and
exchanges, new flexibility for single and multi-year non-permanent water transfers, allowing PWAs to set
terms of compensation for transfers and exchanges, and providing for the limited transfer of carryover and
Article 21 water. The AIP was subsequently updated and finalized on May 20, 2019.

In October 2018, a Draft Environmental Impact Report (DEIR) was circulated based on the agreed upon
AIP principles for a WMT Contract amendments. DWR certified the Final EIR in August 2020. Two court
cases were filed challenging the EIR, as well as alleging public trust and Delta Reform Act violations.
These cases are pending in the trial court. Despite these cases, the WMT Amendment became effective
for those PWAs who executed the amendment on February 28, 2021. The transfer and exchange tools
are available and will remain in effect unless there is a final court order that prohibits their continuation.

Delta Conveyance Project Agreement in Principle

On March 29, 2021, as part of a public negotiation that began in 2019, DWR and PWAs agreed upon an
Agreement in Principle for a Contract amendment on a Delta Conveyance Project (DCP). The objective of
the DCP Agreement in Principle (DCP AIP) is to develop an agreement to equitably allocate costs and

3-3

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
113


https://water.ca.gov/Programs/State-Water-Project/Management/Water-Supply-Contract-Extension

benefits among SWP PWAs of a potential Delta Conveyance Facility that preserves operational flexibility.
A decision by each participating PWA for approving a contract amendment with DWR would not occur until
after the environmental review for the DCP is completed. The EIR is estimated to be finalized in early 2024.

3.2.3 SWP Water Supplies

Each SWP contractor's SWP Contract contains a “Table A,” which lists the maximum amount of contract
water supply, or “Table A Water,” an agency may request each year throughout the life of the contract.
The Table A Amounts in each contractor's SWP Contract ramped up over time, based on projections at
the time the contracts were signed and future increases in population and water demand, until they reached
a maximum Table A Amount. Most contractor Table A Amounts reached their maximum levels in the early
to mid-1990s. Table A Amounts are used in determining each contractor’'s proportionate share, or
“allocation”, of the total SWP Water supply DWR determines to be available each year.

The total planned annual delivery capability of the SWP and the sum of all contractors’ maximum Table A
Amounts was originally 4.23 million acre-feet (MAF). The initial SWP storage facilities were designed to
meet contractors’ water demands in the early years of the SWP, with the construction of additional storage
facilities planned as demands increased. However, essentially no additional SWP storage facilities have
been constructed since the early 1970s. SWP conveyance facilities were generally designed and have
been constructed to deliver maximum Table A amounts to all contractors. After the permanent retirement
of some Table A amount by two agricultural contractors in 1996, the maximum Table A Amounts of all
SWP contractors now total about 4.17 MAF. Currently, SCV Water's annual Table A Amount is
95,200 AF,"

The primary supply of SWP water made available under the SWP Contracts is allocated Table A supply.

In addition to Table A supplies, the SWP Contracts provide for additional types of water that may
periodically be available, including “Article 21” water and water made available through transfers from other
SWP Contractors pursuant to the WMT amendment described above (amended Article 56). Article 21
water (which refers to the SWP Contract provision defining this supply) is water that may be made available
by DWR when excess flows are available in the Delta (i.e., when Delta outflow requirements have been
met, SWP storage south of the Delta is full and conveyance capacity is available beyond that being used
for SWP operations and delivery of allocated and scheduled Table A supplies). Article 21 water is made
available on an unscheduled and interruptible basis and is typically available only in average to wet years,
generally only for a limited time in the late winter.

The availability of Article 21 water and water from transfers with other SWP Contractors can fluctuate
significantly. When available, these supplies provide additional water that SCV Water may be able to use,
either directly to meet demands or for later use after storage in its groundwater banking programs. Because
of the fluctuations in availability of Article 21 water and water from transfers, supplies of these types of
SWP water are not included in this WSV. However, to the extent SCV Water is able to make use of these
supplies when available, SCV Water may be able to improve the reliability of its SWP supplies beyond the
values used throughout the 2020 UWMP and this WSV.

While not specifically provided for in the SWP Contracts, DWR or the State Water Contractors have in dry
years facilitated Dry Year Water Purchase Programs for contractors needing additional supplies. Through

15 SCV Water’s original SWP Contract with DWR was amended in 1966 for a maximum annual Table A Amount of 41,500 AF. In 1991, SCV
Water (CLWA at the time) purchased 12,700 AF of annual Table A Amount from a Kern County Water district, and in 1999 purchased an
additional 41,000 AF of annual Table A Amount from another Kern County Water district, for a current total annual Table A Amount of
95,200 AF.

34

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
114



these programs, water is purchased from willing sellers in areas that have available supplies and is then
sold to contractors willing to purchase those supplies. The availability of these supplies is annually variable
and therefore they are not included in this WSV. However, SCV Water’'s access to these supplies when
they are available would enable it to improve the reliability of its dry-year supplies beyond the values used
throughout this WSV.

Flexible Storage Account

As part of its SWP Contract with DWR, SCV Water has access to a portion of the storage capacity of
Castaic Lake. This Flexible Storage Account allows SCV Water to utilize up to 4,684 AF of the storage in
Castaic Lake for SCV Water. Any of this amount that SCV Water withdraws must be returned to storage
by SCV Water within five years of its withdrawal. SCV Water manages this storage by keeping the account
full in normal and wet years and then delivering that stored amount (or a portion of it) during dry periods.
The account is refilled during the next year that adequate SWP supplies are available to SCV Water to do
so. In 2005 and again in 2015, SCV Water negotiated with Ventura County SWP contractor agencies to
obtain the use of their Flexible Storage Account. This allows SCV Water access to another 1,376 AF of
storage in Castaic Lake. With the extension to the term of the agreement, SCV Water access to this
additional storage is available on a year-to-year basis through 2025. While it is expected that SCV Water
and Ventura County will extend the existing flexible storage agreement beyond the 2025 term, it is not
assumed to be available beyond 2025 in the 2020 UWMP or this WSV.

Water Management Provisions

The SWP Contract includes a number of provisions that give each contractor flexibility in managing the
supplies that are available to it in a given year. For example, a contractor may take delivery of its allocated
SWP supplies for direct use or storage within its service area, store that water outside its service area for
later withdrawal and use within its service area, carry over a portion of that supply for storage on an as-
available-basis in SWP reservoirs for delivery in following years (commonly referred to as “carryover”),
exchange a portion of that supply with others for return in a future year, or transfer water with other PWAs
pursuant to the newly approved WMT amendment. The SWP Contract also provides for DWR to deliver
non-SWP water supplies for contractors through SWP conveyance facilities.

SCV Water takes advantage of these water management provisions in wetter years by storing excess
SWP allocated water supply, either in groundwater banking programs or as carryover, or by exchanging
supplies with another contractor or water agency. Then in drier years, SCV Water withdraws its previously
stored supplies or recovers water from its exchange partner(s). Water stored in groundwater banking
programs has the benefit of remaining available until needed, and the water SCV Water currently has in
storage is assumed to be available as described in the 2020 UWMP and incorporated herein. At current
demand levels, SCV Water also regularly stores a portion of any excess supply as carryover in SWP
reservoirs, which can provide it with additional supply for use in following years. Carryover is a no-added-
cost storage option, is an easily and quickly accessible supply, and is a valuable benefit if the next year is
dry. However, SCV Water carryover water may be lost when SWP reservoirs fill, which can occur in wetter
years. Although the carryover water is considered in the 2021-2025 water drought assessment, because
of the variability in how frequently SWP reservoir space would be available to store SCV Water’s carryover,
it is not specifically included in other supply projections of the 2020 UWMP or this WSV.

3.2.4 Factors Affecting SWP Table A Supplies

While Table A identifies the maximum annual amount of Table A Water a SWP contractor may request,
the amount of SWP water actually available and allocated to SWP contractors each year is dependent on

3-5

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
115



a number of factors and can vary significantly from year to year. The primary factors affecting SWP supply
availability include: the availability of water at the source of supply in northern California, the ability to
transport that water from the source to the primary SWP diversion point in the southern Delta, and the
magnitude of total contractor demand for that water.

Availability of SWP Source Water

SWP supplies originate in northern California, primarily from the Feather River Watershed. The availability
of these supplies is dependent on the amount of precipitation in the Watershed, the amount of that
precipitation that runs off into the Feather River, water use by others in the Watershed, and the amount of
water in storage in the SWP’s Lake Oroville at the beginning of the year. Variability in the location, timing,
amount, and form (rain or snow) of precipitation, as well as how wet or dry the previous year was, produces
variability from year to year in the amount of water that flows into Lake Oroville. However, Lake Oroville
acts to regulate some of that variability, storing high inflows in wetter years that can be used to supplement
supplies in dry years with lower inflows.

In DWR’s 2019 and 2021 State Water Project Delivery Capability Reports (2019/2021 DCR), climate
change adds another factor in estimating the future availability of SWP source water. Current projections
indicate that global warming may change precipitation patterns in California from the patterns that have
occurred historically. While different climate change models show differing effects, potential changes are
anticipated to include more precipitation falling in the form of rain rather than snow and earlier snowmelt,
which would result in more runoff occurring in the winter and early spring rather than spread out over the
winter and spring, creating challenges in capturing this runoff for later use in the SWP delivery system.

Ability to Convey SWP Source Water

As discussed previously, water released from Lake Oroville flows down natural river channels into the
Delta. The Delta is a network of channels and reclaimed islands at the confluence of the Sacramento and
San Joaquin rivers. The SWP and the federal CVP use Delta channels to convey water to the southern
Delta for diversion, making the Delta a focal point for water distribution throughout the state.

A number of issues affecting the Delta can impact the ability to divert water supplies from the Delta,
including water quality, fishery protection and levee system integrity. Water quality in the Delta can be
adversely affected by both SWP and CVP diversions, which primarily affect salinity, as well as by urban
discharge and agricultural runoff that flows into the Delta, which can increase concentrations of
constituents such as mercury, organic carbon, selenium, pesticides, toxic pollutants and reduce dissolved
oxygen. The Delta also provides a unique estuarine habitat for many resident and migratory fish species,
some of which are listed as threatened or endangered. The decline in some fish populations is likely the
result of a number of factors, including water diversions, habitat destruction, degraded water quality, and
the introduction of non-native species. Delta islands are protected from flooding by an extensive levee
system. Levee failure and subsequent island flooding can lead to increased salinity requiring the temporary
shutdown of SWP pumps. In addition, climate change analyses also project that salinity issues will increase
with seal level rise, requiring extra Delta outflow to dilute more brackish Delta water to meet environmental
standards.

In order to address some of these issues, SWP and CVP operations in the Delta are limited by a number
of regulatory and operational constraints. These constraints are primarily incorporated into the SWRCB
Water Rights Decision 1641 (D-1641), which establishes Delta water quality standards and outflow

3-6

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
116



requirements with which the SWP and CVP must comply. In addition, SWP and CVP operations are further
constrained by requirements included in Biological Opinions (BOs) for the protection of threatened and
endangered fish species in the Delta issued by the FWS in December 2008 and the NMFS in June 2009,
and most recently in 2019 by the FWS as described in Section 4.2. The requirements in the BOs are based
on real-time physical and biological phenomena (such as turbidity, water temperature, and location of fish),
which results in uncertainty in estimating potential impacts on supply of the additional constraints imposed
by the BOs.

Demand for SWP Water

The reliability of SWP supplies is affected by the total amount of water requested and used by SWP
contractors, since an increase in total requests increases the competition for limited SWP supplies. As
previously mentioned, contractor Table A Amounts in the SWP Contracts ramped up over time, based on
projected increases in population and water demand at the time the contracts were signed. Urban SWP
contractors’ requests for SWP water were low in the early years of the SWP, but have increased steadily
over time, although more slowly than the initial ramp-up in their Table A Amounts, which reached a
maximum for most contractors in the early to mid-1990s. Since that time, urban contractors’ requests for
SWP water have continued to increase until recent years when nearly all SWP contractors are requesting
their maximum Table A Amounts.

Consistent with other urban SWP contractors, SWP deliveries to SCV Water have increased as its requests
for SWP water have increased. Historical total SWP deliveries to SCV Water are shown in the 2020
UWMP.'® The table shows deliveries to the SCV Water service area for supply to the purveyors, as well
as delivery of SCV Water supplies to storage programs outside the service area and to exchange partners.
SCV Water demand projections provided to DWR are typically conservative in order to maximize water
deliveries available to SCV Water in any given year for both deliveries and to current and future storage
programs.

3.2.5 Biological Opinion

In late 2019, the FWS and NMFS issued new Biological Opinions (BOs) for the Long-Term Operation of
the CVP and SWP. Consultation on the BOs began in 2016 to update the prior 2008 and 2009 BO and
provide Federal Endangered Species Act (ESA) compliance for the CVP and SWP. Additionally, in early
2020, the California Department of Fish and Wildlife (DFW) issued DWR an Incidental Take Permit for the
Long-Term Operation of the SWP pursuant to the California Endangered Species Act (CESA) with regards
to state-protected longfin smelt and state- and federally protected delta smelt, winter-run Chinook and
spring-run Chinook. Previously, DFW had issued the SWP an Incidental Take Permit for the state-listed
longfin smelt and Consistency Determinations with the 2008 and 2009 Biological Opinions for the state
and federally listed species, not a separate permit. Some of the operational restrictions in the 2019
Biological Opinions differ from those in the 2020 Incidental Take Permit. Specifically, even though the
projects’ operations are coordinated, the SWP is subject to additional operational constraints that reduce
SWP supplies and create operational conflicts. Both the 2019 BOs and the 2020 Incidental Take Permit
are subject to multiple court challenges that are ongoing.

Biological Opinion Litigation. Two cases were filed challenging the BOs under the ESA, Administrative
Procedure Act, and National Environmental Policy Act (NEPA). The first case, Pacific Coast Federation of
Fisherman’s Association, et al. v. Ross (Case No. 1:20-CV-00431-DAD-SAB (“PCFFA v. Ross”), was

16 SCV Water 2020 Urban Water Management Plan — Table 4-3
3-7

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
17



brought by six environmental organizations. The second case, California Natural Resources Agency, et al.
v. Ross (Case No. 1:20) (“CNRA v. Ross”), was brought by the California Natural Resources Agency
(CNRA), the California Environmental Protection Agency, and the California Attorney General. The State’s
case includes a cause of action under CESA alleging that the federal CVP must comply with CESA. The
cases were coordinated and transferred to the Eastern District. State and federal water contractors have
intervened as defendants in both cases. On October 1, 2021, the federal agencies announced re-initiation
of consultation on the BOs, which is currently in progress. The court has adopted a series of Interim
Operations Plans (IOP) that are more restrictive than the BOs under certain water conditions, the latest of
which was adopted on February 24, 2023, and will remain in effect until December 31, 2023. Itis possible
that an additional IOP will be issued when the current one expires while the consultation continues.

CESA Incidental Take Permit Litigation. Eight cases, listed below, have been filed in state court by
public agencies, environmental organizations, and a Native American tribe challenging DWR’s approval of
the Long-Term Operations of the SWP and associated environmental review. Most of the cases also
challenge CDFW’s issuance of an Incidental Take Permit for the SWP.

North Coast Rivers Alliance, et al. v. Department of Water Resources, et al., County of San
Francisco Superior Court Case No. CPF-20-517078, filed April 28, 2020;

State Water Contractors, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources, et al., County of Fresno
Superior Court Case No. 20CECG01302, electronically filed April 28, 2020;

Tehama-Colusa Canal Authority, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources, et al., County of
Fresno Superior Court Case No. 20CECG01303, electronically filed April 28, 2020;

The Metropolitan Water District of Southern California, et al. v. California Department of Water
Resources, et al., County of Fresno Superior Court Case No. 20CECG01347, electronically filed
April 28, 2020;

Sierra Club, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources, County of San Francisco Superior
Court Case No. CPF-20-517120, filed April 29, 2020;

Central Delta Water Agency, et al. v. California Department of Fish and Wildlife, et al., County of
Sacramento Superior Court Case No. 34-2020-80003368, filed May 6, 2020;

San Bernardino Valley Municipal Water District v. California Department of Water Resources, et al.,
County of Fresno Superior Court Case No. 20CECG01556, filed May 28, 2020;

San Francisco Baykeeper, et al. v. California Department of Water Resources, et al., County of
Alameda Superior Court Case No. RG20063682, filed June 5, 2020.

The challenges are raised on several legal grounds, including CESA, California Environmental Quality Act,
the Delta Reform Act, Public Trust Doctrine, area of origin statutes, breach of contract, and breach of
covenant of good faith and fair dealing. All eight cases have been coordinated in Sacramento County
Superior Court.

Litigation over the 2019 BOs and 2020 Incidental Take Permit will likely take several years. The projects
began operating in accordance with the new requirements in 2020. Throughout implementation, any party
may seek preliminary injunctive relief during the litigation, such as that described above. It is likely that the
2019 BOs and 2020 Incidental Take Permit, or some form of interim operations, will govern operations
until final judicial determinations on the merits are made or the reinitiated consultation results in a new

3-8

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
118



Biological Opinion and amended Incidental Take Permit. Thus, it is unlikely that SWP water supply would
increase beyond that resulting from the limitations in the 2019 BOs and 2020 Incidental Take Permit during
this timeframe.

3.2.6 SWP Table A Supply Assessment

DWR prepares a biennial report to assist SWP contractors and local planners in assessing the availability
of supplies from the SWP. DWR issued the 2019 DCR, in August 2020. In this update, DWR provided
SWP supply estimates for SWP Contractors to use in their planning efforts, including for use in their 2020
UWMPs. The 2019 DCR included DWR’s estimates of SWP water supply availability under both existing
(2020) and future conditions (2040).

DWR’s estimates of SWP deliveries are based on a computer model that simulates monthly operations of
the SWP and Central Valley Project systems. Key inputs to the model include the facilities included in the
system, hydrologic inflows to the system, regulatory and operational constraints on system operations, and
contractor demands for SWP water. In conducting its model studies, DWR must make assumptions
regarding each of these key inputs.

In the 2019 DCR for its model study under existing conditions, DWR assumed: existing facilities, hydrologic
inflows to the model based on 82 years of historical inflows (1922 through 2003), current regulatory and
operational constraints including 2018 Coordinated Operation Agreement Amendment, 2019 BOs and
2020 Incidental Take Permit, and contractor demands at maximum Table A Amounts. The long-term
average allocation reported in the 2019 DCR for the existing conditions study provides an appropriate
estimate of the SWP water supply availability under current conditions.

To evaluate SWP supply availability under future conditions, the 2019 DCR included a model study
representing hydrologic and sea level rise conditions in the year 2040. The future condition study used all
the same model assumptions as the study under existing conditions, but reflected changes expected to
occur from climate change, specifically, projected temperature and precipitation changes centered around
2035 (2020 to 2049) and a 45 cm sea level rise. For the long-term planning purposes of the 2020 UWMP,
the long-term average allocations reported for the future conditions study from 2019 DCR was the most
appropriate estimate of future SWP water supply availability. Since this time, the new 2021 DCR has been
finalized and is now the most appropriate to estimate future SWP supply availability. The future conditions
study in the 2021 DCR reflected changes expected to occur from climate change, specifically, projected
temperature and precipitation changes centered around a 55 cm sea level rise. The new 2021 DCR
estimates are utilized in this WSV as described in the following section.

3.2.7 SWP Water Supply Estimates

Each year by October 1, SWP contractors submit their requests for SWP supplies for the following calendar
year. By December 1, DWR estimates the available water supply for the following year and sets an initial
supply allocation based on the total of all contractors’ requests, current reservoir storage, forecasted
hydrology through the next year, and target reservoir storage for the end of the next year. Of these, the
most difficult factor to evaluate is the forecasted hydrology. In setting water supply allocations, DWR uses
a conservative 90% hydrologic forecast, where nine out of ten years will be wetter and one out of ten years
drier than assumed. DWR re-evaluates its estimate of available supplies throughout the runoff season of
winter and early spring, using updated reservoir storage and hydrologic forecasts, and revises SWP supply
allocations as warranted. Since most of California’s annual precipitation falls in the winter and early spring,
by the end of spring the supply available for the year is much more certain, and in most years DWR issues
its final SWP allocation by this time. While most of the water supply is certain by this time, runoff in the late
fall remains somewhat variable as the next year’s runoff season begins. A drier than forecasted fall can

3-9

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
119



result in not meeting end-of-year reservoir storage targets, which means less water available in storage
for the following year.

Water year 2013 was a year with two hydrologic extremes. October through December 2012 was one of
the wettest fall periods on record but was followed by the driest consecutive 12 months on record. The
supply allocation for 2013 was a 35% allocation. However, the 2013 hydrology ended up being even drier
than DWR’s conservative hydrologic forecast, so the SWP began 2014 with reservoir storage lower than
targeted levels and less stored water available for 2014 supplies. Compounding this low storage situation,
2014 also was a critically dry year, with runoff for water year 2014 the fourth driest on record.

The exceedingly dry sequence from the beginning of January 2013 through the end of 2014 was one of
the driest two-year periods in the historical record, resulting in the first ever and lowest 5% SWP Allocation
in 2014. The dry-year sequence in 2020 through 2021 also represents an extreme hydrologic event in
terms of temperature and precipitation. Water Year 2020 was California’s fifth driest year on record based
on statewide runoff, followed by Water Year 2021 which was the second driest year and warmest year on
record, resulting in the second lowest 5% SWP Allocation in 2021. Hydrologic impacts from 2021 continued
into 2022 resulting in the third lowest 5% SWP Allocation. The warmer temperatures in 2014 and 2021
resulted in an increased climatic water deficit. This historical data has shown that California’s climate is
transitioning to a much warmer setting where historical relationships among temperature, precipitation and
runoff are changing, and these conditions may become more frequent. The assumption for SCV Water in
the 2020 UWMP was that a 5% allocation in 2014 and 2021 represents the “worst-case” scenario. These
assumptions have since been updated to align with the more recent 2021 DCR and SCV Water continues
to utilize a more conservative approach for the “worst-case” scenario reflected in Table 3-1. In contrast,
dry conditions were expected to continue through 2023, but drastically shifted in December 2022 and
continued into 2023 resulting in a 100% SWP Allocation.

The 2020 UWMP reflected information from DWR’s 2019 DCR. The report was based on DWR’s CALSIM
2 model that utilizes a repeat of the historic hydrologic period of 1922 through 2003. DWR’s analysis of
existing (2020) conditions was used to estimate SWP supplies between 2020 and 2040 and its analysis of
future (2040) conditions is used to estimate 2040-2050 SWP supplies. SWP supplies for the five-year
increments between 2020 and 2040 are interpolated between these values. SWP supplies for years
beyond 2040 are assumed to be the same as for 2040.

In September 2022, DWR released its Final 2021 DCR. This report is based on DWR’s new CALSIM 3
model that extends the hydrologic period through 2015 thus incorporating the historic dry years of 2014
and 2015 but does not include the wet years in 2017 and 2019. This report reduced the 2020 average
reliability from 58% to 56% and down to 52% for future average reliability. Thus, the SWP reliability shown
in Table 3-1 reflects reduced reliability of 56% in 2020 and other year’s supplies are interpolated between
2020 and 2040 values. The new findings of the 2021 DCR were incorporated into the evaluation of this
WSV.

The 2021 DCR also reduced the single dry year delivery capability in 2020 to 6% with future reliability
down to 4%. SCV Water has decided to use a more conservative approach in calculating our SWP
deliveries in single dry years, assuming no guarantee of carryover water, thus using a 3% current allocation
and dropping to 2% in the future. This is reflected in Table 3-1.

The 2021 DCR did not provide Table A allocations for each individual year that would enable a re-analysis
of the five-year multiple dry year period. The report does contain a summary of a six-year drought that
indicates an average allocation of 25% of Table A amounts. That is the same average value that was used

3-10

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
120



in the 2020 UWMP. Thus, for purposes of this WSV, Table 3-1 reflects the same five-year multiple dry year
analysis.

Table 3-1
SWP TABLE A SUPPLY RELIABILITY (AF)(a)(b)

Wholesaler (Supply Source) 2020 2025 2030 2035 2040-2050
SWP Table A Supply 53,312 52,360 51,408 50,456 49,504
% of Table A Amount() 56% 55% 54% 53% 529
SWP Table A Supply 2,856 2618 2,380 2,142 1,904
% of Table A Amount() 3% 3%, 3%, 20, 20,

Multiple-Dry Year(?

SWP Table A Supply 23,800 23,800 23,800 23,800 23,800
% of Table A Amount©® 25% 25% 25% 25% 25%

Notes:

(a) Supplies to SCV Water are based on DWR analyses presented in its 2021 Final DCR, assuming existing SWP facilities and
current regulatory and operational constraints (except as otherwise indicated in Note f).

b) Table A supplies include supplies allocated in one year that are carried over for delivery the following year.

) Based on average deliveries over a repeat of the study’s historic hydrologic period of 1922 through 2015 from 2021 DCR.

Supply as a percentage of SCV Water’'s Table A Amount of 95,200 AF.

SCV Water’s more conservative approach for single dry year assumptions which do not assume carryover supplies.

Percent allocations extrapolated out and rounded in table, but Table A Supply is reflective of decimal percentages.

(f) Supplies shown are annual averages over five consecutive dry years, based on a repeat of the historic five-year dry period
of 1988-1992.

3.2.8 Coordinated Operations Agreement

The Coordinated Operation Agreement (COA) was originally signed in 1986 and defines how the state and
federal water projects share the available water supply and the obligations including senior water right
demands, water quality and environmental flow requirements imposed by regulatory agencies. The
agreement calls for periodic review to determine whether updates are needed in light of changed
conditions. After completing a joint review process, DWR and the Bureau of Reclamation agreed to an
addendum to the COA in December 2018, to reflect water quality regulations, biological opinions and
hydrology updated since the agreement was signed.

The COA Addendum includes changes to the percentages for sharing responsibilities for in basin uses,
sharing available export capacity, and the review process. The 1986 Agreement required CVP to meet
75% of the in basin uses and the SWP to meet 25%. The COA Addendum now distinguishes responsibility
based on water year type and CVP responsibilities range from 80% in wet years to 60% in critical years.
SWP responsibility ranges from 20% in wet years to 40% in critical years. Additionally, the COA Addendum
changed sharing export capacity. Previously, export capacity was shared 50% to CVP and 50% to SWP.
The COA addendum changed this formula to be 65% CVP and 35% SWP during balanced conditions and

3-11

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
121



60% CVP and 40 % SWP during excess conditions. Overall, based on modeling, these changes result in
an approximately 115,000 AFY on average reduction in SWP supplies.

Finally, the 2018 COA Addendum updated the review process to require review of the COA Agreement
and Addendum every 5 years.

3.2.9 Delta Conveyance Project

Consistent with Executive Order N-10-19, in early 2019, the state announced a new single tunnel project,
which proposed a set of new diversion intakes along Sacramento River in the north Delta for the SWP. In
2019, DWR initiated planning and environmental review for a single tunnel DCP to protect the reliability of
SWP supplies from the effects of climate change and seismic events, among other risks. DWR’s current
schedule for the DCP environmental planning and permitting extends through the end of 2024. DCP will
potentially be operational in 2040 following extensive planning, permitting and construction.

DWR estimates of SWP supply reliability in its 2019 and 2021 DCR are based on existing facilities, and so
do not include the proposed conveyance facilities that are part of the DCP. Since the 2020 UWMP uses
DWR’s 2019 DCR to estimate SWP supplies at 2040, any changes in SWP supply reliability that would
result from the proposed DCP are not included in the UWMP. If the DCP is implemented, SWP reliability
would improve, but to be conservative, that analysis is not incorporated in this WSV. The planning costs
associated with the DCP are included in SCV Water's most recently adopted budget. If the DCP moves
forward, the future capital and operating costs would be included in the SCV Water’s State Water Project
Statement of Charges. SCV Water has the ability to set the ad valorem tax rate by which these costs would
be paid within its service area.

3.2.10 Emergency Freshwater Pathway Description (Sacramento-San
Joaquin Delta)

It has been estimated by DWR that in the event of a major earthquake in or near the Delta, water supplies
could be interrupted for up to three years, posing a significant and unacceptable risk to the California
business economy. A post-event strategy would provide necessary water supply protections to avert this
catastrophe. Such a plan has been coordinated through DWR, Corps of Engineers (Corps), Reclamation,
California Office of Emergency Services (Cal OES), the Metropolitan Water District of Southern California,
and the State Water Contractors.

DWR Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan: The Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan (DWR,
2018) provides strategies for response to Delta levee failures, up to and including earthquake-induced
multiple island failures during dry conditions when the volume of flooded islands and saltwater intrusion
are large, resulting in curtailment of export operations. Under these severe conditions, the plan includes a
strategy to establish an emergency freshwater pathway from the central Delta along Middle River and
Victoria Canal to the export pumps in the south Delta. The plan includes the prepositioning of emergency
construction materials at existing and new stockpile and warehouse sites in the Delta, and development of
tactical modeling tools (DWR Emergency Response Tool) to predict levee repair logistics, timelines of
levee repair and suitable water quality to restore exports. The Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan
has been extensively coordinated with state, federal and local emergency response agencies. DWR, in
conjunction with local agencies, the Corps and Cal OES, conduct tabletop and field exercises to test and
revise the plan under real time conditions.

DWR and the Corps provide vital Delta region response to flood and earthquake emergencies,
complementary to Cal OES operations. These agencies perform under a unified command structure and

3-12

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
122



response and recovery framework. The Northern California Catastrophic Flood Response Plan (Cal OES,
2018) incorporates the DWR Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan. The Delta Emergency Operations
Integration Plan (DWR and USACE, 2019) integrates personnel and resources during emergency
operations.

Pathway Implementation Timeline: The Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan has found that using
pre-positioned stockpiles of rock, sheet pile and other materials, multiple earthquake-generated levee
breaches and levee slumping along the freshwater pathway can be repaired in less than six months. A
supplemental report (Levee Repair, Channel Barrier, and Transfer Facility Concept Analyses to Support
Emergency Preparedness Planning, M&N, August 2007) evaluated among other options, the placement
of sheet pile to close levee breaches, as a redundant method if availability of rock is limited by possible
competing uses. The stockpiling of sheet pile is vital should more extreme emergencies warrant parallel
and multiple repair techniques for deep levee breaches. Stockpiles of sheet pile and rock to repair deep
breaches and an array of levee slumping restoration materials are stored at DWR and Corps stockpile
sites and warehouses in the Delta.

Emergency Stockpile Sites and Materials: DWR has acquired lands at Rio Vista and Stockton as major
emergency stockpile sites, which are located and designed for rapid response to levee emergencies. The
sites provide large loading facilities, open storage areas and new and existing warehousing for emergency
flood fight materials, which augment existing warehousing facilities throughout the Delta. The Corps
maintains large warehousing facilities in the Delta to store materials for levee freeboard restoration, which
can be augmented upon request of other stockpiles in the United States. Pre-positioned rock and sheet
pile are used for closure of deep levee breaches. Warehoused materials for rapid restoration of slumped
levees include muscle (k-rail) walls, super sacks, caged rock containers, sandbags, stakes, and plastic
tarp. Stockpiles will be augmented as materials are used.

Emergency Response Drills: Earthquake-initiated multiple island failures will mobilize DWR and Corps
resources to perform Delta region flood fight activities within an overall Cal OES framework. In these
events, DWR and the Corps integrate personnel and resources to execute flood fight plans through the
Delta Emergency Operations Integration Plan (DWR and USACE, 2019). DWR, the Corps and local
agencies perform emergency exercises focusing on communication readiness and the testing of mobile
apps for information collection and dissemination. The exercises train personnel and test the readiness of
emergency preparedness and response capabilities under unified command and provide information to
help to revise and improve plans.

Levee Improvements and Prioritization: The DWR Delta Levees Subventions and Special Projects
Programs have prioritized, funded, and implemented levee improvements along the emergency freshwater
pathway and other water supply corridors in the central and south Delta. These efforts are complementary
to the Delta Flood Emergency Management Plan, which along with pre-positioned emergency flood fight
materials, ensures reasonable seismic performance of levees and timely pathway restoration after a
severe earthquake. These programs have been successful in implementing a coordinated strategy of
emergency preparedness to the benefit of SWP and CVP export systems.

Significant improvements to the central and south Delta levees systems along Old and Middle Rivers
began in 2010 and are continuing to the present time. This complements substantially improved levees at
Mandeville and McDonald Islands and portions of Victoria and Union Islands. Levee improvements along
the Middle River emergency freshwater pathway and Old River consist of crest raising, crest widening,
landside slope fill and toe berms, which improve seismic stability, reduce levee slumping, and create a
more robust flood-fighting platform. Urban agencies, including Metropolitan, Contra Costa Water District,
East Bay Municipal Utility District, and others have participated in levee improvement projects along or
near the Old and Middle River corridors.

3-13

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
123



3.2.11 Sisk Dam Raise and San Luis Reservoir Expansion

Reclamation and San Luis & Delta Mendota Water Authority (SLDMWA) are proposing to raise Sisk Dam
and increase storage capacity in San Luis Reservoir. The proposed 10-foot dam raise is in addition to the
ongoing 12-foot raise of Sisk Dam to improve dam safety and would expand San Luis Reservoir storage
by 130 thousand AF. The final supplemental EIS/EIR, released on December 18, 2020, estimated that the
SWP exports could potentially reduce by about 23 thousand AFY on average under the preferred
alternative. This project is currently undergoing design, environmental planning, and permitting.
Construction is estimated to be completed by 2030, following environmental planning and permitting.

DWR estimates of SWP supply reliability in its 2019 DCR are based on existing facilities, and do not include
this project.

3.2.12 SWP Seismic Improvements

DWR'’s recent SWP seismic resiliency efforts have focused heavily on SWP Dam Safety. The most
prominent is the joint Reclamation/DWR corrective action study of Sisk Dam which will result in a massive
seismic stability alteration project and is expected to begin construction in 2022. Several analyses have
been conducted on SWP dam outlet towers/access bridges which has resulted in seismic upgrades (some
completed/some on-going). Castaic Reservoir outlet towers were determined to be vulnerable to a major
earthquake. DWR has recently performed seismic retrofits to the access bridge to the Castaic outlet tower,
completing the work in November 2021. Updated dam seismic safety evaluations are being performed on
the Oroville Dam embankment and the radial gate control structure on the flood control spillway.

Seismic retrofits have also been completed on 23 SWP bridges located in four Field Divisions with
additional retrofits in various development stages. DWR has also updated the earthquake notification
procedures and has replaced and expanded instrumentation for the SWP’s seismic network.

3.2.13 Water Quality Control Plan/Voluntary Agreement

The State Water Board is responsible for adopting and updating the Water Quality Control Plan for the
San Francisco Bay/Sacramento-San Joaquin Delta Estuary (Bay-Delta Plan), which establishes water
quality control objectives and flow requirements needed to provide reasonable protection of beneficial uses
in the Watershed. The State Water Board has been engaged for many years in updating the Bay Delta
Plan.

The Bay-Delta Plan is being updated through phases. Phase 1 is updating the Bay-Delta Plan objectives
for the San Joaquin River and its major tributaries and the southern Delta salinity objectives. Phase 2 is
updating the objectives for the Sacramento River and Delta and their major tributaries. (Plan amendments).
On December 12, 2018, through State Water Board Resolution No. 2018-0059, the State Water Board
adopted the Phase 1 Plan amendments and Final Substitute Environmental Document (SED) establishing
the Lower San Joaquin River flow objectives and revised southern Delta salinity objectives. On February
25, 2019, the Office of Administrative Law approved the Plan amendments. The amended Plan requires
an adaptive range of 30-50 percent of the unimpaired flow to be maintained from February through June
in the Stanislaus, Tuolumne, and Merced Rivers, with a starting point of 40 percent of the unimpaired flow.
During this same time period, the flows at Vernalis on the San Joaquin River, as provided by the unimpaired
flow objective, are required to be no lower than a base flow of 1,000 cubic feet per second (cfs), with an
adaptive range between 800 and 1,200 cfs, inclusive. Phase 1 plan amendments are the subject of
litigation.

3-14

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
124



The State Water Board is also considering Phase 2 Plan amendments focused on the Sacramento River
and its tributaries, Delta eastside tributaries (including the Calaveras, Cosumnes, and Mokelumne rivers),
Delta outflows, and interior Delta flows. Staff is recommending an adaptive range of 45-65 percent
Unimpaired Flow (UIF) objective with a starting point of 55 percent. Once the State Water Board adopts
Phase 2 Plan amendments, the Board will need to conduct hearings to determine, consistent with water
rights, water users’ responsibilities for meeting the objectives in both Phase 1 and 2. At this time, the
potential impacts to the SWP are unknown, but this objective would have a large impact on water users in
the Phase 2 planning area.

The State and several water users began working on an alternative to the Bay-Delta Plan update in 2018,
known as the Voluntary Agreement process. The Voluntary Agreement process offers an alternative to the
State Water Board staff's flow only approach. A Voluntary Agreement, if agreed to by the State Water
Board, would be a substitute for the UIF approach and would become the Program of Implementation for
the Plan amendments. Implementing the Voluntary Agreement would not require a water rights hearing
because the parties are agreeing to take the actions. The Voluntary Agreement approach would provide
flow, and funding for flows, habitat actions, and a robust science program. The Voluntary Agreement
approach could provide an opportunity to combine flow and habitat actions to protect public trust resources,
while providing certainty for water users. If successful, it provides a pathway to avoid years of hearings
and litigation. The Voluntary Agreement approach is described as one potential approach in a recently
released draft State Board staff report.

3.2.14 Delta Reliance

Approximately half of SCV Water’'s water supply comes from the Delta. The 2020 UWMP Guidebook
describes how urban water suppliers that anticipate participating in or receiving water from a “covered
action” related to the Delta should provide information in their 2020 UWMPs to demonstrate consistency
with Delta Plan Policy WR P1, Reduce Reliance on the Delta Through Improved Regional Water Self-
Reliance (Reduced Reliance Policy). SCV Water completed such documentation which is included in
Appendix K of the 2020 UWMP.

3.2.15 Other Imported Supplies

The following supplies are available to SCV Water through agreements that have been executed since
2005. These supplies are now part of the imported supplies available to the service area.

3-15

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
125



3.2.15.1 Buena Vista-Rosedale Rio Bravo

SCV Water has executed a long-term transfer agreement for 11,000 AFY with BVWSD and RRBWSD.
These two districts, both located in Kern County, joined together to develop a program that provides both
a firm water supply and a water banking component. Both districts are member agencies of the Kern
County Water Agency (KCWA), a SWP contractor, and both districts have contracts with KCWA for SWP
Table A Amounts. The supply is based on existing long-standing Kern River water rights held by BVWSD
and is delivered by exchange of the two districts’ SWP Table A supplies or directly to the California
Aqueduct via the Cross Valley Canal. This water supply is firm; that is, the total amount of 11,000 AFY is
available in all water year types based on the Kern River Water right. SCV Water began taking delivery of
this supply in 2007 and can continue to take deliveries through 2036 with options to extend further. The
cost for this agreement is included in SCV Water's most recently adopted budget.

SCV Water has entered into agreements that reserved 3,378 AF of the Buena Vista-Rosedale Rio Bravo
water for potential annexations into its service area. 489 AF has been reserved for the Tapia Ranch
development with development estimated to be completed in the late 2020s. 2,500 AF is reserved for the
planned Legacy Village development. This development is assumed to occur after 2030 but before 2035.
During the periods before demands for these developments occur, or if these developments occur but do
not use all the amounts reserved for them in any year or years, the remaining supply would be available
to the entire SCV Water service area.

3.2.15.2 Nickel Water - Newhall Land

Newhall Land (NLF) has acquired a water supply from Kern County sources known as the Nickel water.
This source of supply totals 1,607 AFY. As provided in its water purchase agreement, the Nickel water
provides a firm source of supply and is available in all hydrologic water year types. This source of supply
was acquired in anticipation of the development of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan Development. Newhall
Land currently stores the annual supply of Nickel water in its Semitropic Water Storage District Water
Banking Program. Per agreement and upon completion of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan, Newhall Land
will transfer its rights to this supply to SCV Water. In the 2020 UWMP, it is assumed for planning purposes
that Newhall Ranch will be developed and that this water supply will be transferred to SCV Water in 2035
(i.e., the assumed completion of the Newhall Ranch Specific Plan), thereafter becoming available as an
annual supply to SCV Water. Prior to any permanent transfer to SCV Water, Newhall Land may make this
supply available to SCV Water for purchase. However, because there is no history of such purchases, the
2020 UWMP, and this WSV, does not assume this Nickel water will be generally available to meet SCV
Water demands until 2035. Further, SCV Water is not aware of any agreement that Newhall Land has
entered into to sell this water to other public water systems prior to the transfer of the Nickel water to SCV
Water.

SCV Water and NLF will monitor the use and storage of Nickel water. SCV Water is required to undertake
this effort to manage its overall supply portfolio, to meet SCV Water’'s obligations under applicable state
law, and at the request of the County of Los Angeles in the Specific Plan EIR. Based on current estimates,
the Nickel water and the stored water in the Semitropic bank provide adequate reserves for potential future
needs within the Specific Plan area. Under the Specific Plan EIR, NLF is to transfer Nickel water from its
Semitropic Water Bank to make up a shortfall.

3-16

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
126



3.2.15.3 Yuba Accord Water

In 2008, SCV Water entered into the Yuba Accord Agreement, which allows for the purchase of water from
the Yuba County Water Agency through DWR to 21 SWP contractors (including SCV Water) and the San
Luis and Delta-Mendota Water Authority. Yuba Accord water comes from north of the Delta, and the water
purchased under this agreement is subject to losses associated with transporting it through the Delta.
These losses can vary from year to year, depending on Delta conditions at the time the water is
transported. Under the agreement, an estimated average of up to 1,000 AFY of non-SWP supply (after
losses) is available to SCV Water in dry years, through 2025. In 2021, with a SWP allocation of 5% of
Table A Amount, a supply of 1,640 AF north of the Delta is available to SCV Water (based on September
27, 2021, estimate). Under certain hydrologic conditions, additional water may be available to SCV Water
from this program. SCV Water received 748 AF from this source in 2022.

3.3 Groundwater

This section presents information about groundwater supplies, including a summary of the previously
adopted groundwater management plan (GWMP) along with the recently adopted GSP.

3.3.1 Santa Clara River Groundwater Basin - East Subbasin

The sole source of local groundwater for urban water supply in the Valley is the groundwater Basin
identified in the DWR Bulletin 118 (DWR 2016) as the Santa Clara River Valley Groundwater Basin, East
Subbasin (Basin) (Basin No. 4-4.07). The un-adjudicated Basin is comprised of two aquifer systems, the
Alluvium and the Saugus Formation. The Alluvium generally underlies the Santa Clara River and adjacent
areas, including its several tributaries, to maximum depths of about 200 feet; and the Saugus Formation
underlies practically the entire Upper Santa Clara River (USCR) area, to depths of at least 2,000 feet.
There are also some scattered outcrops of Terrace deposits in the Basin that likely contain limited amounts
of groundwater. However, since these deposits are located in limited areas situated at elevations above
the regional water table and are also of limited thickness, they are of no practical significance as aquifers
for municipal water supply; consequently, they have not been developed for any significant water supply
in the Basin and are not included as part of the existing or planned groundwater supplies described in this
WSV. The Basin is defined in Bulletin 118 as being bordered on the north by the Piru Mountains, on the
west by impervious rocks of the Modelo and Saugus Formations and a constriction in the alluvium, on the
south by the Santa Susana Mountains, and on the south and east by the San Gabriel Mountains (DWR
2016). The extent of the basin generally coincides with the outer extent of the Alluvium and Saugus
Formation.

The Santa Clara River Valley Groundwater Basin, East Subbasin has been identified by DWR as a high
priority basin, not subject to critical conditions of overdraft, thereby requiring preparation of a GSP,
described below.

3.3.2 Groundwater Management Planning

As part of legislation authorizing SCV Water to provide retail water service to individual municipal
customers, Assembly Bill (AB) 134 (2001) included a requirement that SCV Water prepare a GWMP
(provided as Appendix | of the 2020 UWMP) in accordance with the provisions of Water Code Section
10753, which was originally enacted by AB 3030. This legislation has since been superseded by the
passage of SGMA in 2014 and the submittal of a GSP to DWR by the SCV-GSA in January 2022. The
GSP is available at https://scvgsa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/SCV-GSP-Sections-Combined-
20211217.pdf. The GSP was in large part built on the GWMP with the groundwater basin operating within
the yields identified in the GWMP. A summary of GWMP and the GSP is provided below.

3-17

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
127


https://scvgsa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/SCV-GSP-Sections-Combined-20211217.pdf
https://scvgsa.org/wp-content/uploads/2021/12/SCV-GSP-Sections-Combined-20211217.pdf

3.3.2.1 Groundwater Sustainability Plan

The Santa Clarita Valley Groundwater Sustainability Agency (SCV-GSA) operates under a Joint Powers
Agreement, which was executed by member Agencies in 2018. The SCV-GSA has adopted the State-
required GSP for the East Subbasin of the Santa Clara River Valley Groundwater Basin. The plan
represents a significant multi-year undertaking concluding with its adoption and submittal to DWR in
January 2022. Development of the GSP reflected a significant stakeholder engagement effort with the
involvement of a Stakeholder Advisory Committee to reflect the views from private well owners, members
at large, environmental interests, and the business community. This Stakeholder Advisory Committee met
regularly to review technical memoranda and provide advisement to the GSA on materials and assistance
with several public workshops.

The final Board- adopted GSP is consistent with the current groundwater operating plan as described in
the GWMP (AB 3030 plan), and its 2009 update, described below. The GSP, however refined the technical
analysis as it utilized a new groundwater flow model (an unstructured grid version of ModFlow
called ModFlow USG) that models the groundwater operating plan. These refinements include updates
such as redistribution of pumping and current Basin conditions. The plan also developed minimum
thresholds as a basis to determine that the groundwater basin is being managed in a sustainable manner.
The SCV-GSA will conduct the required annual monitoring and reports for the GSP.

3.3.2.2 Groundwater Management Plan

The general contents of the GWMP were outlined in 2002, and a detailed plan was adopted in 2003 to
satisfy the requirements of AB 134. The plan both complements and formalizes a number of existing water
supply and water resource planning and management activities in SCV Water's service area, which
effectively encompasses the East Subbasin of the Santa Clara River Valley Groundwater Basin. Notably,
the GWMP also includes a basin-wide monitoring program, the results of which provide input to annual
reporting on water supplies and water resources in the Basin, as well as input to assessment of Basin yield
for water supply as described herein. Groundwater level data from the existing groundwater monitoring
program is reported to DWR as part of SBX7-6 implementation CASGEM. SCV Water serves as the
monitoring entity for CASGEM for the basin. Available groundwater level data for the CASGEM program
is submitted twice a year. SCV Water will continue to provide groundwater level data consistent with the
CASGEM program.

The GWMP contains four management objectives, or goals, for the Basin including (1) development of an
integrated surface water, groundwater and recycled water supply to meet existing and projected demands
for municipal, agricultural and other water uses; (2) assessment of groundwater basin conditions to
determine a range of operational yield values that use local groundwater conjunctively with supplemental
SWP supplies and recycled water to avoid groundwater overdraft; (3) preservation of groundwater quality,
including active characterization and resolution of any groundwater contamination problems, and (4)
preservation of interrelated surface water resources, which includes managing groundwater to not
adversely impact surface and groundwater discharges or quality to downstream basin(s).

Prior to preparation and adoption of the GWMP, a local MOU process among the former CLWA, the CLWA
retail water purveyors and UWCD in neighboring Ventura County, downstream of the East Subbasin of the
Santa Clara River Valley, produced the beginning of local groundwater management. This is now
embodied in the GWMP prepared and implemented in 2001. The MOU was a collaborative and integrated
approach to several aspects of water resource management included in the GWMP. As a result of the
MOU, the cooperating agencies integrated their respective database management efforts and continued
to monitor and report on the status of Basin conditions, as well as on geologic and hydrologic aspects of

3-18

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
128


http://pubs.usgs.gov/tm/06/a45

their respective parts of the overall stream-aquifer system. Following adoption of the GWMP, the water
suppliers developed and utilized a numerical groundwater flow model for analysis of groundwater basin
yield and for analysis of extraction and containment of groundwater contamination. The results of those
basin yield and contamination analyses, updated in 2009 by Luhdorff and Scalmanini Consulting Engineers
and GSI| Water Solutions, Inc. (LSCE & GSI, 2009), are bases for the amounts and allocations of
groundwater supplies in the 2020 UWMP.

The adopted GWMP includes 14 elements intended to accomplish the Basin management objectives listed
above. In summary, the plan elements include:

Monitoring of groundwater levels, quality, production, and subsidence
Monitoring and management of surface water flows and quality

Determination of Basin yield and avoidance of overdraft

Development of regular and dry-year emergency water supply

Continuation of conjunctive use operations

Long-term salinity management

Integration of recycled water

Identification and mitigation of soil and groundwater contamination, including involvement with
other local agencies in investigation, cleanup, and closure

Development and continuation of local, state, and federal agency relationships
Groundwater management reports

Continuation of public education and water conservation programs

Identification and management of recharge areas and wellhead protection areas
Identification of well construction, abandonment, and destruction policies
Provisions to update the groundwater management plan

Work on a number of the GWMP elements had been ongoing for some time prior to the formal adoption of
the GWMP and expanded work on implementation of the GWMP will continue on an ongoing basis through
the administration of the GSP. The GSP evaluates the operating plan going forward and these analyses
of the groundwater basin are reflected in the 2020 UWMP and this WSV. Notable in the implementation of
the GWMP has been the annual preparation of a Santa Clarita Valley Water Report (Annual Report) that
summarizes (1) water requirements, (2) all three sources of water supply (groundwater, imported surface
water and recycled water, all as part of the GWMP’s overall management objectives), and (3) projected
water supply availability to meet the following year’s projected water requirements. Besides addressing
GWMP requirements, the Annual Report is also prepared in response to a request by the Los Angeles
County Board of Supervisors and the MOU between the water purveyors in the Basin and UWCD. SGMA
also requires preparation of an annual report on basin conditions. The SCV GSA adopted its second annual
report in March 2023, describing groundwater conditions relative to the GSP’s basin metrics, for example,
water level thresholds and other sustainable management criteria.

3.3.2.3 Available Groundwater Supplies

The groundwater component of overall water supply in the Valley derives from a groundwater operating
plan developed and analyzed to meet water requirements (municipal, agricultural, small domestic) while
maintaining the Basin in a sustainable condition, specifically no long-term depletion of groundwater or
interrelated surface water. The operating plan also addresses groundwater contamination issues in the
Basin, all consistent with the GWMP described above. The groundwater operating plan and the GSP are
based on the concept that pumping can vary from year to year to allow increased groundwater use in dry
periods and increased recharge during wet periods to collectively assure that the groundwater Basin is

3-19

SCV Water — Water Supply Verification— November 2023

Tesoro Del Valle (Areas B & C)
129



adequately replenished through various wet/dry cycles. As ultimately formalized in the GWMP and
described in the Basin Yield Report (LSCE and GSI, 2009), and in the GSP, the operating yield concept
has been quantified as ranges of annual pumping volumes to capture year-to-year pumping fluctuations in
response to both hydrologic conditions and customer demand.

Ongoing work through implementation of the GWMP has produced three detailed technical reports in
addition to the annual Water Reports (the most recent of which, for 2020, was the twenty-third annual
report). The first detailed technical report (CH2M Hill, April 2004) documents the construction and
calibration of the groundwater flow model for the Valley. The second report (CH2M Hill and LSCE, August
2005) presents the initial modeling analysis of the purveyors’ original groundwater operating plan. The
most recent report, an updated analysis of the Basin (LSCE & GSI, 2009) presents the modeling analysis
of the current groundwater operating plan, including restoration of two Saugus Formation wells for
municipal supply after treatment and also presents a range of potential impacts deriving from climate
change considerations. All those results are reflected in this WSV. The primary conclusion of the technical
analysis is that the groundwater operating plan will not cause detrimental short- or long-term effects to the
groundwater and surface water resources in the Valley and is therefore sustainable. The analysis of
sustainability for groundwater and interrelated surface water is described in detail in “Analysis of
Groundwater Supplies and Groundwater Basin Yield, USCR Groundwater Basin, East Subbasin” (Basin
Yield Analysis) prepared August 2009 (LSCE & GSlI, 2009).

Additional technical work performed for the SCV-GSA in preparation of its GSP confirmed previous
conclusions that the basin plan was sustainable. Utilizing the new MODFLOW-USG model, additional
analysis of the basin plan operating plan was performed for the Water Budget Development for the Santa
Clara River Valley East Groundwater Subbasin report, GSI Water Solutions Inc, October 2021. The
analysis was based on the existing operating plan, modified spatial pumping distribution, incorporated
updated climate change data, and made other refinements. The analysis concluded that chronic lowering
of groundwater levels and groundwater storage would not occur under the operating plan and therefore
operation was within the safe yield of the Basin.

The updated groundwater operating plan (LSCE & GSI, 2009), as well as operations anticipated under the
GSP are summarized in Table 3-2, is as follows:

Alluvium: Pumping from the Alluvial Aquifer in a given year is governed by local hydrologic conditions
in the eastern Santa Clara River Watershed. Pumping for municipal, agricultural, and private
purposes ranges between 30,000 and 40,000 AFY during n